Waterset South
Community Development District

Board of Supervisors’ Meeting
October 14, 2025

District Office:
2700 S Falkenburg Rd.
Suite 2745
Riverview, FL 33578

www.watersetsouthcdd.org



WATERSET SOUTH
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Rizzetta & Company, 2700 S. Falkenburg Rd., Suite 2745, Riverview, FL 33578

District Board of Supervisors Amanda King Chairman
Pete Williams Vice Chairman
Deneen Klenke Assistant Secretary
Lynda McMorrow Assistant Secretary
John Blakley Assistant Secretary
District Manager Ruben Durand Rizzetta & Company, Inc.
District Counsel Alyssa Willson Kutak Rock LLP
District Engineer Eric Francis Heidt Design LLC

All cellular phones and pagers must be turned off while in the meeting room.

The Audience Comment portion of the agenda is where individuals may make
comments on matters that concern the District. Individuals are limited to a total of three
(3) minutes to make comments during this time.

Pursuant to provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring
special accommodations to participate in this meeting/hearing/workshop is asked to
advise the District Office at least forty-eight (48) hours before the
meeting/hearing/workshop by contacting the District Manager at (813) 533-2950. If you
are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Florida Relay Service by dialing 7-1-
1, or 1-800-955-8771 (TTY) 1-800-955-8770 (Voice), who can aid you in contacting the
District Office.

A person who decides to appeal any decision made at the
meeting/hearing/workshop with respect to any matter considered at the
meeting/hearing/workshop is advised that person will need a record of the proceedings
and that accordingly, the person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the
proceedings is made including the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to
be based.



WATERSET SOUTH COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
DISTRICT OFFICE « 2700 S. FALKENBURG RD, STE 2745. ¢« RIVERVIEW, FL 33578

Board of Supervisors October 07, 2025
Waterset South Community
Development District

FINAL AGENDA
Dear Board Members:

The Special meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Waterset South Community
Development District will be held on Tuesday, October 14, 2025, at 10:00 a.m. at the offices
of Rizzetta & Company, located at 2700 S. Falkenburg Rd., Suite 2745, Riverview, FL
33578.

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ MEETING:

1. CALL TO ORDER/ ROLL CALL
2. AUDIENCE COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS
3. STAFF REPORTS
) N ANo [ = U To =T o T o SRS Tab 1
B. Landscape and Irrigation
i. Presentation of Landscape Inspection Report
ii. Landscape Contractor Update
iii. Irrigation Contractor Update
C. District Counsel
D. District Engineer
E. District Manager
4. BUSINESS ITEMS

A Public Hearing regarding imposition of assessments ( expansion area)
i. Supplement to the Master Engineer’s Report ....................... Tab 2
ii. Amended Master Special Assessment
Methodology REPOIt........ccooiiiiiiiiiiie e, Tab 3
iii. Consideration of Resolution 2026-01; Master Debt
Assessment Levying ASSESSMENtS..........coevvvvvvieiiieeeeeeennnns Tab 4
B. Final Supplemental Series 2025
Assessment Methodology Report ..........ooovviieiiiiieeiiiiecee e, Tab 5
i. Consideration of Resolution 2026-02; Supplement Assessment
Revenue BoNdS ... Tab 6
C. Consideration of Series 2025 Ancillary Documents
i. Consideration of Acquisition Agreement Series 2025............... Tab 7
ii. Consideration of Collateral Assignment Series 2025............... Tab 8
iii. Consideration of True Agreement Series 2025............ccc.uu..... Tab 9
iv. Consideration of Supplemental
Notice of Special Assessments (Series 2025) ..........cccceeeeeees Tab 10
v. Consideration of Completion Agreement Series 2025............. Tab 11
vi. Consideration of Tri — Party Agreement with NASH ............... Tab 12
vii. Consideration of Tri — Party Agreement with SLR ................. Tab 13

viii. Consideration of Declaration of
Consent to Jurisdiction Series 2025......ccoeeiie e Tab 14



D. Consideration of Supplemental Disclosure

Of PUBIIC FINANCING ...cccviiiiiiiiee e Tab 15
E. Consideration of Resolution
2026-03 Authorizing Boundary Amendment ...........cccceevveeeeeeeennn. Tab 16
a. Metes & Bounds Legal of New Boundary ...............cceevvvvvvnnnnnn. Tab 17
F. Consideration of Amenity Agreements
i. Facility Usage AgQreement.........ccovvvvvviiiiiiiee e e e e e e eeeeaenns Tab 18
I, INStruCtor AQreemeENt........ooovviiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeee Tab 19

5. BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION
A. Consideration of Minutes of the Board of Supervisors’
Meeting held on September 11, 2025 ..........ccoooiiiiiiiiiies Tab 20
6. SUPERVISOR REQUESTS
7. ADJOURNMENT

We look forward to seeing you at the meeting. In the meantime, if you have any
guestions, please do not hesitate to call us at (813) 533-2950.

Sincerely,

Ruben Durand
Ruben Durand
District Manager



Tab 1



MONTHLY
REPORT

OCTOBER, 2025







Prepared for: Ruben Durand
Prepared By: Devon Craig

SUMMARY:

We are fingers crossed cooler air is coming our way. The water temp will slowly start decreasing,
raising dissolved oxygen levels to a somewhat normal level. The biggest thing with the slowdown in
rainfall we can keep prevent treatments in ponds long enough to see the benefit and bloom reduction.
Prevent treatments in ponds will be applied heavily this month and hopefully we will get long term

aesthetics and control with these applications.



Pond #1 Treated for Algae and Pond #2 Treated for Algae and Pond #3 Treated for Algae and
Shoreline Vegetation. Shoreline Vegetation. Shoreline Vegetation.



Pond #4 Treated for Shoreline Pond #5 Treated for Algae and Pond #6 Treated for Algae and
Vegetation. Shoreline Vegetation. Shoreline Vegetation.



Pond #7 Treated for Algae and Pond #8 Treated for Shoreline Pond #9 Treated for Shoreline
Shoreline Vegetation. Vegetation. Vegetation.



Pond #10 Treated for Shoreline Pond #11 Treated for Algae and Pond #15 Treated for Algae and
Vegetation. Shoreline Vegetation. Shoreline Vegetation.



Pond #16 Treated for Algae and Pond #17 Treated for Algae and Pond #18 Treated for Algae and
Shoreline Vegetation. Shoreline Vegetation. Shoreline Vegetation.



Tab 2



Waterset South
Community Development District
District Engineer’s Report Supplement to the
Master Capital Improvement Plan
July 17, 2025

Prepared for:

Waterset South
Community Development District
Hillsborough County, Florida

Prepared by:

Eric N. Francis, P.E.
Heidt Design, LL.C
Tampa, Florida



Board of Supervisors July 17, 2025
Waterset South Community Development District

C/0 Rizzetta & Company

5020 West Linebaugh Ave, Suite 240

Tampa, FL 33624

Re: Waterset South Community Development District

Supplemental Engineer’s Report
Master Capital Improvement Plan

Dear Board of Supervisors,

In February 2025, the Hillborough County Board of County Commission adopeted
Ordinance Number 25-9 which expanded the Waterset South Community Development
District (“District’) boundary to include ‘Waterset Wolf Creek Phase E’, an additional
approximately 41.4 acres which includes 280 home sites and associated infrastructure.
We are pleased to present herein the Supplemental Report of the District Engineer
(“Report”) comprising the updated Master Capital Improvement Plan ("CIP”) that includes
the expanded area. The Master Report was prepared to assist the District in obtaining
financing for the improvements by providing documentation as to the description and
estimated costs of the proposed improvements.

Supplemental Engineer’s Reports are anticipated to be prepared allocating portions of the
CIP to be funded by the issuance of the applicable series bonds. The anticipated Special
Assessment Revenue Bonds (“Bonds”) will be issued to finance the construction of certain
public improvements necessary to support the District.

We thank you for the opportunity to serve the District in this matter and wish to express our
appreciation for the assistance from District staff and others associated with this project.
Please do not hesitate to call should you have any questions or require any additional
information.

Sincerely,

Eric N. Francis, P.E.
Heidt Design, LLC



Waterset South CDD
July 17, 2025
Page 2 of 11

OVERVIEW
The Development

Waterset (the "Development”) is generally described as a 2,375-acre mixed use, master-
planned community located in the SouthShore area of Hillsborough County near the eastern
shore of Tampa Bay (See Figure 1). The Development is currently approved for 6,428
residential units, 498,480 SF of commercial development and 198,900 SF of office
development and is being developed by NNP-Southbend II, LLC (the "Developer”).

Waterset is more specifically located west of Interstate 75 and east of U.S. Highway 41, just
south of Big Bend Road and north of 19th Avenue. The SouthShore area includes the
communities of Apollo Beach, Gibsonton, Riverview, Ruskin, Sun City Center, and Wimauma.
More specifically, the Development is located in Apollo Beach, which is generally bounded by
Big Bend Road on the north, 19th Avenue NE on the south, U.S. Highway 301 on the east and
Tampa Bay on the west.

FIGURE 1 - LOCATION MAP (The Development)



Waterset South CDD
July 17, 2025
Page 3 of 11
The District

Waterset South Community Development District (the "District”), a local unit of special purpose
government, was effectively established on July 26, 2022 by Ordinance No. 22-19 (the
“Ordinance") enacted by the Board of County Commissioners (the “BOCC”) of Hillsborough
County, upon petition by the Developer. The District encompassed approximately 758.880
acres within the Development (See Figure 2 and Exhibit A). The District was established for
the purpose of financing, acquiring, constructing, maintaining and operating all or a portion of
the public infrastructure necessary for the community development within the District as
required for its functional development.

On February 12, 2025, by Ordinance No. 25-9, the District expanded to include Waterset Wolf

Creek Phase E, approximately 41.4 acres. The District nhow encompasses approximately
800.206 acres. (See Figure 2 and Exhibit A)

FIGURE 2 - LOCATION MAP (The District)



Waterset South CDD
July 17, 2025
Page 4 of 11

PURPOSE and SCOPE

The Uniform Community Development District Act of 1980, as embodied in Chapter 190,
Florida Statutes, authorizes the District to finance, design, construct, install and/or maintain
public infrastructure improvements within and without the District's boundaries including, but
not limited to roadways, water and sewer infrastructure, stormwater management
improvements, and recreation facilities. The purpose of the Report is to provide a description
of the infrastructure improvements necessary for development activities that are to be financed
and/or acquired by the District related to the Master Capital Improvement Plan. The District will
finance, acquire and/or construct, operate and maintain certain infrastructure improvements
that are needed to serve the Development. A portion of these public infrastructure
improvements may be funded by the Developer or by a future bond series. The Developer has
agreed to finance and construct the balance of the infrastructure improvements needed for the
Development that is not financed by the District. The proposed infrastructure improvements, as
outlined herein, are necessary for the functional development of the land within the District.

This Report of the District Engineer reflects the District's present intentions. The
implementation and completion of the improvements outlined in this report requires final
approval by the District's Board of Supervisors, including the approval for any financing,
acquisition, and/or construction of site related improvements. Cost estimates contained in this
report have been prepared based on the best available information. These estimates may not
reflect final engineering design or complete permitting. Actual costs will vary based upon final
plans, design, planning, approvals from regulatory authorities, inflation, etc. Nevertheless, all
costs contained herein, may be reasonably expected to adequately fund the improvements
described, and contingency costs as included are reasonable.

Governmental Actions

The BOCC originally approved the Development as the Wolf Creek Branch DRI on January
23, 1990 (R90-0031). After five previous amendments, on February 8,2011, the BOCC
adopted Resolution R11-016 Amending and Restating the Development Order and Renaming
the Wolf Creek Branch Development of Regional Impact (DRI #266) as The Waterset
Development of Regional Impact (DRI #266). The BOCC simultaneously approved PRS 11-
0027 ABP providing a General Site Plan and applicable conditions of zoning. On December
9,2014 the BOCC adopted Resolution R14-166 amending and restating the Development
Order of the Waterset DRI ("Development Order" or "DO"). The BOCC simultaneously
approved RZ 14-0815 ABP and PRS 14-1076 (and PRS 14-1077 shortly thereafter) General
Site Plan and the applicable conditions of zoning. On December 2, 2015, the Developer
subsequently executed an agreement, consistent with the applicable requirements of the
Development Order obligating the Developer to resign, permit and contribute funding up to a
combined total of twelve-million dollars ($12,000,000.00), plus interest as specified in the DO,
toward the construction of the Apollo Beach Boulevard Extension's |-75 overpass as a 4-lane
facility, connecting the Apollo Beach Boulevard (known as Paseo al Mar Boulevard within the
Development) Extension west of I-75 to the western extension of County Road 672 (Balm
Road) east of I-75. On March 10, 2020, the BOCC adopted Resolution R20-027 Amending and
Restating the Development Order for Waterset (DRI #266). The BOCC simultaneously
approved PRS 20-0004 resulting in the currently approved zoning General Site Plan and the



Waterset South CDD
July 17, 2025
Page 5 of 11
applicable conditions of zoning. Together, these governmental actions comprise master
entitlements and development obligations that are accordingly incorporated by reference.

Specific development permit requirements for the areas that include the CIP are summarized
in Exhibit C included with this Report.

It is our opinion that there are no technical reasons existing at this time which would prohibit
the implementation of the plans for the Development as presented herein, and that permits
normally obtained by civil engineers, which permits have not yet been issued, and which are
necessary to affect the improvements described herein, will be obtained during the ordinary
course of development.

The Master Capital Improvement Plan

The CIP includes infrastructure improvements that will provide special benefit to all assessable
land within the District except for the amenity facility that does not benefit Phases B, C1 and
C2. Said improvements include earthwork, roadway improvements, stormwater management
facilities including those associated with such roadway improvements, off-site roadway
improvements, potable water and wastewater facilities, reclaimed water facilities, landscaping
and sidewalk improvements, recreational facilities, and associated professional fees. The total
estimated cost of the CIP is $131,625,212.18. Refer to Exhibit B for a summary of the costs
by infrastructure category.

Phases B, C1, and C2 are planned to be gated, age-qualified single-family residences which
will include some infrastructure that will only benefit Phases B, C1, and C2. As such, portions
of the infrastructure associated with these phases will be funded solely by the Developer and
maintained by the Developer or a subsequent Homeowner's Association (“‘HOA”). The
following summary of the fee breakdown highlights which infrastructure improvements will be
exempt from the District’s funding and maintenance.

The estimated timetable to implement the CIP is 2021-2027. The project development areas
are defined by eleven (11) geographic phases with residential unit distribution as follows:

TABLE 1
Currently Anticipated Geographic Phases of Development for the CIP



Waterset South CDD
July 17, 2025
Page 6 of 11

TABLE 2
Currently Anticipated Product/Unit Mix for the CIP

LAND ACQUISITION, INFRASTRUCTURE, AND WORK PRODUCT

The District does not intend to pay cash for the acquisition of any land, infrastructure, or work
product associated with the District.

EARTHWORK

Hillsborough County regulates the design criteria for the final grading and fill requirements within
the District. To ensure that the District meets the requirements for vertical separation and
drainage, earthwork will be required. The source of fill material for the site is generally planned



Waterset South CDD

July 17, 2025

Page 7 of 11

to be generated from the excavation of the required stormwater management facilities. Any

excavation beyond the depths required for stormwater treatment and floodplain compensation

that is not required as fill for the proposed upland portions of the District will be funded by the
Developer.

The earthwork associated with the fill of the local roadways within Phases B, C1, and C2 is
eligible for funding by the District to ensure adequate stormwater collection. The earthwork
associated with the fill for the lot pads within Phases B, C1, and C2 is ineligible for funding by
the District and will be the responsibility of the Developer. If excavation of stormwater
management facilities to the required depth for treatment results in excess material, the District
will be responsible for disposal. The Developer may handle disposal for the District.

ROADWAYS

The District will be served by an extension of the primary north/south collector road for the
Development, Waterset Boulevard, and the secondary north/south collector road, Covington
Garden Drive. Waterset Boulevard remains a two-lane divided roadway with a 124’ right-of-
way. Covington Garden Drive varies between a two-lane undivided roadway with a 64’ right-of-
way and a two-lane with turn lane undivided roadway with a 75’ right-of-way. Additionally, 30™
Street will extend through the District as a two-lane divided roadway with a 124’ right-of-way.
The roadway costs include the costs of moving existing infrastructure, including, but not limited
to: TECO (as defined below) transmission poles, TECO People’s Gas monitoring station, and
Hillsborough County utility lines.

Waterset Boulevard and 30" Street are on the Hillsborough County Long Range Planning Map
and may accordingly be eligible for Transportation Impact Fee Credits. Impact fee credits
issued for District funded improvements will be addressed in a separate agreement between
the District and the Developer.

Local roadways will be designed in accordance with Hillsborough County standards.

Collector roadways described and the local roadways within Phases A, D1, D2, E, G1, G2, H1,
and H2 will be dedicated for maintenance by Hillsborough County.

The local roadways within Phases B, C1, & C2 will not be eligible for District funding and will
be funded solely by the Developer. The local roadways within Phases B, C1, and C2 will be
owned and maintained by an HOA. The total estimated cost of these roadways is not included
within the Opinion of Probable Cost in Exhibit B.

UNDERGROUND AND STREET LIGHTING ELECTRICAL SYSTEM

The District lies within the area served by Tampa Electric Company (“TECO”). TECO will
provide underground electric service to the land in the District from lines located within the
public right-of-way. The District's internal electrical distribution system will consist of
underground cable with appurtenant transformers and service pedestals for streetlight locations.
The District may not fund the costs associated with the installation of the private underground
electric systems. All components of the underground electric system, including maintenance,
will be the responsibility of the utility provider (TECO).



Waterset South CDD
July 17, 2025
Page 8 of 11

WASTEWATER COLLECTION

The District is within the Hillsborough County service area, with wastewater treatment service
to be provided by the Hillsborough County Wastewater Department. The District’s onsite
sanitary sewer system will consist of conventional gravity collection lines with appurtenant
manholes, pump stations, and force mains. The constructed systems will be dedicated to
Hillsborough County for operation and maintenance.

WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM

The District is within the Hillsborough County service area with potable water and fire service
to be provided by the Hillsborough County Water Department. The water distribution systems
within the District will consist of 12", 8", 6" and 4" watermains with appurtenant valves and fire
hydrants. The constructed systems will be dedicated to Hillsborough County for operation and
maintenance.

RECLAIMED WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM

The District is within the Hillsborough County service area with reclaimed water service to be
provided by the Hillsborough County Water Department. The reclaimed water distribution
systems within the District will consist of 12", 8", 6" and 4" reclaimed watermains with
appurtenant valves. The constructed systems will be dedicated to Hillsborough County for
operation and maintenance.

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT

Hillsborough County and the Southwest Florida Water Management District (“SWFWMD”)
regulate the design criteria for the stormwater management system within the District. The pre-
development site runoff and water management conditions have been developed by
Hillsborough County and SWFWMD. The existing, onsite, naturally occurring wetlands are as
delineated by SWFWMD and the Hillsborough County Environmental Protection Commission.

The stormwater management plan for the District focuses on utilizing newly constructed ponds
in the uplands for stormwater treatment in conjunction with the naturally occurring wetlands.
The wetlands and pond systems that are part of the stormwater management system comprise
approximately 30% of the District’s land area.

The primary objectives of the stormwater management system for the District are:

1. To provide a stormwater conveyance and storage system, which includes stormwater
quality treatment.

2. To adequately protect development within the District from regulatory-defined rainfall
events.

3. To maintain wetland hydroperiods.

4. To ensure that adverse stormwater impacts do not occur upstream or downstream
because of the development.

5. To satisfactorily accommodate stormwater runoff from adjacent off-site areas that
naturally drains through the District. Accommodating existing drainage conditions is a
requirement of more than one regulatory agency and is an integral part of the
infrastructure improvements constructed with development projects.

6. Preserve the function of the floodplain storage during the 100-year storm event.



Waterset South CDD

July 17, 2025

Page 9 of 11

The stormwater collection and outfall systems will be a combination of curb inlets, pipe

culverts, control structures and open waterways. Wetland hydroperiods (normal pool and

season high water elevations) will be maintained through proper design and maintenance of

the outfall control structures. It will be the responsibility of the District to maintain the
stormwater management system and ensure its operation.

The stormwater collection and outfall systems associated with Phases B, C1, and C2 will also
be funded and maintained by the District.

19t" AVENUE IMPROVEMENTS

The District will also be served by off-site intersection improvements and partial widening to
the existing 19" Avenue east/west collector roadway along the southern border. The
improvements are defined and required within the current PRS 20-0004 (final conditions of
approval). The roadway improvements may be funded by the District and may include paving
and drainage, utility relocations, culvert extensions, TECO transmission pole relocation, and a
multi-use path.

LANDSCAPING, HARDSCAPE, AND IRRIGATION

Significant landscape features, and associated irrigation systems are planned for the District.
These features include landscaping of the main roadways in the District, parks and common
areas, and landscaping of the perimeter buffer areas as well as the CSX railroad buffer and
screen. The landscaping and irrigation may be funded and/or maintained by the District.

Any landscaping and irrigation behind the gates within Phases B, C1, and C2 may not be
funded or maintained by the District. The estimated cost of the landscaping and irrigation
behind the gate within Phases B, C1, and C2 is not included in the Opinion of Probable Cost in
Exhibit B.

Significant hardscape features and are planned for the District. These features include entry
monuments along the main roadways in the District. The entry features may be funded and/or
maintained by the District.

The gated entry features for Phases B, C1, and C2 may not be funded or maintained by the
District. The estimated cost of these entry feature(s) is not included in the Opinion of Probable
Cost in Exhibit B.

RECREATIONAL FACILITIES

It is anticipated that the District will expand the Development's recreational facilities including
neighborhood parks and open space intended for both active and passive use featuring
pavilions, mulched and concrete pathways, boardwalk wetland ditch crossings, trail system,
and benches. The recreational improvements may be funded and/or maintained by the District.

The District will have substantial wildlife conservation areas located throughout. The
Development proposes to preserve many of the existing wetlands present within the
Development to provide habitat for wildlife and will include passive recreation trails around and
near these areas. The District will also include two (2) planted mitigation sites to provide
additional conservation areas. The construction and maintenance of the mitigation sites and



Waterset South CDD

July 17, 2025

Page 10 of 11

trail system may be funded by the District, and it is anticipated that monitoring and
maintenance will be the responsibility of the District.

PRIMARY AMENITY CENTER

It is anticipated that the District will expand the Development's recreational facilities including
an approximately 5-acre primary amenity center. The amenity center may be funded and/or
maintained by the District.

A separate, private amenity site is planned to be within Phases B, C1, and C2 that will be
inaccessible to the remainder of the residents in the District. This amenity site is not eligible for
funding or maintenance by The District. The estimated cost of the amenity in Phases B, C1,
and C2 is not included in the Opinion of Probable Cost in Exhibit B.

CONTINGENCY

This category includes the cost for adjustments as a result of unexpected field conditions,
requirements of governmental agencies and other unknown factors that may occur throughout
the course of development of the infrastructure. In general, the contingency amount is based
on a percentage of the total infrastructure cost estimate.

PROFESSIONAL FEES

Professional fees include civil engineering, including the District Engineer's construction
related services, costs for site design, permitting, inspection and master planning, survey costs
for construction staking and record drawings as well as preparation of preliminary and final
plats, geotechnical cost for pre-design soil borings, underdrain analysis and construction
testing, and architectural cost for landscaping. Also included in this category are fees
associated with environmental consultation and permitting and legal fees.

OWNERSHIP AND MAINTENANCE

The anticipated ownership and maintenance responsibilities of the District's proposed
infrastructure improvements are set forth below:



Waterset South CDD
July 17, 2025
Page 11 0f 11
TABLE 3
Funding, Ownership, & Maintenance

PROJECT COSTS

The CIP's identifiable total costs associated with the infrastructure improvements, including
impact fee creditable roadways as detailed in Exhibit B, are estimated to be $131,625,212.18.
The infrastructure improvements include roads, streetlights, sewer, water, reclaimed water,
stormwater management systems, hardscape and landscaping and associated irrigation
systems, and recreational facilities that will ultimately be utilized by the residents of the District.

Exhibit B, outlines the anticipated costs associated with the construction or acquisitions of the
CIP and also indicates the anticipated costs associated with roadways which may qualify for
Impact Fee Credits.



Waterset South CDD
July 17, 2025
Page 12 of 11

SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION

The infrastructure, as outlined above, is necessary for the functional development of the
District's Master Capital Improvement Plan. The planning and design of the infrastructure is in
accordance with current governmental regulatory requirements. The infrastructure will provide
its intended function so long as the construction is in substantial compliance with the design and
permits. Exhibit C outlines required permits. At the present time, it is anticipated that all permits
necessary to construct the CIP will be obtained in the ordinary course of development.

Items of construction in this report are based on current plan quantities for the infrastructure
construction as shown on the master plans and conceptual plans. It is the professional opinion
of Heidt Design, LLC, that the estimated infrastructure costs provided herein for the CIP
improvements are reasonable to complete the construction of the infrastructure described
herein and that these infrastructure improvements will benefit and add value to the District. All
such infrastructure costs are public improvements or community facilities as set forth in Section
190.012(1)of the Florida Statutes.

The infrastructure total construction cost developed in this Report is only an estimate and not a
guaranteed maximum price. The estimated cost is based on unit prices currently being
experienced for ongoing and similar items of work in Hillsborough County and quantities as
represented on the master plans. The labor market, future costs of equipment and materials,
and the actual construction processes frequently vary and cannot be accurately forecasted.
Due to this inherent opportunity for fluctuation in cost, the total final cost may be more or less
than this estimate.

The professional services for establishing the opinion of estimated construction cost are
consistent with the degree and care and skill exercised by members of the same profession
under similar circumstances.



Exhibit A
Exhibit B
Exhibit C
Exhibit D

EXHIBITS

District Boundary Exhibit
Opinion of Probable Capital Project Cost
General Permit Summary

Waterset South CDD Boundary Metes and Bounds Description



EXHIBIT A
DISTRICT BOUNDARY EXHIBIT



Waterset South CDD

24th STREET

e
tSTREER

\BQ\Q.

/~75

\ —~ —
\
LS N A // — =
\
|
\ < N -
_[ —’_5/ I‘s_//—\.//\_
-, / ot - ‘;// v_/ ~ _\
/ N /
/, /Vr N ) £ //
\ N
\ N\
/ \/\
- \ D
0 2
y 7 HILLSBOROUGH
0 AR 7 COUNTY SCHOOL
| \ SITE EXCLUDED
)
\
! |
|
|
/I/ /
\ //
/s / /
'/ /4
N
N
~ ~ / Z /
\ /, N
I
\
7
7 /
/
/
<
| J /,
|
g /
N
. 4 f /
/ /
f /
/ -
7,
/

-
—_—

———

19th AVENUE NORTHEAST

,\_

" Boundary Exhibit

Hillsborough County, FL |

LEGEND

Waterset South CDD Property - 800.21 Acres

Waterset South CDD Lot Count
Phase A 134
Phase B 182
Phase C1 92
Phase C2 278
Phase D1 58
Phase D2 148
Phase E 280
Phase G1 258
Phase G2 303
Phase H1 71
Phase H2 115
Total 1919

SCALE: 1" = 500'

0 250 500 1000

e

HALF SCALE 11" BY 17"

A
N

07/17/25 | PHASE E EXPANSION M. BERG]

DATE | DESCRIPTION BY

DATE:  09/13/2022 JOB #: NLC-WS-1758

Note: This is a preliminary/conceptual site plan and is subject to
survey information, final design, engineering and governmental
approvals, additional drainage, floodplain and grand tree
analysis is required and may affect final unit totals and layout.

R:\WATERSET\WOLF CREEK\MASTER PLAN\ENGINEERING\EXH-CDD-EXPANSION.DWG-ARCH-D 500 SCALE 2025/07/10 11:11 AM ERIC FRANCIS ,

OBTAINED FROM HEIDT DESIGN, LLC. IN ADVANCE. CONSENT IS HEREBY GRANTED SPECIFICALLY TO GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES

© COPYRIGHT 2020, HEIDT DESIGN, LLC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. NO DOCUMENTATION (INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO
TO REPRODUCE THIS DOCUMENTATION IN COMPLIANCE WITH F.S. CHAPTER 119.

[ | . DRAWINGS OR EXHIBITS) MAY BE COPIED, REPRODUCED, OR DISTRIBUTED UNLESS SPECIFIC WRITTEN PERMISSION HAS BEEN



EXHIBIT B
OPINION OF PROBABLE CAPITAL PROJECT COST



Waterset South CDD

Opinion of Probable Construction Cost

Summary
Total
CLEARING & EARTHWORK: ..o $ 26,751,352.00
ROADWAY /CURB & GUTTER: ..ot $ 16,853,285.00
SANITARY SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM: .....ooiiiiiiiiiiiiieienn $ 10,925,710.00
WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM: ..o $ 7,353,658.00
RECLAIMED WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM: .......coovviiiiiiiinnene. $ 6,225,152.00
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT: ... $ 22,395,985.00
19TH AVENUE IMPROVEMENTS: ... $ 4,900,000.00
LANDSCAPING / HARDSCAPE / IRRIGATION: .....cooviiiiiiiiienen, $ 4,655,250.00
RECREATIONAL FACILITIES: ...t $ 800,000.00
PRIMARY AMENIT Y e $ 5,000,000.00
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: ... $ 16,968,525.00
CONTINGENCY (6.67%0): «neeneiiiea e $ 8,796,295.18
TOT AL: e $ 131,625,212.18
Notes:

1. The estimated development timetable is 2022 - 2027
2. Estimates are based on 2023 costs.
3. Includes Wetland Mitigation. Excludes grading associated with lot pads.

4. Includes entry features, signage, landscape, hardscape, irrigation, and CDD perimeter fencing.

Page 1 Waterset South CDD



EXHIBIT C
GENERAL PERMIT SUMMARY



Phase

Issuing Agency

Type of Permit

Permit Number

Approval Date

Expiration Date

Hillsborough County Preliminary Plat Project ID # 5502 1/8/2021 6/22/2021
Hillsborough County Construction Plans Project ID # 5502 7/2/2021 5/13/2023
Hillsborough County ROW Use ROW29685S 7/2/2021 5/13/2023
TECO Roadway Hillsborough County Natural Resources NR(C) #5502 6/25/2021 6/25/2023
. Florida Dept. of Environmental Prot. NPDES Notice of Intent FLR20ER11-001 8/1/2021 7/31/2026
Florida Dept. of Health - HC Drinking Water Permit 0125332-2100-DSGP-DEP 5/6/2021 5/6/2026
Environmental Prot. Commission - HC Wastewater Permit 0401933-001-DWC 4/22/2021 4/22/2026
Hillsborough County Service Request SR#20-0248 1/12/2021 1/12/2023
SWFWMD Environmental Resource Permit 43018888.08 5/25/2021 5/25/2026
Florida Dept. of Environmental Prot. NPDES Notice of Intent FLR20ER10-001 8/1/2021 7/31/2026
SWFWMD Environmental Resource Permit 43018888.08 5/25/2021 5/25/2026
Florida Dept. of Health - HC Potable Water Permit 0125332-2112-DS/C FDEP 6/30/2021 6/30/2026
Environmental Prot. Commission - HC Wastewater Permit 0401933-002-DWC 7/15/2021 7/14/2026
Hillsborough County Site Construction Plan - COVID Extension Project ID # 5502 10/5/2021 12/26/2023
Hillsborough County Natural Resources NR(S) #5502-1 9/30/2021 12/26/2021
Hillsborough County Phase A Service Request SR#20-0234 12/9/2020 12/9/2022
Hillsborough County Phase D Service Request SR#20-0184 10/7/2020 10/7/2022
Phase Aand D1  [SWFWMD Dewatering Plan Acceptance 43018888.08 10/8/2021 n/a
SWFWMD Permit Extension 43018888.09 10/20/2021 12/26/2026
Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Com|Migratory Bird Nest Removal LSNR-21-00178 8/27/2021 8/27/2024
Hillsborough County Alternate Base Request Project ID # 5502 12/1/2021 n/a
Hillsborough County Phase A Minor Wall Parallel Review Request 54172.0000 12/23/2021 12/22/2023
Hillsborough County Construction Plans Project ID # 5502 7/29/2021 5/13/2023
Hillsborough County Construction Plans - 1st Revisions Project ID # 5502 11/4/2021 11/4/2023
Hillsborough County Natural Resources/Landscaping Permit NR(S) #5502 7/29/2021 12/26/2023
Hillsborough County ROW Use ROW29910S 2/11/2021 5/13/2023
Hillsborough County Alternate Base Request Project ID # 5502 12/1/2021 n/a
Hillsborough County Construction Plans Project ID # 5502 11/11/2021 8/25/2023
Hillsborough County Construction Plans - 1st Revisions Project ID # 5502 2/17/2021 8/25/2023
Hillsborough County Preliminary Plat Project ID # 5502 1/22/2021 7/22/2021
Hillsborough County Stormwater Design Exception Project ID # 5502 11/10/2021 n/a
Phase D2 Hillsborough County Service Application Request SR# 20-0254 1/23/2021 1/23/2023
SWFWMD Environmental Resource Permit 43018888.0870 10/22/2021 10/22/2026
Florida Dept. of Environmental Prot. Wastewater Permit 0401933-003-DWC 12/9/2021 12/8/2026
Florida Dept. of Health - HC Potable Water Permit 0125322-2140-DS/C FDEP 12/14/2021 12/14/2026
Hillsborough County Lift Station Pump Approval SR#20-0254 7/9/2021 n/a
Hillsborough County Lift Station Pump Approval - st Revision SR#20-0254 1/10/2022 n/a
Hillsborough County Lift Station Pump Approval SR#21-0114&0115 2/9/2022 n/a
Hillsborough County Preliminary Plat Project ID # 5502 7/21/2021 1/21/2022
Hillsborough County Preliminary Plat - 1st Revision Project ID # 5502 11/5/2021 1/21/2022
Hillsborough County Preliminary Plat - 2nd Revision Project ID # 5502 11/27/2023 5/27/2024
Hillsborough County Construction Plans Project ID # 5502 2/16/2022 2/16/2024
Hillsborough County Construction Plans - 1st Revision Project ID # 5502 11/29/2022 2/16/2024
Hillsborough County Phase G1 Service Request SR#21-0114 10/29/2021 10/29/2023
Hillsborough County Phase G2 Service Request SR#21-0115 10/29/2021 10/29/2023
Phase G Hillsborough County Stormwater Design Exception Project ID # 5502 2/23/2022 n/a
Hillsborough County Minor Site D Plan - Model Center Project ID # 5502 8/9/2022 8/9/2024
Hillsborough County Minor Site D Plan - Model Center Rev. Project ID # 5502 8/2/2023 8/9/2024
Hillsbrough County Service Application Request 21-0115 10/29/2021 10/29/2023
Hillsbrough County Service Application Request 21-0114 10/29/2021 10/29/2023
Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Com|Gopher Tortoise GTT-22-00395 2/28/2022 2/28/2023
Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Com|Migratory Bird Nest Removal LSNR-21-00178 8/27/2021 8/27/2024
Florida Dept. of Environmental Prot. Wastewater Permit 0401933-004-DWC 5/12/2022 5/11/2027
Florida Dept. of Health - HC Potable Water Permit 0125332-2158-DS/C FDEP 4/7/2022 4/7/2027
SWFWMD Environmental Resource Permit 43018888.0930 2/17/2022 2/17/2027
Hillsborough County B-1 Service Application Request SR# 22-0037 3/3/2022 3/3/2024
Hillsborough County B-2 Service Application Request SR# 22-0038 3/3/2022 3/3/2024
Hillsborough County Preliminary Plat Project ID # 5502 8/4/2022 2/4/2023
Hillsborough County Preliminary Plat - 1st Revision Project ID # 5502 9/1/2022 2/4/2022
Hillsborough County Preliminary Plat - 2nd Revision Project ID # 5502 4/10/2023 10/10/2023
Hillsborough County Construction Plans Project ID # 5502 1/2/2024 1/26/2025
Phase B Hillsborough County Construction Plans - 1st Revision Project ID # 5502 8/18/2023 1/26/2025
Hillsborough County Construction Plans - 2nd Revision Project ID # 5502 1/2/2024 1/26/2025
SWFWMD Environmental Resource Permit 18888.0990 2/9/2023 2/9/2028
Hillsborough County Stormwater Design Exception Project ID # 5502 1/19/2023 n/a
Hillsborough County Minor Site D Plan - Minor Wall Project ID # 5502 10/3/2023 10/5/2025
Hillsborough County Master Subdivision Landscape Project ID # 5502 10/13/2023 10/13/2028
Florida Dept. of Environmental Prot. Wastewater Permit 0368185-005-DWC 1/12/2023 1/11/2028
Florida Dept. of Health - HC Potable Water Permit 0125332-2204-DSGP-DEP 1/18/2023 1/18/2028
Hillsborough County Utility Service Request SR# 22-0113 6/16/2022
Hillsborough County Site Di Plan Project ID: 5502 3/29/2023 3/29/2025
19th Ave SWFWMD Environmental Resource Permit 43018888.097 5/18/2022 4/26/2028
Florida Dept. of Environmental Prot. Wastewater Permit 0421406-002-DWC 6/15/2023 6/14/2028
Florida Dept. of Health - HC Potable Water Permit 0125332-2235-DSGP DEP 6/15/2023 6/15/2028
Hillsborough County Preliminary Plat Project ID # 5502 6/17/2024 12/17/2024
Hillsborough County Stormwater Design Exception Project ID # 5502 1/2/2025 n/a
Hillsborough County Construction Plans Project ID # 5502 1/3/2025 1/3/2027
Phase E SWFWMD Environmental Resource Permit 43018888.112 1/21/2025 1/21/2030
Hillsbrough County Service Application Request 24-0043 9/4/2024 9/4/2026
Florida Dept. of Environmental Prot. Wastewater Permit 0416052-003-DWC 2/20/2025 2/19/2030
Florida Dept. of Health - HC Potable Water Permit 0125332-2324-DSGP DEP 2/26/2025 2/26/2030
Hillsborough County Preliminary Plat Project ID # 5502 9/16/2024 3/16/2025
Hillsborough County Preliminary Plat - 1st Revision Project ID # 5502 12/10/2024 3/16/2025
Hillsborough County Construction Plans
Phase C SWFWMD Environmental Resource Permit
Florida Dept. of Environmental Prot. Wastewater Permit
Florida Dept. of Health - HC Potable Water Permit
Hillsbrough County C-1 Service Application Request 23-0267 11/21/2024 11/21/2026
Hillsbrough County C-2 Service Application Request 23-0268 11/21/2024 11/21/2026
Hillsborough County Preliminary Plat Project ID # 5502 5/6/2024 11/6/2024
Hillsborough County Preliminary Plat - 1st Revision Project ID # 5502
Hillsborough County Construction Plans Project ID # 5502 2/21/2025 2/21/2027
Hillsborough County Construction Plans - 1st Revision Project ID # 5502
SWFWMD Environmental Resource Permit
Phase H Hillsborough County Stormwater Design Exception Project ID # 5502 1/27/2025 n/a
Florida Dept. of Environmental Prot. Wastewater Permit 0416025-004-DWC 5/22/2025 5/21/2030
Florida Dept. of Health - HC Potable Water Permit 0125332-2335-DSGP DEP 5/20/2025 5/20/2030
Hillsborough County Lift Station Pump Approval SR #: 23-0268 2/4/2025 n/a
Hillsborough County H-1 Service Application Request 23-2042 12/15/2023 12/15/2025
Hillsbrough County H-2 Service Application Request 23-2042 12/15/2023 12/15/2025
Hillsborough County Mass Grading Project ID # 5502 4/23/2025 4/23/2027
Waterset Blvd & |SWFWMD Environmental Resource Permit 43018888.105 3/19/2025 3/19/2030
Phase C-H-1 Mass Hillsborough County Stormwater Design Exception Project ID # 5502 6/12/2024 n/a
Grading Florida Dept. of Environmental Prot. Wastewater Permit 0401933-005-DWC 6/10/2025 6/10/2027
Florida Dept. of Health - HC Potable Water Permit 125332-2339-DSGP DEP 6/10/2025 6/10/2027
Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Com|Migratory Bird Nest Removal LSNR-25-00047 4/4/2025 4/4/2026




EXHIBIT D
WATERSET SOUTH CDD BOUNDARY METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION

































Tab 3



Waterset South
Community Development District

Final Supplemental
Special Assessment Allocation Report

Special Assessment Revenue Bonds, Series 2025

3434 Colwell Avenue
Suite 200
Tampa, FL 33614

September 17, 2025



WATERSET SOUTH COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REVENUE BONDS
SERIES 2025

TABLE OF CONTENTS

l. INTRODUCTION ..ttt e e
I. DEFINED TERMS . . ..ttt e et et e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e renees
M. DISTRICT INFORMATION . .« ettt ettt ettt e et e et e e et et e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e eeneenns
\VA SERIES 2025 PROJIECT oo
V. SERIES 2025 BONDS AND ASSESSMENTS . .« u ettt ettt et e e eeeeeeee e
VI. SERIES 2025 ASSESSMENT ALLOCATION . . ..ttt ettt e eaaeae e
VII. PREPAYMENT OF SERIES 2025 ASSESSMENTS .. utttteeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeenas
VI ADDITIONAL STIPULATIONS .. . ettt e e e e e e
EXB'A"  ALLOCATION METHODOLOGY ... e et e
INDEX OF TABLES

Table Description
1 CURRENT DEVELOPMENT PLAN . ... e ittt et
2 SERIES 2025 PROJECT COSTS AND FUNDING. ...cuiiiie et enea e
3 FINANCING INFORMATION — SERIES 2025 BONDS. . ot e e eeee et eeaaeaanen
4 FINANCING INFORMATION — SERIES 2025 ASSESSMENTS ..o eeeeeeeaaeeieeaeannnn
5 ASSESSMENT ALLOCATION — SERIES 2025 ASSESSMENTS. ... vuteieneeeieeneeeeaeennenns
6 CONTRIBUTION CALCULATION . .« ettt et e e e e e e e e e e e e et e e
SERIES 2025 ASSESSMENT ROLL. .ttt e e e e e

SERIES 2025 ASSESSMENT AREA LEGAL DESCRIPTION



WATERSET SOUTH COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REVENUE BONDS
SERIES 2025

|. INTRODUCTION

This Final Supplemental Special Assessment Allocation Report is being presented
in anticipation of an issuance of bonds to finance a capital infrastructure project by the
Waterset South Community Development District (“District”), a local unit of special purpose
government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes. The District proposes to
issue Special Assessment Revenue Bonds, Series 2025 (the “Series 2025 Bonds”), and has
retained Rizzetta & Company, Incorporated to prepare a methodology for allocating the
special assessments expected to be levied by the District in connection with the transaction.

Il. DEFINED TERMS

“Series 2025 Assessment Area” — Phases C-1, E, and H-1 of development within
the District expected to include 443 residential units.

“Capital Improvement Program” — (CIP) Construction and/or acquisition of public
infrastructure planned for the District.

“Developer” — NNP — Southbend Il, LLC, a Florida limited liability company.
"District" — Waterset South Community Development District.

“End User” — The ultimate purchaser of a fully developed residential unit; typically,
a resident homeowner.

“Equivalent Assessment Unit” — (EAU) Allocation factor which reflects a
quantitative measure of the amount of special benefit conferred by the District’'s CIP
on a particular land use, relative to other land uses.

“Indentures” — The Master Trust Indenture dated December 1, 2022 and the Third
Supplemental Trust Indenture to be dated October 16, 2025, each between the
District and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as trustee.

“Master Report” — The First Amendment to Master Special Assessment Allocation
Report dated July 17, 2025.

“Platted Units” — Lands configured into their intended end-use and subject to a
recorded plat.

“Series 2025 Assessments” — Special Assessments, as contemplated by Chapters
190, 170, and 197, Florida Statutes, levied to secure repayment of the District’s
Series 2025 Bonds.

“Series 2025 Bonds” — $5,700,000 Waterset South Community Development
District Special Assessment Revenue Bonds, Series 2025.



WATERSET SOUTH COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REVENUE BONDS
SERIES 2025

“Series 2025 Project” — Construction/acquisition of a portion of the CIP allocable
to the Series 2025 Assessment Area in the estimated amount of $13,483,199.

“True-Up Agreement” — The Agreement regarding the True-Up and payment of
special assessments (Series 2025 Project) between the District and the Developer.

“Unplatted Parcels” — Undeveloped lands or parcels not yet subject to a recorded
plat in their final end-use configuration.

All capitalized terms not defined herein shall retain the meaning ascribed in the
Master Report.

Ill. DISTRICT INFORMATION

The District was established pursuant to Hillsborough County Ordinance No. 22-19
which became effective on July 27, 2022. In February 2025, the District’s boundaries were
expanded pursuant to Hillsborough County ordinance 25-9 by approximately 41.4 acres to
include “Phase E” of the District. The District now encompasses approximately 800.206
acres of land located entirely within Hillsborough County, Florida and is currently planned
for an estimated total of 1,919 single family residential units.

The District is anticipating its third bond issuance, which will be secured by the Series
2025 Assessments, levied over the acreage of the Series 2025 Assessment Area, and
allocated on a first platted, first assigned basis. The Series 2025 Assessments will be
initially assigned to the Unplatted Parcels within the Series 2025 Assessment Area on a
equal assessment per acre basis. Table 1 illustrates the product mix for the units within the
Series 2025 Assessment Area which are expected to support repayment of the Series 2025
Bonds.

IV. SERIES 2025 PROJECT

The Series 2025 Project is a component of the District’s CIP which provides a master
system of improvements to the benefitting lands within the District. The Series 2025 Project
allocable to the Series 2025 Assessment Area will be partially constructed and/or acquired with
the proceeds of the Series 2025 Bonds. The estimated cost of the Series 2025 Project is
$13,483,199 of which $4,848,622.92 will be funded with proceeds from the Series 2025 Bonds.
The District will issue the Series 2025 Bonds to fund a portion of the Series 2025 Project in the
aggregate principal amount of $5,700,000. Following the issuance of the Series 2025 Bonds,
the District’s unfunded CIP costs are expected to be funded with the proceeds of future District
bonds and/or Developer contributions. For additional details on the Series 2025 Project and
the unfunded CIP costs, see Table 2 as well as the District Engineer’s Supplemental Engineer’'s
Report dated July 31, 2025.



WATERSET SOUTH COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REVENUE BONDS
SERIES 2025

V. SERIES 2025 BONDS AND ASSESSMENTS

In order to provide for the Series 2025 Project funding described in Section IV above,
the District will issue the Series 2025 Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of $5,700,000.
The Series 2025 Bonds will be structured as amortizing current-interest bonds, with repayment
occurring in substantially equal annual installments of principal and interest. Interest payments
shall occur every May 1 and November 1 from the date of issuance until maturity. The first
scheduled payment of coupon interest will be due on November 1, 2025, although interest will
be capitalized through November 1, 2026. The first annual principal payment will be due on
May 1, 2027 and on each May 1 thereafter until final maturity, with maximum annual debt
service at $395,337.50. The general financing terms of the Series 2025 Bonds are summarized
on Table 3.

The Series 2025 Bonds will be secured by the revenues derived from the Series 2025
Assessments. The Series 2025 Assessments will initially be levied in the principal amount of
$5,700,000 and shall be structured in the same manner as the Series 2025 Bonds, so that
revenue from the Series 2025 Assessments is sufficient to fulfill the debt service requirements
of the Series 2025 Bonds.

It is expected that the Series 2025 Assessment installments assigned to Platted Units
will be collected via the Hillsborough County property tax bill process (Uniform Method of
Collection per Section 197.3632, Florida Statutes) ! . Accordingly, the Series 2025
Assessments will be adjusted to allow for current county collection costs and the possibility that
landowners will avail themselves of early payment discounts. Currently, the aggregate rate for
costs and discounts is 6.0%, but this may fluctuate as provided by law.

VI. SERIES 2025 ASSESSMENT ALLOCATION

The District’s Master Report contains specific special benefit findings relative to the
Maximum Assessments and the District’'s CIP. As stated therein, the CIP cost per unit and
Maximum Assessments were allocated pursuant to an EAU-based methodology.

Per Section IV above, the Series 2025 Bonds will fund a portion of the District’s
Series 2025 Project, which is expected to be constructed or acquired in a manner generally
proportionate to the construction of improvements for the overall CIP. Accordingly, it is
expected that the improvements funded by the Series 2025 Bonds will confer benefit on the
District’s developable parcels in a manner generally proportionate to and consistent with the
allocation of benefit found in the Master Report. Therefore, it is proper to impose Series
2025 Assessments on the units specified in Table 5, as well as the District’'s Series 2025
Assessment Roll.

1 The ultimate collection procedure is subject to District approval. Nothing herein should be construed as mandating collections that
conflict with the terms, privileges, and remedies provided in the Indentures, Florida law, assessment resolutions, and/or other applicable
agreements.



WATERSET SOUTH COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REVENUE BONDS
SERIES 2025

A. Assessment Allocation

The Series 2025 Assessments are expected to ultimately be allocated to the
units shown on Table 5. The Series 2025 Assessments are to be allocated based
on target annual assessments provided by the Developer. As allocated, the Series
2025 Assessments fall within the cost/benefit thresholds, as well as the maximum
assessment levels, established by the Master Report. The District will recognize in-
kind contributions of infrastructure by the Developer in the amount of $642,372.69
as an assessment credit to the product types specified in Table 6, in order to reach
target assessment levels. See table 6 for the contribution calculation.

The Series 2025 Assessment Roll is located on page A-6.
B. Assignment of Assessments

The Series 2025 Bonds and Series 2025 Assessments have been sized
based on the expectation that the Series 2025 Assessments will be fully absorbed
by the 443 residential units planned in Phases C-1, E, and H-1 within the Series
2025 Assessment Area. Assessments will be initially levied to the Unplatted Parcels
on an equal assessment per acre basis. At the time parcels are platted or otherwise
subdivided into Platted Units, individual Series 2025 Assessments will be assigned
to those Platted Units at the per-unit amounts described in Table 5, thereby reducing
the Series 2025 Assessments encumbering the Unplatted Parcels by a
corresponding amount. Any unassigned amount of Series 2025 Assessments
encumbering the remaining Unplatted Parcels will continue to be calculated and
levied on an equal assessment per acre basis.

In the event an Unplatted Parcel is sold to a third party not affiliated with the
Developer, the Series 2025 Assessments will be assigned to that Unplatted Parcel
based on the maximum total number of Platted Units assigned by the Developer to
that Unplatted Parcel. The owner of that Unplatted Parcel will be responsible for the
total assessments applicable to the Unplatted Parcel, regardless of the total number
of Platted Units ultimately actually platted. These total assessments are fixed to the
Unplatted Parcel at the time of the sale. If the Unplatted Parcel is subsequently sub-
divided into smaller parcels, the total assessments initially allocated to the Unplatted
Parcel will be re-allocated to the smaller parcels pursuant to the methodology as
described herein (i.e. equal assessment per acre until platting).

In the event that developable lands that derive benefit from the Series 2025
Project are added to the District boundaries, whether by boundary amendment or
increase in density, Series 2025 Assessments will be allocated to such lands,
pursuant to the methodology described herein.

VIl. PREPAYMENT OF SERIES 2025 ASSESSMENTS



WATERSET SOUTH COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REVENUE BONDS
SERIES 2025

The Series 2025 Assessments encumbering a parcel may be prepaid in part or in
full at any time, without penalty, together with interest at the rate on the Series 2025 Bonds
to the bond interest payment date that is more than forty-five (45) days next succeeding the
date of prepayment. Notwithstanding the preceding provisions, the District does not waive
the right to assess penalties which would otherwise be permissible if the parcel being
prepaid is subject to an assessment delinquency.

Because this methodology assigns defined, fixed assessments to Platted Units, the
District’s Series 2025 Assessment program is predicated on the development of lots in the
manner described in Table 1. However, if a change in development results in the net
decrease in the overall principal amount of Series 2025 Assessments able to be assigned
to the lands described in Table 1, then a true-up, or principal reduction payment, will be
required to cure the deficiency. At the time that any residential plat is presented to the
District, the District shall determine if the par debt of all outstanding Series 2025 Bonds can
be assigned to the total number of Units to be developed, taking into account the submitted
plat. If not, the District shall determine the remaining par debt of all outstanding Series 2024
Bonds unassigned to Units and the total number of developable acres owned by the
Developer remaining to be platted. At this time, a debt reduction payment in the amount
equal to the par debt that is not capable of being assigned to the total number of developable
acres, plus any applicable interest charges and collection fees shall become due and
payable prior to the District's approval of the plat, in addition to the regular assessment
installment payable for lands owned by the Developer for that tax year.

Similarly, if a reconfiguration of lands would result in the collection of substantial
excess Series 2025 Assessment revenue in the aggregate, then the District shall undertake
a pro rata reduction of Series 2025 Assessments for all assessed properties.

VIil. ADDITIONAL STIPULATIONS

Certain financing, development, and engineering data was provided by members of
District staff, District underwriter, and/or the Developer. The allocation methodology
described herein was based on information provided by those professionals. Rizzetta &
Company, Incorporated makes no representations regarding said information transactions
beyond restatement of the information necessary for compilation of this report.

Rizzetta & Company, Incorporated, does not represent the District as a Municipal
Advisor or Securities Broker nor is Rizzetta & Company, Incorporated, registered to provide
such services as described in Section 15B of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended. Similarly, Rizzetta & Company, Incorporated, does not provide the District with
financial advisory services or offer investment advice in any form.



WATERSET SOUTH COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REVENUE BONDS
SERIES 2025

EXHIBIT A:

ALLOCATION METHODOLOGY



WATERSET SOUTH
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2025

TABLE 1: CURRENT DEVELOPMENT PLAN

PRODUCT PHASE C-1 Phase E Phase H-1 TOTAL
Age Qualified
Villa 36 10 0 0 10
Single Family 50' 73 0 0 73
Single Family 60' 9 0 0 9

Conventional

Townhome 20 0 132 0 132
Townhome 24' 0 72 0 72
Cluster Detached 31.25' 0 76 0 76
Single Family 40' 0 0 55 55
Single Family 50' 0 0 9 9
Single Family 60' 0 0 7 7
TOTAL.: 92 280 71 443

@ preliminary development plan for the Series 2025 Assessment Area. The unit mix is not fixed until all lots are platted.

A-1




COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

WATERSET SOUTH

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2025

TABLE 2: SERIES 2025 PROJECT COSTS AND FUNDING

DESCRIPTION ESTIMATED TOTAL
Clearing & Earthwork $ 2,822,000
Roadway / Curb & Gutter $ 2,148,350
Sanitary Sewer Collection System $ 1,025,500
Water Distribution System $ 940,700
Reclaimed Water Distribution System $ 795,000
Stormwater Management $ 2,350,500
19th Avenue Improvements $ -

Landscaping / Hardscape / Irrigation $ 695,000
Recreational Facilities $ 120,000
Primary Amenity $ -

Professional Services $ 1,743,528
Contingency (10%) $ 842,621
Total Estimated Series 2025 Project Costs $ 13,483,199
Series 2025 Project Costs funded by Series 2025 Bonds $ 4,848,622.92
Recognized contribution of infrastructure to reach target assessment levels $ 642,372.69
Additional costs funded by Developer, future bonds or other sources $ 7,992,203.39
Total Estimated Construction Costs $ 13,483,199.00

NOTE: Infrastructure cost estimates provided by District Engineer.

A-2




WATERSET SOUTH
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2025

TABLE 3: FINANCING INFORMATION - SERIES 2025 BONDS

Average Coupon Rate 5.59%
Maximum Annual Debt Service ("MADS") $395,337.50
SOURCES:
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT $ 5,700,000
Total Net Proceeds $ 5,700,000
USES:
Construction Account ($4,848,622.92)
Debt Service Reserve Fund ($197,668.75) @
Capitalized Interest ($326,208.33) @
Costs of Issuance ($213,500.00)
Underwriter's Discount ($114,000.00)
Total Uses ($5,700,000.00)

® 500 of MADS
@ 13 months

Source: District Underwriter.

TABLE 4: FINANCING INFORMATION - SERIES 2025 ASSESSMENTS

Interest Rate 5.59%
Initial Principal Amount $ 5,700,000
Aggregate Annual Installment $395,337.50
Estimated County Collection Costs 2.00% $8,411.44 @
Maximum Early Payment Discounts 4.00% $16,822.87 ®
Total Annual Installment $420,571.81

@ May vary as provided by law.

A-3




WATERSET SOUTH
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2025

TABLE 5: ASSESSMENT ALLOCATION - SERIES 2025 ASSESSMENTS

PRODUCT PRODUCT
TOTAL PER UNIT ANNUAL PER UNIT
PRODUCT UNITS @ PRINCIPAL @ PRINCIPAL INSTLMT. @@ INSTLMT.
Age Qualified
Villa 36' 10 $82,928.80 $8,292.88 $6,118.86 $611.89
Single Family 50’ 73 $840,805.90 $11,517.89 $62,038.47 $849.84
Single Family 60' 9 $124,393.20 $13,821.47 $9,178.29 $1,019.81
Conventional
Townhome 20° 132 $1,341,495.30 $10,162.84 $98,981.60 $749.86
Townhome 24' 72 $878,069.65 $12,195.41 $64,787.95 $899.83
Cluster Detached 31.25' 76 $1,184,310.00 $15,583.03 $87,383.75 $1,149.79
Single Family 40’ 55 $894,330.20 $16,260.55 $65,987.73 $1,199.78
Single Family 50' 9 $182,931.18 $20,325.69 $13,497.49 $1,499.72
Single Family 60" 7 $170,735.77 $24,390.82 $12,597.66 $1,799.67
TOTAL 443 $5,700,000.00 $420,571.81

@ Allocation of Series 2025 Assessments to be levied based on target assessment levels. There will be a recognized in-kind contribution of infrastructure by the
Developer as an assessment credit to certain unit types in order to reach target assessment levels. See Table 6 for the contribution calculation.

@ Product total shown for illustrative purposes only and are not fixed per product type.

® Includes estimated Hillsborough County collection costs/payment discounts, which may fluctuate.




WATERSET SOUTH
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2025

TABLE 6: CONTRIBUTION CALCULATION ®

TOTAL COSTS ng'?gf’-lriR COSTS PER CONTRIBUTION TOTAL
FUNDED @
PRODUCT UNITS EAU UNIT @ UNIT BY EAU PER UNIT CONTRIBUTION
Age Qualified
Villa 36' 10 0.72 $70,542.19 $7,054.22 $12,136.73 $5,082.51 $50,825.09
Single Family 50' 73 1.00 $715,219.43 $9,797.53 $16,856.57 $7,059.04 $515,309.96
Single Family 60 9 1.20 $105,813.29 $11,757.03 $20,227.88 $8,470.85 $76,237.64
Conventional
Townhome 20' 132 0.40 $1,141,123.66 $8,644.88 $6,742.63 $0.00 $0.00
Townhome 24' 72 0.48 $746,917.31 $10,373.85 $8,091.15 $0.00 $0.00
Cluster Detached 31.25' 76 0.63 $1,007,416.24 $13,255.48 $10,619.64 $0.00 $0.00
Single Family 40' 55 0.80 $760,749.11 $13,831.80 $13,485.25 $0.00 $0.00
Single Family 50' 9 1.00 $155,607.77 $17,289.75 $16,856.57 $0.00 $0.00
Single Family 60 7 1.20 $145,233.92 $20,747.70 $20,227.88 $0.00 $0.00
443 $4,848,622.92 @ $642,372.69

@ All numbers are based on construction costs and thus are net of financing costs.

@ Total Series 2025 Project costs to be funded with Series 2025 Bonds. See Table 2.

© per unit costs funded with Series 2025 Bonds.

“ Total contribution of infrastructure due to the difference between the target and the EAU allocation. See Table 2 for the application of the contribution.

A-5




WATERSET SOUTH COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
SERIES 2025 ASSESSMENT ROLL

Annual Installment

FOLIO PRODUCT ACREAGE Principal (Per Acre) (Per acre) "
See Legal Desc. | Mixed | 110.23 | $51,710.06 | $3,815.40 |
TOTAL $5,700,000.00 $420,571.81

® Includes estimated county collection costs/early payment discounts, which may fluctuate.



WATERSET SOUTH
2025 CDD ASSESSMENT AREA

DESCRIPTION: Two (2) parcels of land lying in Sections 27, 28 and 34,
Township 31 South, Range 19 East, Hillsborough County, Florida and being
more particularly described as follows:

PHASES C1 AND H1

COMMENCE at the Northeast corner of the Southwest 1/4 of said Section
27, also being a point on the Northerly boundary of WATERSET WOLF CREEK
PHASES A AND D1 AND WATERSET BOULEVARD TECO EXTENSION AND
COVINGTON GARDEN DRIVE TECO EXTENSION, according to the plat
thereof, as recorded in Plat Book 142, Pages 12 through 31 inclusive, of the
Public Records of Hillsborough County, Florida, run thence along the North
boundary of the South 1/2 of said Section 27, the following two (2) courses:
1) along said Northerly boundary of WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASES A AND
D1 AND WATERSET BOULEVARD TECO EXTENSION AND COVINGTON
GARDEN DRIVE TECO EXTENSION, N.89°16'50"W., 661.15 feet to the
Northeast corner of WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE B, according to the plat
thereof, as recorded in Plat Book 146, Pages 7 through 28 inclusive, of the
Public Records of Hillsborough County, Florida; 2) along the Northerly
boundary of said WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE B, continue
N.89°16'50"W., 1328.78 feet to the Northwest corner of said WATERSET
WOLF CREEK PHASE B, also being on point on the Easterly boundary of the
130.00 foot wide Railroad right-of-way for C.S.X. Transportation, Inc.
(formerly Atlantic Coast Line Railroad and Seaboard Coast Line Railroad) per
Right-of Way and Track Map V19 FLA (4); thence along the Westerly
boundary of said WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE B and said Easterly
boundary of the 130.00 foot wide Railroad right-of-way for C.S.X.
Transportation, Inc., S.28°37'13"W., 1763.59 feet to the Southwest corner
of said WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE B, also being the POINT OF
BEGINNING; thence along the Southerly boundary of said WATERSET
WOLF CREEK PHASE B, the following six (6) courses: 1) S.61°22'47"E.,
80.00 feet to a point of curvature; 2) Easterly, 474.72 feet along the arc of a
curve to the left having a radius of 1138.00 feet and a central angle of
23°54'04" (chord bearing S.73°19'50"E., 471.29 feet) to a point of reverse
curvature; 3) Easterly, 832.86 feet along the arc of a curve to the right
having a radius of 2862.00 feet and a central angle of 16°40'24" (chord
bearing S.76°56'40"E., 829.92 feet); 4) S.21°23'33"W., 124.00 feet to a
point on a curve; 5) Southeasterly, 721.95 feet along the arc of said curve
to the right having a radius of 2738.00 feet and a central angle of 15°06'27"
(chord bearing S.61°03'14"E., 719.86 feet) to a point of tangency; 6)
S.53°30'00"E., 66.14 feet to a point on the Westerly boundary of WATERSET



WOLF CREEK PHASE D2, according to the plat thereof, as recorded in Plat
Book 143, Pages 145 through 160 inclusive, of the Public Records of
Hillsborough County, Florida; thence along said Westerly boundary of
WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE D2, the following four (4) courses: 1)
continue S.53°30'00"E., 28.28 feet; 2) S.01°57'27"E., 84.57 feet; 3)
S.19°55'59"W., 9.32 feet; 4) S.36°30'00"W., 296.36 feet; thence along the
Southerly boundary of said WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE D2, the
following six (6) courses: 1) S.53°30'00"E., 124.00 feet; 2) N.36°30'00"E.,
322.41 feet; 3) N.82°20'25"E., 75.95 feet to a point of curvature; 4)
Easterly, 30.37 feet along the arc of a curve to the right having a radius of
50.00 feet and a central angle of 34°48'19" (chord bearing S.80°15'25"E.,
29.91 feet) to a point of tangency; 5) S.62°51'16"E., 211.89 feet to a point
of curvature; 6) Southeasterly, 96.62 feet along the arc of a curve to the left
having a radius of 1632.00 feet and a central angle of 03°23'31" (chord
bearing S.64°33'01"E., 96.60 feet) to the Northwest corner of WATERSET
WOLF CREEK PHASE G2 AND 30TH STREET PHASE G2, according to the plat
thereof, as recorded in Plat Book 146, Pages 257 through 283 inclusive, of
the Public Records of Hillsborough County, Florida; thence along the
Westerly boundary of said WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE G2 AND 30TH
STREET PHASE G2, the following four (4) courses: 1) S.23°45'00"W., 338.21
feet; 2) S.11°00'00"W., 710.98 feet; 3) S.36°30'00"W., 100.00 feet; 4)
S.05°00'00"W., 390.52 feet; thence N.74°32'40"W., 439.45 feet to a point
on a curve; thence Northerly, 4.49 feet along the arc of a curve to the right
having a radius of 775.00 feet and a central angle of 00°19'55" (chord
bearing N.15°37'18"E., 4.49 feet) to a point of reverse curvature; thence
Northwesterly, 30.28 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius
of 20.00 feet and a central angle of 86°45'18" (chord bearing
N.27°35'24"W., 27.47 feet) to a point of tangency; thence N.70°58'03"W.,
102.89 feet; thence S.14°13'00"W., 78.77 feet; thence S.10°35'00"W.,
56.81 feet; thence S.06°57'00"W., 56.81 feet; thence S.03°19'00"W., 56.81
feet; thence S.00°19'00"E., 56.81 feet; thence S.03°57'00"E., 56.81 feet;
thence S.08°00'35"E., 53.47 feet; thence S.07°16'03"E., 150.00 feet;
thence S.07°14'56"E., 50.10 feet; thence N.75°05'56"W., 54.69 feet; thence
N.53°30'00"W., 420.00 feet; thence N.36°30'00"E., 481.26 feet to a point
on a curve; thence Northwesterly, 100.61 feet along the arc of a curve to
the right having a radius of 525.00 feet and a central angle of 10°58'50"
(chord bearing N.58°59'25"W., 100.46 feet) to a point of reverse curvature;
thence Westerly, 31.42 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a
radius of 20.00 feet and a central angle of 90°00'00" (chord bearing
S.81°30'00"W., 28.28 feet); thence N.53°30'00"W., 50.00 feet to a point on
a curve; thence Northerly, 31.42 feet along the arc of a curve to the left
having a radius of 20.00 feet and a central angle of 90°00'00" (chord
bearing N.08°30'00"W., 28.28 feet) to a point of tangency; thence
N.53°30'00"W., 110.00 feet to a point of curvature; thence Westerly, 39.27



feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 25.00 feet and a
central angle of 90°00'00" (chord bearing S.81°30'00"W., 35.36 feet);
thence N.53°30'00"W., 124.00 feet; thence N.36°30'00"E., 343.11 feet;
thence N.51°03'00"W., 220.06 feet to a point on a curve; thence
Southwesterly, 14.45 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius
of 4975.00 feet and a central angle of 00°09'59" (chord bearing
S.38°52'00"W., 14.45 feet); thence N.51°12'59"W., 50.00 feet to a point on
a curve; thence Southwesterly, 99.10 feet along the arc of said curve to the
left having a radius of 5025.00 feet and a central angle of 01°07'48" (chord
bearing S.38°13'07"W., 99.10 feet); thence N.54°00'00"W., 405.06 feet;
thence N.49°22'13"W., 50.00 feet to a point on a curve; thence
Northeasterly, 30.30 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius
of 375.00 feet and a central angle of 04°37'47" (chord bearing
N.38°18'53"E., 30.29 feet) to a point of tangency; thence N.36°00'00"E.,
65.70 feet to a point of curvature; thence Northerly, 31.42 feet along the arc
of a curve to the left having a radius of 20.00 feet and a central angle of
90°00'00" (chord bearing N.09°00'00"W., 28.28 feet); thence
N.36°00'00"E., 50.00 feet; thence N.54°00'00"W., 100.00 feet; thence
N.36°00'00"E., 120.00 feet; thence N.02°16'49"E., 454.06 feet; thence
N.65°00'00"W., 268.87 feet; thence N.20°30'30"W., 63.02 feet; thence
N.47°54'44"W., 119.65 feet; thence N.75°18'58"W., 60.03 feet; thence
S.84°02'47"W., 79.70 feet; thence N.37°09'26"W., 29.30 feet; thence
N.04°43'58"E., 20.68 feet; thence N.25°01'33"E., 243.64 feet to a point on
a curve; thence Westerly, 355.86 feet along the arc of a curve to the right
having a radius of 1262.00 feet and a central angle of 16°09'23" (chord
bearing N.69°27'29"W., 354.69 feet) to a point of tangency; thence
N.61°22'47"W., 80.00 feet to a point on the aforesaid Easterly boundary of
the 130.00 foot wide Railroad right-of-way for C.S.X. Transportation, Inc.;
thence along said Easterly boundary of the 130.00 foot wide Railroad right-
of-way for C.S.X. Transportation, Inc., N.28°37'13"E., 124.00 feet to the
POINT OF BEGINNING.

Containing 68.155 acres, more or less.
TOGETHER with the following described parcel:
PHASE E

COMMENCE at the Northeast corner of said Section 34, run thence along
the East boundary of said Section 34, the following two (2) courses: 1)
S.00°33'49"W., 1580.26 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING; 2) continue
S.00°33'49"W., 1098.29 feet to the Northeast corner of WATERSET WOLF
CREEK PHASE F, according to the plat thereof as recorded in Plat Book 147,
Pages 243 through 261 inclusive, of the Public Records of Hillsborough



County, Florida; thence along the Northerly boundary of said WATERSET
WOLF CREEK PHASE F, the following eleven (11) courses: 1) WEST, 530.85
feet; 2) S.32°59'46"W., 1019.41 feet; 3) N.31°10'02"W., 471.99 feet; 4)
N.85°11'27"W., 188.66 feet to a point on a curve; 5) Northeasterly, 29.02
feet along the arc of a curve to the right having a radius of 25.00 feet and a
central angle of 66°30'40" (chord bearing N.56°25'41"E., 27.42 feet); 6)
N.00°18'58"W., 50.00 feet; 7) S.89°41'02"W., 0.97 feet to a point of
curvature; 8) Northwesterly, 35.01 feet along the arc of a curve to the right
having a radius of 25.00 feet and a central angle of 80°14'30" (chord
bearing N.50°11'43"W., 32.22 feet) to a point of reverse curvature; 9)
Northwesterly, 204.64 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a
radius of 270.00 feet and a central angle of 43°25'32" (chord bearing
N.31°47'14"W., 199.77 feet) to a point of tangency; 10) N.53°30'00"W.,
35.68 feet to a point of curvature; 11) Northerly, 39.27 feet along the arc of
a curve to the right having a radius of 25.00 feet and a central angle of
90°00'00" (chord bearing N.08°30'00"W., 35.36 feet) to a point of tangency
on the Southeasterly boundary of WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE G2 AND
30TH STREET PHASE G2, according to the plat thereof, as recorded in Plat
Book 146, Pages 257 through 283 inclusive, of the Public Records of
Hillsborough County, Florida; thence along said Southeasterly boundary of
said WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE G2 AND 30TH STREET PHASE G2,
N.36°30'00"E., 1113.00 feet to the Southeast corner of the right-of-way for
30TH STREET NE, according to the plat of WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE
G1 AND 30TH STREET PHASE G1, as recorded in Plat Book 144, Pages 184
through 201 inclusive, of the Public Records of Hillsborough County, Florida;
thence along the Southeasterly boundary of said WATERSET WOLF CREEK
PHASE G1 AND 30TH STREET PHASE G1, continue N.36°30'00"E., 570.00
feet to a point of cusp; thence Southerly, 39.27 feet along the arc of a curve
to the left having a radius of 25.00 feet and a central angle of 90°00'00"
(chord bearing S.08°30'00"E., 35.36 feet) to a point of tangency; thence
S.53°30'00"E., 132.00 feet to a point of curvature; thence Easterly, 31.36
feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 50.00 feet and a
central angle of 35°56'11" (chord bearing S.71°28'06"E., 30.85 feet) to a
point of tangency; thence S.89°26'11"E., 260.09 feet; thence
S.70°18'01"E., 15.69 feet; thence EAST, 254.84 feet to the POINT OF
BEGINNING.

Containing 41.397 acres, more or less.
ALTOGETHER Containing 109.552 acres, more or less.
AMI-WSN-WS-159

P:\Waterset\CDD\South CDD\2025 ASSESSMENT AREA (C1-E-H1)\WSET-
SOUTH 2025-CDD-ASSESS-DS.doc



WFS July 31, 2025

Ph-C1&H1-Closure = N.01°08'00"W. , 0.0074



Tab 4



RESOLUTION 2026-01
[MASTER DEBT ASSESSMENT LEVY RESOLUTION — BOUNDARY AMENDMENT PARCEL]

A RESOLUTION MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS; AUTHORIZING A CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENT PLAN; ADOPTING AN ENGINEER’S REPORT; PROVIDING
AN ESTIMATED COST OF IMPROVEMENTS; ADOPTING AN ASSESSMENT
REPORT; EQUALIZING, APPROVING, CONFIRMING AND LEVYING DEBT
ASSESSMENTS; ADDRESSING THE FINALIZATION OF SPECIAL
ASSESSMENTS; ADDRESSING THE PAYMENT OF DEBT ASSESSMENTS
AND THE METHOD OF COLLECTION; PROVIDING FOR THE ALLOCATION
OF DEBT ASSESSMENTS AND TRUE-UP PAYMENTS; ADDRESSING
GOVERNMENT PROPERTY, AND TRANSFERS OF PROPERTY TO UNITS OF
LOCAL, STATE AND FEDERAL GOVERNMENT; AUTHORIZING AN
ASSESSMENT NOTICE; AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS
AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Waterset South Community Development District (“District”) is a local unit of
special-purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes; and

WHEREAS, on September 13, 2022, and after notice and a public hearing, the District’s Board of
Supervisors adopted Resolution 2022-30 and determined to undertake, install, plan, establish, construct
or reconstruct, enlarge or extend, equip, acquire, operate, and/or maintain the District’s overall capital
improvement plan (“Project”) as described in the Master Report of District Engineer, Master Capital
Improvement Plan, dated August 2022; and

WHEREAS, as part of Resolution 2022-30, the District determined that it is in the best interest of
the District to pay for all or a portion of the cost of the Project by the levy of special assessments (“Debt
Assessments”) using the methodology set forth in that Master Special Assessment Allocation Report,
dated August 9, 2022; and

WHEREAS, on February 11, 2025, and at the request of the District’s Board of Supervisors,
Hillsborough County adopted Ordinance No. 25-9, expanding the District’s boundaries to include a
“Boundary Amendment Parcel;” and

WHEREAS, in order to account for the Boundary Amendment Parcel as part of the Project, the
District’s Engineer has now prepared its District Engineer’s Report, Supplement to Master Capital
Improvement Plan, dated July 17, 2025 (together with the Master Report of District Engineer, Master
Capital Improvement Plan, dated August 2022, the “Engineer’s Report”), and attached hereto as Exhibit
A, and the District’s Assessment Consultant has now prepared its First Amendment to Master Special
Assessment Allocation Report, dated July 17, 2025 (together with the Master Special Assessment
Allocation Report, dated August 9, 2022, the “Assessment Report”), and attached hereto as Exhibit B; and

WHEREAS, the District now desires to levy the Debt Assessments on the Boundary Amendment
Parcel, which is part of the District’s Project as set forth in Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, the District’s Board of Supervisors (“Board”) has noticed and conducted a public
hearing pursuant to Chapters 170, 190 and 197, Florida Statutes, relating to the imposition, levy, collection

4939-0448-4448.2



and enforcement of such assessments on the Boundary Amendment Parcel, and now desires to adopt a
resolution imposing and levying such assessments as set forth herein.

1.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF
THE WATERSET SOUTH COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AS
FOLLOWS:

AUTHORITY. This Resolution is adopted pursuant to Chapters 170, 190 and 197, Florida

Statutes, including without limitation, Section 170.08, Florida Statutes. The recitals stated above are
incorporated herein; are adopted by the Board as true and correct statements; and are further declared
to be findings made and determined by the Board.

2.

4939-0448-4448.2

FINDINGS. The Board further finds and determines as follows:
The Capital Improvement Plan

The District is authorized by Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, to finance, fund, plan,
establish, acquire, install, equip, operate, extend, construct, or reconstruct roadways,
underground and street lighting electrical system, wastewater collection, water
distribution system, reclaimed water distribution system, stormwater management,
earthwork improvements, 19" Avenue improvements, landscape, hardscape, irrigation,
recreational facilities, primary amenity center, and other infrastructure projects and
services necessitated by the development of, and serving lands within, the District; and

OnJuly 17, 2025, and pursuant to Section 170.03, Florida Statutes, among other laws, the
Board adopted Resolution 2025-12 (“Declaring Resolution”), and in doing so determined
to undertake a capital improvement plan to undertake, install, plan, establish, construct
or reconstruct, enlarge or extend, equip, acquire, operate and/or maintain the District’s
infrastructure improvements planned for the Project; and

The Project is described in the Declaring Resolution and Engineer’s Report, and the plans
and specifications for the Project are on file in the offices of the District Manager at c/o
Rizzetta & Company, Inc., 3434 Colwell Avenue, Suite 200, Tampa, Florida 33614 (“District
Records Office”); and

The Debt Assessment Process

Also as part of the Declaring Resolution, the Board expressed an intention to issue bonds,
notes or other specific financing mechanisms to provide a portion of the funds needed
for the Project, and further declared its intention to defray the whole or any part of the
expense of the Project by levying the Debt Assessments on specially benefited property
within all of the District, including the Boundary Amendment Parcel (together,
“Assessment Area”); and

The Declaring Resolution was adopted in compliance with the requirements of Section
170.03, Florida Statutes, and prior to the time it was adopted, the requirements of Section
170.04, Florida Statutes, had been met; and



4939-0448-4448.2

As directed by the Declaring Resolution, said Declaring Resolution was published as
required by Section 170.05, Florida Statutes, and a copy of the publisher’s affidavit of
publication is on file with the Secretary of the District; and

As directed by the Declaring Resolution, the Board caused to be made a preliminary
assessment roll as required by Section 170.06, Florida Statutes; and

As required by Section 170.07, Florida Statutes, and as part of the Declaring Resolution,
the Board fixed the time and place of a public hearing at which owners of the property to
be assessed and other persons interested therein could appear before the Board and be
heard as to (i) the propriety and advisability of making the improvements on the Boundary
Amendment Parcel, (ii) the cost thereof, (iii) the manner of payment therefore, and (iv)
the amount thereof to be assessed against each specially benefited property or parcel,
and the Board further authorized publication of notice of such public hearing and
individual mailed notice of such public hearing in accordance with Chapters 170, 190, and
197, Florida Statutes; and

Notice of the scheduled public hearing was given by publication and also by mail as
required by Sections 170.07 and 197.3632, Florida Statutes, and affidavits as to such
publication and mailings are on file in the office of the Secretary of the District; and

On September 11, 2025, and at the time and place specified in the Declaring Resolution,
the Board conducted such public hearing and heard and considered all complaints and
testimony as to the matters described above; the Board further met as an “Equalization
Board;” and the Board has made such modifications in the preliminary assessment roll as
it deems necessary, just and right in the making of the final assessment roll; and

Equalization Board Additional Findings

Having considered the estimated costs of the Project, the estimated financing costs and
all comments and evidence presented at such public hearing, the Board further finds and
determines that:

i. Itis necessary to the public health, safety and welfare and in the best interests of
the District that: (1) the District provide the Project as set forth in the Engineer’s
Report; (2) the cost of such Project be assessed against the lands specially
benefited by such Project, and within the Assessment Area; and (3) the District
issue bonds, notes or other specific financing mechanisms to provide funds for
such purposes pending the receipt of such Debt Assessments; and

ii. The provision of said Project, the levying of the Debt Assessments, and the sale
and issuance of such bonds, notes, or other specific financing mechanisms serve
a proper, essential, and valid public purpose and are in the best interests of the
District, its landowners and residents; and

iii. The estimated costs of the Project are as specified in the Engineer’s Report and
Assessment Report (defined below), and the amount of such costs is reasonable
and proper; and



iv. It is reasonable, proper, just and right to assess the cost of such Project against
the properties specially benefited thereby in the Assessment Area, using the
method determined by the Board and set forth in the Assessment Report, which
results in the Debt Assessments set forth on the final assessment roll; and

v. The Project benefits all developable property within the Assessment Area; and

vi. Accordingly, the Debt Assessments as set forth in the Assessment Report
constitute a special benefit to all parcels of real property listed on said final
assessment roll, and the benefit, in the case of each such parcel, will be equal to
or in excess of the Debt Assessments imposed thereon, as set forth in Exhibit B;
and

vii. All developable property within the Assessment Area is deemed to be benefited
by the Project, and the Debt Assessments will be allocated in accordance with the
Assessment Report at Exhibit B; and

viii. The Debt Assessments are fairly and reasonably allocated across the benefitted
property, as set forth in Exhibit B; and

ix. Itisin the best interests of the District that the Debt Assessments be paid and
collected as herein provided; and

X. In order to provide funds with which to pay the costs of the Project which are to
be assessed against the benefited properties, pending the collection of the Debt
Assessments, it is necessary for the District to issue revenue bonds, notes or other
specific financing mechanisms, including refunding bonds (together, “Bonds”).

3. AUTHORIZATION FOR PROJECT; ADOPTION OF ENGINEER’S REPORT. The Engineer’s
Report identifies and describes the infrastructure improvements to be financed in part with the Bonds
and sets forth the costs of the Project. The District hereby confirms that the Project serves a proper,
essential, and valid public purpose. The use of the Engineer’s Report in connection with the sale of the
Bonds is hereby authorized, approved and ratified, and the proper officers, employees and/or agents of
the District are hereby authorized and directed to take such further action as may be necessary or
desirable to cause the same to be made.

4, ESTIMATED COST OF IMPROVEMENTS. The total estimated costs of the Project and the
costs to be paid by the Debt Assessments on all specially benefited property are set forth in Exhibits A
and B, respectively, hereto.

5. ADOPTION OF ASSESSMENT REPORT. The Assessment Report setting forth the allocation
of Debt Assessments to the benefitted lands within the Assessment Area is hereby approved, adopted,
and confirmed. The District ratifies its use in connection with the sale of the Bonds.

6. EQUALIZATION, APPROVAL, CONFIRMATION AND LEVY OF DEBT ASSESSMENTS. The
Debt Assessments imposed on the parcels specially benefited by the Project within the Assessment Area,
all as specified in the final assessment roll set forth in Exhibit B, attached hereto, are hereby equalized,

4
4939-0448-4448 2



approved, confirmed and levied. Immediately following the adoption of this Resolution, the lien of Debt
Assessments as reflected in Exhibit B, attached hereto, shall be recorded by the Secretary of the District
in the District’s “Improvement Lien Book.” The Debt Assessments against each respective parcel shown
on such final assessment roll and interest, costs, and penalties thereon, as hereafter provided, shall be
and shall remain a legal, valid and binding first lien on such parcel, coequal with the lien of all state, county,
district, municipal or other governmental taxes and superior in dignity to all other liens, titles, and claims.

7.

Supplemental Assessment Resolutions for Bonds. The lien for the Debt Assessments
established hereunder shall be inchoate until the District issues Bonds. In connection with
the issuance of any particular series of the Bonds, the District may adopt, without the
need for further public hearing, a supplemental assessment resolution establishing
specific Debt Assessments, in one or more separately enforceable Debt Assessment liens,
securing such Bonds. Such subsequent resolutions shall be adopted at a noticed meeting
of the District, and shall set forth the actual amounts financed, costs of issuance, expected
costs of collection, and the total amount of the assessments pledged to that issue, which
amount shall be consistent with the lien imposed by this Resolution. Among other things,
the supplemental assessment resolutions may provide for the issuance of multiple series
of Bonds each secured by one or more different assessment areas within the Assessment
Area.

Adjustments to Debt Assessments. The District may, by subsequent resolution, adjust the
acreage assigned to particular parcel identification numbers listed on the final assessment
roll to reflect accurate apportionment of acreage amongst individual parcel identification
numbers. The District may make any other such acreage and boundary adjustments to
parcels listed on the final assessment roll as may be necessary and in the best interests of
the District, as determined by the Board by subsequent resolution. Any such adjustment
in the assessment roll shall be consistent with the requirements of law.

Contributions. In connection with the issuance of a series of the Bonds, the project
developer may request that any related Debt Assessments be reduced for certain product
types. To accomplish any such requested reduction, and pursuant to the terms of an
applicable acquisition agreement, and this resolution, the developer will agree to provide
a contribution of infrastructure, work product, or land based on appraised value,
comprising a portion of the Project and to meet the minimum requirements set forth in
the Assessment Report, if any. Any such contributions shall not be eligible for payment
under the Bonds.

Impact Fee Credits. The District may or may not be entitled to impact fee credits as a
result of the development of the Project, based on applicable laws and/or agreements
governing impact fee credits. Unless otherwise addressed by supplemental assessment
resolution, the proceeds from any impact fee credits received may be used in the District’s
sole discretion as an offset for any acquisition of any portion of the Project (e.g., land
based on appraised value, infrastructure and/or work product), for completion of the
Project, or otherwise used against the outstanding indebtedness of any debt issuance that
funded the improvement giving rise to the credits.

FINALIZATION OF DEBT ASSESSMENTS. When a project has been constructed or

otherwise provided to the satisfaction of the Board, the Board shall adopt a resolution accepting the same

4939-0448-4448.2



and determining the actual costs (including financing costs) thereof, as required by Sections 170.08 and
170.09, Florida Statutes. Pursuant to Section 170.08, Florida Statutes, the District shall credit to each Debt
Assessment the difference, if any, between the Debt Assessment as hereby made, approved and
confirmed and the actual costs incurred in completing the applicable project. In making such credits, no
credit shall be given for bond, note or other specific financing mechanism costs, capitalized interest,
funded reserves or bond or other discounts. Such credits, if any, shall be entered in the Improvement Lien

Book.

4939-0448-4448.2

PAYMENT OF DEBT ASSESSMENTS AND METHOD OF COLLECTION.

Payment. The Debt Assessments, as further set forth in each supplemental assessment
resolution, and securing the issuance of each series of the Bonds, may be paid in not more
than thirty (30) yearly installments of principal and interest — beginning upon the issuance
of the particular series of the Bonds (and after taking into account any capitalized interest
periods), provided, however, that the Board shall at any time make such adjustments by
resolution, and at a noticed meeting of the Board, to that payment schedule as may be
necessary and in the best interests of the District to account for changes in long and short
term debt as actually issued by the District.

Prepayment. Subject to the provisions of any supplemental assessment resolution, any
owner of property subject to the Debt Assessments may, at its option, pre-pay the entire
amount of the Debt Assessment any time, or a portion of the amount of the Debt
Assessment up to two times, plus accrued interest to the next succeeding interest
payment date (or the second succeeding interest payment date if such prepayment is
made within forty-five (45) calendar days before an interest payment date (or such other
time as set forth in the supplemental indenture for the applicable series of bonds secured
by the Debt Assessments in question)), attributable to the property subject to Debt
Assessments owned by such owner. Prepayment of Debt Assessments does not entitle
the property owner to any discounts for early payment. If authorized by a supplemental
assessment resolution, the District may grant a discount equal to all or a part of the
payee’s proportionate share of the cost of the Project consisting of bond financing costs,
such as capitalized interest, funded reserves, and bond discount included in the estimated
cost of the Project, upon payment in full of any Debt Assessment during such period prior
to the time such financing costs are incurred as may be specified by the District.

Uniform Method; Alternatives. The District may elect to use the method of collecting
Debt Assessments authorized by Sections 197.3632 and 197.3635, Florida Statutes
(“Uniform Method”). The District has heretofore taken all required actions to comply
with Sections 197.3632 and 197.3635, Florida Statutes. Such Debt Assessments may be
subject to all of the collection provisions of Chapter 197, Florida Statutes.
Notwithstanding the above, in the event the Uniform Method of collecting its Debt
Assessments is not available to the District in any year, or if determined by the District to
be in its best interests, and subject to the terms of any applicable trust indenture, the
Debt Assessments may be collected as is otherwise permitted by law. In particular, the
District may, in its sole discretion, collect Debt Assessments by directly billing landowners
and enforcing said collection in any manner authorized by law. Any prejudgment interest
on delinquent assessments that are directly billed shall accrue at the applicable rate of
any bonds or other debt instruments secured by the Debt Assessments. The decision to



4939-0448-4448.2

collect Debt Assessments by any particular method — e.g., on the tax roll or by direct bill
— does not mean that such method will be used to collect Debt Assessments in future
years, and the District reserves the right in its sole discretion to select collection methods
in any given year, regardless of past practices.

Uniform Method Agreements Authorized. For each year the District uses the Uniform
Method, the District shall enter into an agreement with the County Tax Collector who may
notify each owner of a lot or parcel within the District of the amount of the special
assessment, including interest thereon, in the manner provided in Section 197.3635,
Florida Statutes.

Re-amortization. Any particular lien of the Debt Assessments shall be subject to re-
amortization where the applicable series of Bonds is subject to re-amortization pursuant
to the applicable trust indenture and where the context allows.

ALLOCATION OF DEBT ASSESSMENTS; APPLICATION OF TRUE-UP PAYMENTS.

At such time as parcels of land, or portions thereof, are included in a plat or site plan, it
shall be an express condition of the lien established by this Resolution that, prior to
County approval, any and all plats or site plans for any portion of the lands within the
District, as the District’s boundaries may be amended from time to time, shall be
presented to the District Manager for review. As parcels of land, or portions thereof, are
included in a plat or site plan, the District Manager shall review the plat or site plan and
cause the Debt Assessments securing each series of Bonds to be reallocated to the units
being included in the plat or site plan and the remaining property in accordance with
Exhibit B, and cause such reallocation to be recorded in the District’s Improvement Lien
Book.

Pursuant to the Assessment Report, attached hereto as Exhibit B, and which terms are
incorporated herein, there may be required from time to time certain true-up payments.
When a plat or site plan is presented to the District, the District Manager shall review the
plat or site plan to determine whether, taking into account the plat or site plan, there is a
net shortfall in the overall principal amount of assessments reasonably able to be
assigned to benefitted lands within the Assessment Area. Such determination shall be
made based on the language in this Resolution and/or the tests or other methods set
forth in Exhibit B (if any), or any tests or methods set forth in a supplemental assessment
resolution and corresponding assessment report. If the overall principal amount of
assessments reasonably cannot be assigned, or is not reasonably expected to be assigned,
as set forth in more detail in and subject to the terms of Exhibit B (or any supplemental
resolution and report, as applicable), to the platted and site planned lands as well as the
undeveloped lands, then a debt reduction payment (“True-Up Payment”) in the amount
of such shortfall shall become due and payable that tax year by the landowner(s) of record
of the land subject to the proposed plat or site plan and of the remaining undeveloped
lands, in addition to any regular assessment installment. The District’s review shall be
limited solely to this function and the enforcement of the lien established by this
Resolution. In the event a True-Up Payment is due and unpaid, the lien established herein
for the True-Up Payment amount shall remain in place until such time as the True-Up
Payment is made. The District shall record all True-Up Payments in its Improvement Lien



Book.

c. In connection with any true-up determination, affected landowner(s) may request that
such true-up determination be deferred because the remaining undeveloped lands are
able to support the development of all of the originally planned units within the
Assessment Area. To support the request, the affected landowner(s) shall provide the
following evidence for the District’s consideration: a) proof of the amount of entitlements
remaining on the undeveloped lands within the Assessment Area, b) a revised overall
development plan showing the number and type of units reasonably planned for the
remainder of the development, c) evidence of allowable zoning conditions that would
enable those entitlements to be placed in accordance with the revised development plan,
and d) documentation prepared by a licensed engineer that shows the feasibility of
implementing the proposed development plan. Any deferment shall be in the District’s
reasonable discretion.

d. The foregoing is based on the District's understanding that the community would be
developed with the type and number of units set forth in Exhibit B, on the developable
acres. However, more than the stated number of units may be developed. In no event
shall the District collect Debt Assessments pursuant to this Resolution in excess of the
total debt service related to the Project, including all costs of financing and interest. The
District recognizes that such things as regulatory requirements and market conditions
may affect the timing and scope of the development in the District. If the strict application
of the true-up methodology to any assessment reallocation pursuant to this paragraph
would result in Debt Assessments collected in excess of the District's total debt service
obligations for the Project, the Board shall by resolution take appropriate action to
equitably reallocate the Debt Assessments.

e. Asset forth in any supplemental assessment resolution and/or supplemental assessment
report for a specific series of Bonds, the District may assign a specific debt service
assessment lien comprising a portion of the Debt Assessments to an assessment area
comprised of specific unplatted lands which are less than all of the unplatted lands in the
Assessment Area, and, accordingly, any related true-up determinations may be limited to
determining whether the planned units for such specified lands in the assessment area
have been and/or will be developed.

10. GOVERNMENT PROPERTY; TRANSFERS OF PROPERTY TO UNITS OF LOCAL, STATE, AND
FEDERAL GOVERNMENT. Real property owned by units of local, state, and federal governments, or
similarly exempt entities, shall not be subject to the Debt Assessments without specific consent thereto.
If at any time, any real property on which Debt Assessments are imposed by this Resolution is sold or
otherwise transferred to a unit of local, state, or federal government (without consent of such
governmental unit to the imposition of Debt Assessments thereon), or similarly exempt entity, all future
unpaid Debt Assessments for such tax parcel shall become due and payable immediately prior to such
transfer without any further action of the District.

11. ASSESSMENT NOTICE. The District’s Secretary is hereby directed to record a general

Notice of Assessments in the Official Records of the County in which the District is located, which shall be
updated from time to time in a manner consistent with changes in the boundaries of the District.

4939-0448-4448.2



12. SEVERABILITY. If any section or part of a section of this Resolution is declared invalid or
unconstitutional, the validity, force and effect of any other section or part of a section of this Resolution
shall not thereby be affected or impaired unless it clearly appears that such other section or part of a
section of this Resolution is wholly or necessarily dependent upon the section or part of a section so held
to be invalid or unconstitutional.

13. CONFLICTS. All resolutions or parts thereof in conflict herewith are, to the extent of such
conflict, superseded and repealed.

14. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Resolution shall become effective upon its adoption.

[CONTINUED ON FOLLOWING PAGE]

4939-0448-4448.2



APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 11'" DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2025.

ATTEST: WATERSET SOUTH COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Secretary / Assistant Secretary Chairperson / Vice Chairperson
Exhibit A: District Engineer’s Report, Supplement to Master Capital Improvement Plan, dated July
17, 2025
Exhibit B: First Amendment to Master Special Assessment Allocation Report, dated July 17, 2025
10

4939-0448-4448.2



Tab 5



This space reserved for use by the Clerk of

the Circuit Court
This instrument was prepared by and
upon recording should be returned to:

Alyssa Willson, Esq.
KUTAK ROCK LLP
107 West College Avenue
Tallahassee, Florida 32301

WATERSET SOUTH COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT’S
NOTICE OF SERIES 2025 SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the Board of Supervisors of the Waterset South
Community Development District (the “District”) in accordance with Chapters 170, 190, and
197, Florida Statutes, adopted Resolution Nos. 2022-27, 2022-28, 2022-30, 2025-12, 2025-
and 2025-__ (collectively, the “Assessment Resolutions”), providing for, levying and setting
forth the terms of non-ad valorem special assessments constituting a governmental lien on
certain real property within the boundaries of the District that are specially benefitted by the
improvements of the 2025 Project as described in the District’s adopted Supplemental District
Engineer’s Report, Series 2025 Project (2025 Assessment Area) dated July 31, 2025, which
supplemented the Waterset South Community Development District, District Engineer’s Report
Supplement to the Master Capital Improvement Plan dated July 17, 2025 which supplemented
the Master Report of District Engineer, Master Capital Improvement Plan dated August 2022
(the “Engineer’s Report”).

To finance the costs of the Series 2025 Project, the District issued Waterset South
Community Development District (Hillsborough County, Florida) Special Assessment Revenue
Bonds, Series 2025, which are secured by the non-ad valorem assessments levied by the
Assessment Resolutions (the “Series 2025 Assessments”), as described in the Master Special

Assessment Allocation Report, dated August 9, 2022, as amended by the First Amendment to



Master Special Assessment Allocation Report, dated July 17, 2025 and the Final Supplemental

Special Assessment Allocation Report, dated , 2025 (together, the “2025

Assessment Report”). The legal description of the lands on which said Series 2025 Assessments
are imposed is attached to this Notice as Exhibit A. Copies of the Engineer’s Report and the
Assessment Resolutions may be obtained by contacting the District at:
Waterset South Community Development District
c/o Rizzetta & Company, Inc.
3434 Colwell Avenue, Suite 200
Tampa, Florida 33614
Ph.: 813-933-5571

The Series 2025 Assessments provided for in the Assessment Resolutions were legally
and validly determined and levied in accordance with all applicable requirements of Florida law,
and the Series 2025 Assessments constitute and will at all relevant times in the future constitute,
legal, valid and binding first liens on the land against which assessed until paid, coequal with the
lien of all state, county, district and municipal taxes, and superior in dignity to all other liens,
titles and claims.

The District is a special-purpose form of local government established pursuant to and
governed by Chapter 190, Florida Statutes. Pursuant to Section 190.048, Florida Statutes, you
are hereby notified that: THE WATERSET SOUTH COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
DISTRICT MAY IMPOSE AND LEVY TAXES OR ASSESSMENTS, OR BOTH TAXES
AND ASSESSMENTS, ON THIS PROPERTY. THESE TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS
PAY FOR THE CONSTRUCTION, OPERATION, AND MAINTENANCE COSTS OF
CERTAIN PUBLIC FACILITIES AND SERVICES OF THE DISTRICT AND ARE SET
ANNUALLY BY THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE DISTRICT. THESE TAXES AND

ASSESSMENTS ARE IN ADDITION TO COUNTY AND OTHER LOCAL



GOVERNMENTAL TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS AND ALL OTHER TAXES AND
ASSESSMENTS PROVIDED FOR BY LAW. THE LIEN FOR THE SERIES 2025
ASSESSMENTS IS STATUTORY AND NO FILING IS NECESSARY IN ORDER TO
PERFECT OR PROVIDE RECORD NOTICE THEREOF. THIS NOTICE IS FOR
INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES. IN ADDITION TO THE MINUTES, RECORDS AND
OTHER MATERIAL OF THE DISTRICT AVAILABLE FROM THE DISTRICT, THIS
ALSO CONSTITUTES A LIEN OF RECORD FOR PURPOSES OF SECTION 197.573
OF THE FLORIDA STATUTES AND ALL OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF

THE FLORIDA STATUTES AND OTHER APPLICABLE LAW.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Notice has been executed as of the day of

, 2025, and recorded in the Official Records of Hillsborough County, Florida.

WATERSET SOUTH COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Print Name:
Address: Amanda King

Chairperson, Board of Supervisors
Street

City, State, Zip

Print Name:

Address:

Street

City, State, Zip

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of O physical presence or O
online notarization, this day of , 2025, by Amanda King, Chairperson of
the Board of Supervisors of the Waterset South Community Development District, who is [__]
personally know to me or [__] has produced as identification.

(official notary signature)
[notary stamp] Name:




Exhibit A

Legal Description of District Lands

WATERSET SOUTH
2025 CDD ASSESSMENT AREA

DESCRIPTION: Two (2) parcels of land lying in Sections 27, 28 and 34,
Township 31 South, Range 19 East, Hillsborough County, Florida and being
more particularly described as follows:

PHASES C1 AND H1

COMMERNCE at the Mortheast corner of the Southwest 1/4 of said Section
27, also being a point on the Northerly boundary of WATERSET WOLF CREEK
PHASES A AND D1 AND WATERSET BOULEVARD TECO EXTENSION AMD
COVINGTON GARDEN DRIVE TECO EXTENSION, according to the plat
thereof, as recorded in Plat Book 142, Pages 12 through 31 inclusive, of the
Public Records of Hillsborough County, Florida, run thence along the North
boundary of the South 1/2 of said Section 27, the following two (2) courses:
1) along said Mortherly boundary of WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASES A AND
D1 AND WATERSET BOULEVARD TECO EXTENSION AND COVINGTONM
GARDEN DRIVE TECO EXTENSION, N.BS?16'50"W., 661.15 feet to the
Mortheast corner of WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE B, according to the plat
thereof, as recorded in Plat Book 146, Pages 7 through 28 inclusive, of the
Public Records of Hillsborough County, Florida; 2) along the Northerly
boundary of said WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE B, continue
MN.89°16°50"W., 1328.78 feet to the Northwest corner of said WATERSET
WOLF CREEK PHASE B, also being on point on the Easterly boundary of the
130.00 foot wide Railroad right-of-way for C.5.X. Transportation, Inc.
(formerly Atlantic Coast Line Railroad and Seaboard Coast Line Railroad) per
Right-of Way and Track Map V19 FLA (4); thence along the Westerly
boundary of said WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE B and said Easterly
boundary of the 130.00 foot wide Railroad right-of-way for C.5.X.
Transportation, Inc., S.28%°37'13"W., 1763.59 feet to the Southwest corner
of said WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE B, also being the POINT OF
BEGINNING; thence along the Southerly boundary of said WATERSET
WOLF CREEK PHASE B, the following six (6) courses: 1) 5.61%22'47"E.,
80.00 feet to a point of curvature; 2) Easterly, 474.72 feet along the arc of a
curve to the left having a radius of 1138.00 feet and a central angle of
23°54'04" (chord bearing 5.73°19'50"E., 471.29 feet) to a point of reverse
curvature; 3) Easterly, 832.86 feet along the arc of a curve to the right
having a radius of 2862.00 feet and a central angle of 16°40'24" {chord
bearing 5.76°56'40"E., 829.92 feet); 4) 5.21°23'33"W., 124.00 feet to a
point on a curve; 5) Southeasterly, 721.95 feet along the arc of said curve
to the right having a radius of 2738.00 feet and a central angle of 15°06'27"
(chord bearing 5.61°03'14"E., 719.86 feet) to a point of tangency; &)
5.53°30'00"E., 66.14 feet to a point on the Westerly boundary of WATERSET



WOLF CREEK. PHASE D2, according to the plat thereof, as recorded in Plat
Book 143, Pages 145 through 160 inclusive, of the Public Records of
Hillsborough County, Florida; thence along said Westerly boundary of
WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE D2, the following four (4) courses: 1)
continue 5.53°30'00"E., 28.28 feet; 2) 5.01°57'27"E., 84.57 feet; 3)
5.19°955'59"W., 9.32 feet; 4) 5.36°30°00"W., 296.36 feet; thence along the
Southerly boundary of said WATERSET WOLF CREEK. FHASE D2, the
following six (6) courses: 1) 5.53°30°00"E., 124.00 feet; 2) N.36°30'00"E.,
322.41 feet; 3) N.82°20'25"E., 75.95 feet to a point of curvature; 4)
Easterly, 30.37 feet along the arc of a curve to the right having a radius of
50.00 feet and a central angle of 34°48'19" (chord bearing 5.80°15'25"E.,
29.91 feet) to a point of tangency; 5) 5.62°51'16"E., 211.89 feet to a point
of curvature; &) Southeasterly, 96.62 feet along the arc of a curve to the left
having a radius of 1632.00 feet and a central angle of 03°23'31" (chord
bearing 5.64%33'01"E., 96.60 feet) to the Morthwest corner of WATERSET
WOLF CREEK PHASE G2 AND 30TH STREET PHASE G2, according to the plat
thereof, as recorded in Plat Book 146, Pages 257 through 283 inclusive, of
the Public Records of Hillsborough County, Florida; thence along the
Westerly boundary of said WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE G2 AND 30TH
STREET PHASE G2, the following four (4) courses: 1) 5.23%45'00"W., 338.21
feet; 2) 5.11°00'00"W., 710.98 feet; 3) 5.36°30'00"W., 100.00 feet; 4)
S.05°00'00"W., 390.52 feet; thence N.74°32'40"W., 439.45 feet to a point
on a curve; thence Northerly, 4.49 feet along the arc of a curve to the right
having a radius of 775.00 feet and a central angle of 00?19'55" (chord
bearing N.15°37'18"E., 4.49 feet) to a point of reverse curvature; thence
Morthwesterly, 30.28 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius
of 20.00 feet and a central angle of 86°45'18" {chord bearing
N.2793524"W., 27.47 feet) to a point of tangency; thence N.70°58°03"W.,
102.89 feet; thence 5.14°13'00"W., 78.77 feet; thence 5.10°35'00"W.,
56.81 feet; thence S.06°57'00"W., 56.81 feet; thence 5.03°19'00"W., 56.81
feet; thence 5.00°19'00"E., 56.81 feet; thence 5.03°57'00"E., 56.81 feet;
thence S5.08°00'35"E., 53.47 feet; thence 5.07°16'03"E., 150.00 feet;
thence 5.07°14'56"E., 50.10 feet; thence N.75°05'56"W., 54.69 feet; thence
MN.53230°00"W., 420.00 feet; thence N.36°30°00"E., 481.26 feet to a point
on a curve; thence Northwesterly, 100.61 feet along the arc of a curve to
the right having a radius of 525.00 feet and a central angle of 10°58'50"
(chord bearing N.58°59'25"W., 100.46 feet) to a point of reverse curvature;
thence Westerly, 31.42 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a
radius of 20.00 feet and a central angle of 90°00'00" (chord bearing
S.81°30'00"W., 28.28 feet); thence N.53°30'00"W., 50.00 feet to a point on
a curve; thence Mortherly, 31.42 feet along the arc of a curve to the left
having a radius of 20.00 feet and a central angle of 90°00'00" (chord
bearing N.08°30'00"W., 28.28 feet) to a point of tangency; thence
MN.53°30°00"W., 110.00 feet to a point of curvature; thence Westerly, 39.27



feat along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 25.00 feet and a
central angle of 90°00'00" (chord bearing 5.81°30°00"W., 35.36 feet);
thence MN.53°30°'00"W., 124.00 feet; thence N.36°30°00"E., 343.11 feet;
thence N.51°03'00"W., 220.06 feet to a point on a curve; thence
Southwesterly, 14.45 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius
of 4975.00 feet and a central angle of 00°09°59" (chord bearing
5.38°52'00"W., 14.45 feet); thence N.51°%12'59"W., 50.00 feet to a point on
a curve; thence Southwesterly, 99.10 feet along the arc of said curve to the
left having a radius of 5025.00 feet and a central angle of 01°07'48" (chord
bearing 5.38%13'07"W., 99.10 feet); thence N.54%00'00"W., 405.06 feet;
thence N.49%22'13"W., 50.00 feet to a point on a curve; thence
Mortheasterly, 30.30 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius
of 375.00 feet and a central angle of 04°37'47" (chord bearing
MN.38°18'53"E., 30.29 feet) to a point of tangency,; thence N.36°00'00"E.,
65.70 feet to a point of curvature; thence Northerly, 31.42 feet along the arc
of a curve to the left having a radius of 20.00 feet and a central angle of
90°00'00" (chord bearing N.09°00'00"W., 28.28 feet); thence
MN.36%00'00"E., 50.00 feet; thence N.54°00°00"W., 100.00 feet; thence
MN.36200°'00"E., 120.00 feet; thence M.02°16'49"E., 454.06 feet; thence
N.65200'00"W., 268.87 feet; thence N.20°30'30"W., 63.02 feet; thence
N.47°54'44"W., 119.65 feet; thence N.75%18'58"W., 60.03 feet; thence
5.84°02'47"W., 79.70 feet; thence N.37°09'26"W., 29.30 feet; thence
MN.04°43'58"E., 20.68 feet; thence N.25°01'33"E., 243.64 feet to a point on
a curve; thence Westerly, 355.86 feet along the arc of a curve to the right
having a radius of 1262.00 feet and a central angle of 16°09'23" {chord
bearing N.69°27'29"W., 354.69 feet) to a peoint of tangency; thence
MN.61222'47"W., 80.00 feet to a point on the aforesaid Easterly boundary of
the 130.00 foot wide Railroad right-of-way for C.5.X. Transportation, Inc.;
thence along said Easterly boundary of the 130.00 foot wide Railroad right-
of-way for C.5.X. Transportation, Inc., N.28°37'13"E., 124.00 feet to the
POINT OF BEGINNING.

Containing 68.155 acres, more or less.
TOGETHER with the following described parcel:
PHASE E

COMMENCE at the Mortheast corner of said Section 34, run thence along
the East boundary of said Section 34, the following two (2) courses: 1)
5.00°33'49"W., 1580.26 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING; 2) continue
5.00°33'49"W., 1098.29 feet to the Northeast corner of WATERSET WOLF
CREEK PHASE F, according to the plat thereof as recorded in Plat Book 147,
Pages 243 through 261 inclusive, of the Public Records of Hillsborough



County, Florida; thence along the Northerly boundary of said WATERSET
WOLF CREEK PHASE F, the following eleven (11) courses: 1) WEST, 530.85
feet; 2) 5.32°59'46"W., 1019.41 feet; 3) N.31°10°02"W., 471.99 feet; 4)
MN.85°11°27"W., 188.66 feet to a peoint on a curve; 5) Northeasterly, 29.02
feet along the arc of a curve to the right having a radius of 25.00 feet and a
central angle of 56°30'40" (chord bearing M.56%25'41"E., 27.42 feet); 6)
MN.00°18'58"W., 50.00 feet; 7) 5.89%41'02"W., 0.97 feet to a point of
curvature; 8) Northwesterly, 35.01 feet along the arc of a curve to the right
having a radius of 25.00 feet and a central angle of 80°14'30" {chord
bearing N.50°11'43"W., 32.22 feet) to a point of reverse curvature; 9)
Northwesterly, 204.64 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a
radius of 270.00 feet and a central angle of 43%25'32" (chord bearing
MN.31°47°14"W., 199.77 feet) to a point of tangency; 10) N.53°30°00"W.,
35.68 feet to a point of curvature; 11) Mortherly, 39.27 feet along the arc of
a curve to the right having a radius of 25.00 feet and a central angle of
90°00'00" (chord bearing N.08°30'00"W., 35.36 feet) to a point of tangency
on the Southeasterly boundary of WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE G2 AND
30TH STREET PHASE G2, according to the plat thereof, as recorded in Plat
Book 146, Pages 257 through 283 inclusive, of the Public Records of
Hillsborough County, Florida, thence along said Southeasterly boundary of
said WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE G2 AND 30TH STREET PHASE G2,
MN.36°30°00"E., 1113.00 feet to the Southeast corner of the right-of-way for
30TH STREET ME, according to the plat of WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE
G1 AND 30TH STREET PHASE G1, as recorded in Plat Book 144, Pages 184
through 201 inclusive, of the Public Records of Hillsborough County, Florida;
thence along the Southeasterly boundary of said WATERSET WOLF CREEK
PHASE G1 AND 30TH STREET PHASE G1, continue N.36°30'00"E., 570.00
feet to a point of cusp; thence Southerly, 39.27 feet along the arc of a curve
to the left having a radius of 25.00 feet and a central angle of 90°00'00"
(chord bearing S.08°30'00"E., 35.36 feet) to a point of tangency; thence
5.53°30'00"E., 132.00 feet to a point of curvature; thence Easterly, 31.36
feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 50.00 feet and a
central angle of 35°56'11" (chord bearing S.71°28'06"E., 30.85 feet) to a
point of tangency; thence 5.89°26'11"E., 260.09 feet; thence
5.70°18'01"E., 15.69 feet; thence EAST, 254.84 feet to the POINT OF
BEGINNING.

Containing 41.397 acres, more or less.
ALTOGETHER Containing 109.552 acres, more or less.
AMI-WSN-WS5-159

P:\Waterset\CDD\South CODDMV2025 ASSESSMENT AREA (C1-E-H1)\WSET-
SOUTH 2025-CDD-AS5ES55-D5.doc



Tab 6



RESOLUTION 2026-02

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE WATERSET SOUTH
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT DIRECTING THE CHAIRMAN AND DISTRICT
STAFF TO REQUEST THE PASSAGE OF AN ORDINANCE BY THE HILLSBOROUGH
COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, AMENDING THE DISTRICT’S
BOUNDARIES, AND AUTHORIZING SUCH OTHER ACTIONS AS ARE NECESSARY IN
FURTHERANCE OF THAT PROCESS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Waterset South Community Development District (“District”) is a unit of
special-purpose government established pursuant to the Uniform Community Development District
Act of 1980, as codified in Chapter 190, Florida Statutes (“Uniform Act”), and Hillsborough County
Ordinance No. 22-19, as amended by Ordinance No. 25-9 (together, the “Ordinance”); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Uniform Act, the District is authorized to construct, acquire, and
maintain infrastructure improvements and services; and

WHEREAS, the District presents consists of 800.206 acres, more or less, as more fully
described in the Ordinance; and

WHEREAS, the District desires to amend its boundaries to be consistent with the legal
description set forth in Exhibit A (“Boundary Amendment”); and

WHEREAS, the Boundary Amendment is in the best interests of the District, and the area of
land within the amended boundaries of the District will continue to be of sufficient size, sufficiently
compact, and sufficiently contiguous to be developable as one functionally related community; and

WHEREAS, the Boundary Amendment of the District’s boundaries will allow the District to
continue to be the best alternative available for delivering community development services and
facilities to the lands within the District, as amended; and

WHEREAS, the Boundary Amendment is not inconsistent with either the State or local
comprehensive plan and will not be incompatible with the capacity and uses of existing local and
regional community development services and facilities; and

WHEREAS, the area of land that will lie in the amended boundaries of the District will continue
to be amenable to separate special district government; and

WHEREAS, in order to seek a Boundary Amendment ordinance pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida
Statutes, the District desires to authorize District staff, including but not limited to legal, engineering,
and managerial staff, to provide such services as are necessary throughout the pendency of the process;
and



WHEREAS, the retention of any necessary consultants and the work to be performed by District
staff may require the expenditure of certain fees, costs, and other expenses by the District as authorized
by the District’s Board of Supervisors (“Board”); and

WHEREAS, the Developer has agreed to provide sufficient funds to the District to reimburse the
District for any expenditures including, but not limited to, legal, engineering and other consultant fees,
filing fees, administrative, and other expenses, if any; and

WHEREAS, the District hereby desires to request a Boundary Amendment in accordance with
Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, by taking such actions as are necessary in furtherance of the same.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE
WATERSET SOUTH COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT:

1. RECITALS. The recitals as stated above are true and correct and by this reference are
incorporated into and form a material part of this Resolution.

2. AUTHORIZATION FOR BOUNDARY AMENDMENT. Pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida
Statutes, the Board hereby authorizes the Chairman and District Staff to proceed in an expeditious
manner with the preparation and filing of any documentation necessary to seek the amendment of the
District’s boundaries as described in Exhibit A. The Board further authorizes the prosecution of the
procedural requirements detailed in Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, for the Boundary Amendment.

3. AUTHORIZATION FOR AGENT. The Board hereby authorizes the District Chairman,
District Manager and District Counsel to act as agents of the District with regard to any and all matters
pertaining to the petition to amend the boundaries of the District. District Staff, in consultation with
the District Chairman, is further authorized to revise Exhibit A in order to address any further boundary
adjustments as may be identified by the District Engineer. The District Manager shall ensure that the
final versions of Exhibit A as confirmed by the Chairman are attached hereto.

4. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Resolution shall become effective upon its passage.
PASSED AND ADOPTED this day of , 2025.
ATTEST: WATERSET SOUTH COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
Secretary / Assistant Secretary Chairperson, Board of Supervisors

Exhibit A: Legal Description of District Boundaries, as Amended



EXHIBIT A

Legal Description of District Boundaries, as Amended



Tab 7



ACQUISITION AGREEMENT

THIS ACQUISITION AGREEMENT (2025 PROJECT) (“Agreement”) is made and
entered into, by and between:

WATERSET SOUTH COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local
unit of special-purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida
Statutes, being situated in Hillsborough County, Florida, with a mailing address of
c/o Rizzetta & Company, Inc., 3434 Colwell Avenue, Suite 200, Tampa, Florida
33614 (“District”); and

NNP-SOUTHBEND 11, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, and the
owner and developer of certain lands within the boundaries of the District, with a
mailing address of 3162 South Falkenburg Road, Riverview, Florida 33578
(“Developer™).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the District was established by ordinance adopted by the Board of County
Commissioners in and for Hillsborough County, Florida, pursuant to the Uniform Community
Development District Act of 1980, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, as amended (“Act”), and is
validly existing under the Constitution and laws of the State of Florida; and

WHEREAS, the Act authorizes the District to issue bonds for the purpose, among others,
of planning, financing, constructing, operating and/or maintaining certain infrastructure, including
storm water management systems, roadways, landscaping, utilities, and other infrastructure within
or without the boundaries of the District; and

WHEREAS, the Developer is the owner of a majority of the certain lands in
unincorporated Hillsborough County, Florida, located within the boundaries of the District; and

WHEREAS, the District presently intends to finance the planning, design, acquisition,
construction, and installation of certain infrastructure improvements, facilities, and services to
benefit what is known as “2025 Project,” a portion of the capital improvement plan as detailed in
the Master Report of District Engineer, Master Capital Improvement Plan dated August, 2022, as
supplemented by the Supplemental District Engineer’s Report, Series 2025 Project (2025
Assessment Area), dated July 31, 2025 (“Engineer’s Report”), which is attached to this
Agreement as Exhibit A (“2025 Project”); and

WHEREAS, the District intends to finance all or a portion of the 2025 Project through the
use of proceeds from the anticipated future sale of Waterset South Community Development
District Special Assessment Bonds (“Bonds”); and

WHEREAS, the District has not had sufficient monies on hand to allow the District to
contract directly for: (i) the preparation of the surveys, testing, reports, drawings, plans, permits,
specifications, and related documents necessary to complete the 2025 Project (“Work Product”);



or (ii) construction and/or installation of the improvements comprising the 2025 Project
(“Improvements”); and

WHEREAS, the District acknowledges the Developer’s need to commence development
of the lands within the District in an expeditious and timely manner; and

WHEREAS, in order to avoid a delay in the commencement of the development of the
Work Product and/or the Improvements, the Developer has advanced, funded, commenced, and
completed and/or will complete certain of the Work Product and/or Improvements; and

WHEREAS, the Developer and the District are entering into this Agreement to set forth
the process by which the District may acquire the Work Product, the Improvements, and any
related real property interests (“Real Property”) and in order to ensure the timely provision of the
infrastructure and development.

NOW, THEREFORE, based upon good and valuable consideration and the mutual
covenants of the parties, the receipt of which and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged,
the District and the Developer agree as follows:

1. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS. The recitals stated above are true and
correct and by this reference are incorporated as a material part of this Agreement.

2. WORK PRODUCT AND IMPROVEMENTS. The parties agree to cooperate
and use good faith and best efforts to undertake and complete the acquisition process contemplated
by this Agreement on such date or dates as the parties may jointly agree upon (“Acquisition
Date). Subject to any applicable legal requirements (e.g., but not limited to, those laws governing
the use of proceeds from tax exempt bonds), and the requirements of this Agreement, the District
agrees to acquire completed Work Product and Improvements that are part of the 2025 Project that
are commenced or completed without proceeds from the Bonds.

a. Request for Conveyance and Supporting Documentation — When Work
Product or Improvements are ready for conveyance by the Developer to the
District, the Developer shall notify the District in writing, describing the nature
of the Work Product and/or Improvement and estimated cost. Additionally,
Developer agrees to provide, at or prior to the Acquisition Date, the following:
(i) documentation of actual costs paid, (ii) instruments of conveyance such as
warranty bills of sale or such other instruments as may be requested by the
District, and (iii) any other releases, warranties, indemnifications or
documentation as may be reasonably requested by the District. All
documentation of any acquisition (e.g., bills of sale, receipts, maintenance
bonds, as-builts, evidence of costs, deeds or easements, etc.) shall be to the
reasonable satisfaction of the District.

b. Costs — Subject to any applicable legal requirements (e.g., but not limited to,
those laws governing the use of proceeds from tax exempt bonds), the
availability of proceeds from the Bonds, and the requirements of this



Agreement, the District shall pay no more than the actual cost incurred, or the
reasonable cost of the Work Product or Improvements, whichever is less, as
determined by the District Engineer. The Developer shall provide copies of any
and all invoices, bills, receipts, or other evidence of costs incurred by the
Developer for any Work Product and/or Improvements. The District Engineer
shall review all evidence of cost and shall certify to the District Board the total
actual amount of cost, which in the District Engineer’s sole opinion, is
reasonable for the Work Product and/or Improvements. The District Engineer’s
opinion as to cost shall be set forth in an Engineer’s Certificate which shall
accompany the requisition for the funds from the District’s Trustee for the
Bonds (“Trustee”).

i. In the event that the Developer disputes the District Engineer’s opinion
as to cost, the District and the Developer agree to use good faith efforts
to resolve such dispute. If the parties are unable to resolve any such
dispute, the parties agree to jointly select a third party engineer whose
decision as to any such dispute shall be binding upon the parties. Such
a decision by a third-party engineer shall be set forth in an Engineer’s
Affidavit which shall accompany the requisition for the funds from the
Trustee.

Right to Rely on Work Product and Releases — The Developer agrees to release
to the District all right, title, and interest which the Developer may have in and
to any Work Product conveyed hereunder, as well as all common law, statutory,
and other reserved rights, including all copyrights in the Work Product and
extensions and renewals thereof under United States law and throughout the
world, and all publication rights and all subsidiary rights and other rights in and
to the Work Product in all forms, mediums, and media, now known or
hereinafter devised; provided, however, that the District agrees and
acknowledges that the Developer shall retain the right, title and interest to use
the Work Product, and the Developer’s transfer shall be non-exclusive
notwithstanding the foregoing to the extent reasonably required by the
Developer in connection with the ownership, construction, development, and
management of the Development or other lands owned by Developer to which
such Work Product pertains. To the extent determined necessary by the District,
the Developer shall use commercially reasonable efforts to obtain all releases
from any professional providing services in connection with the Work Product
to enable the District to use and rely upon the Work Product. Such releases may
include, but are not limited to, any architectural, engineering, or other
professional services

. Except as otherwise separately agreed by the Parties with respect to any
particular acquisition of Work Product, and without intending to modify any of
the other terms of this Agreement, any conveyance of Work Product shall be on
an “AS-IS” basis, and without any representation or warranty from the
Developer to the District in respect thereto.



e. Transfersto Third Party Governments — If any item acquired is to be conveyed
to a third-party governmental body, then the Developer agrees to cooperate and
provide such certifications, documents, bonds, warranties, and/or forms of
security as may be required by that governmental body, if any. Further, the
Developer agrees to coordinate the conveyance of any real property and/or
Improvements initially conveyed to the District which is ultimately to be
owned, operated and maintained by another government entity.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the District shall use its best efforts to assist the
Developer to effectuate any such conveyance. Developer agrees to indemnify
and hold District harmless from any and all claims, demands, liabilities,
judgements, costs, or other actions which may be brought against or imposed
upon the District as a result of Developer’s failure, whether intentional,
negligent or otherwise, to comply with the terms of this section, including but
not limited to its obligation to coordinate further conveyance of real property
and/or Improvements to other third party governmental entities.

f. Permits — The Developer agrees to pay the cost associated with and cooperate
fully in the transfer of any permits to the District or a governmental entity with
maintenance obligations for any Improvements conveyed pursuant to this
Agreement.

g. Engineer’s Certification — Nothing herein shall require the District to accept
any Work Product and/or Improvements unless the District Engineer (or other
consulting engineer reasonably acceptable to the District), in his/her
professional opinion, is able to certify that, in addition to any other requirements
of law: (i) the Work Product and/or Improvements are part of the 2025 Project;
(i) the price for such Work Product and/or Improvements did not exceed the
lesser of the cost of the Work Product and/or Improvements or the fair market
value of the Work Product and/or Improvements; (iii) as to Work Product, the
Work Product is capable of being used for the purposes intended by the District,
and, as to any Improvements, the Improvements were installed in accordance
with their specifications, and are capable of performing the functions for which
they were intended; and (iv) as to any Improvements, all known plans, permits
and specifications necessary for the operation and maintenance of the
Improvements are complete and on file with the District, and have been
transferred, or are capable of being transferred, to the District for operations and
maintenance responsibilities.

3. CONVEYANCE OF REAL PROPERTY. The Developer agrees that it will
convey to the District at or prior to the Acquisition Date as determined solely by the District, by a
special warranty deed or other instrument acceptable to the District’s Board of Supervisors
together with a metes and bounds or other description, the Real Property upon which any
Improvements are constructed or which are necessary for the operation and maintenance of, and
access to, the Improvements.



Cost. The parties agree that all Real Property shall be provided to the District
at no cost, unless (i) the costs for the Real Property are included as part of the
2025 Project, and (ii) the purchase price for the Real Property is less than or
equal to the appraised value of the Real Property, based on an appraisal obtained
by the District for this purpose. The parties agree that the purchase price shall
not include amounts attributable to the value of improvements on the Real
Property and other improvements serving the Real Property that have been, or
will be, funded by the District.

Fee Title and Other Interests — The District may determine in its reasonable
discretion that fee title for Real Property is not necessary and, in such cases,
shall accept such other interest in the lands upon which the Improvements are
constructed as the District deems acceptable.

Developer Reservation — Any conveyance of Real Property hereunder by
special warranty deed or other instrument shall be subject to a reservation by
Developer of its right and privilege to use the area conveyed to construct any
Improvements and any future improvements to such area for any related
purposes (including, but not limited to, construction traffic relating to the
construction of the Development) not inconsistent with the District’s use,
occupation or enjoyment thereof.

Fees, Taxes, Title Insurance — The Developer shall pay the cost for recording
fees and documentary stamps required, if any, for the conveyance of the lands
upon which the Improvements are constructed. The Developer shall be
responsible for all taxes and assessments levied on the lands upon which the
Improvements are constructed until such time as the Developer conveys all said
lands to the District. At the time of conveyance, the Developer shall provide, at
its expense, an owner’s title insurance policy in a form satisfactory to the
District. In the event the title search reveals exceptions to title which render title
unmarketable or which, in the District’s reasonable discretion, would materially
interfere with the District’s use of such lands, the Developer shall cure, or cause
to be cured, such defects at no expense to the District.

Boundary Adjustments — Developer and the District agree that reasonable
future boundary adjustments may be made as deemed necessary by both parties
in order to accurately describe lands conveyed to the District and lands which
remain in Developer’s ownership. Unless otherwise determined by the
District’s bond counsel, the parties agree that any land transfers made to
accommodate such adjustments shall be accomplished by donation. However,
the party requesting such adjustment shall pay any transaction costs resulting
from the adjustment, including but not limited to taxes, title insurance,
recording fees or other costs. Developer agrees that if a court or other
governmental entity determines that a re-platting of the lands within the District
is necessary, Developer shall pay all costs and expenses associated with such
actions.



4.

TAXES, ASSESSMENTS, AND COSTS.

a. Taxes and Assessments on Property Being Acquired. The District is an exempt

governmental unit acquiring property pursuant to this Agreement for use
exclusively for public purposes. Accordingly, in accordance with Florida law,
the Developer agrees to place in escrow with the Hillsborough County tax
collector an amount equal to the current ad valorem taxes and non-ad valorem
assessments (with the exception of those ad valorem taxes and non-ad valorem
assessments levied by the District) prorated to the date of transfer of title, based
upon the expected assessment and millage rates giving effect to the greatest
discount available for early payment.

i. Ifand only to the extent the property acquired by the District is subject
to ad valorem taxes or non-ad valorem assessments, the Developer
agrees to reimburse the District for payment, or pay on its behalf, any
and all ad valorem taxes and non-ad valorem assessments imposed
during the calendar year in which each parcel of property is conveyed.

ii. Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent the District from asserting any
rights to challenge any taxes or assessments imposed, if any, on any
property of the District.

. Notice. The parties agree to provide notice to the other within ten (10) calendar

days of receipt of any notice of potential or actual taxes, assessments, or costs,
as a result of any transaction pursuant to this Agreement, or notice of any other
taxes, assessments, or costs imposed on the property acquired by the District as
described in subsection a. above. The Developer covenants to make any
payments due hereunder in a timely manner in accord with Florida law. In the
event that the Developer fails to make timely payment of any such taxes,
assessments, or costs, the Developer acknowledges the District’s right to make
such payment. If the District makes such payment, the Developer agrees to
reimburse the District within thirty (30) calendar days of receiving notice of
such payment, and to include in such reimbursement any fees, costs, penalties,
or other expenses which accrued to the District as a result of making such a
payment, including interest at the maximum rate allowed by law from the date
of the payment made by the District.

Tax liability not created. Nothing herein is intended to create or shall create
any new or additional tax liability on behalf of the Developer or the District.
Furthermore, the parties reserve all respective rights to challenge, pay under
protest, contest or litigate the imposition of any tax, assessment, or cost in good
faith they believe is unlawfully or inequitably imposed and agree to cooperate
in good faith in the challenge of any such imposition.



5. INDEMNIFICATION. For all actions or activities which occur prior to the date
of the acquisition of the relevant Work Product, Improvements or Real Property hereunder, the
Developer agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the District and its officers, staff, agents and
employees from any and all liability, claims, actions, suits or demands by any person, corporation
or other entity for injuries, death, property damage or claims of any nature arising out of, or in
connection with, this Agreement or the use by the Developer, its officers, agents, employees,
invitees or affiliates, of the Work Product, Improvements or Real Property, including litigation or
any appellate proceedings with respect thereto, irrespective of the date of the initiation or notice
of the claim, suit, etc.; provided, however, that the Developer shall not indemnify the District for
a default by the District under this Agreement.

6. ACQUISITIONS AND BOND PROCEEDS. The District and Developer hereby
agree that an acquisition by the District may be completed prior to the District obtaining proceeds
from the Bonds (“Prior Acquisitions”) or after the District has spent all of the proceeds from the
Bonds. The District agrees to pursue the issuance of the Bonds in good faith, and, within 30 days
from the issuance of such Bonds, to make payment for any Prior Acquisitions completed pursuant
to the terms of this Agreement; provided, however, that in the event bond counsel determines that
any such Prior Acquisitions are not properly compensable for any reason, including, but not limited
to federal tax restrictions imposed on tax-exempt financing, the District shall not be obligated to
make payment for such Prior Acquisitions. Interest shall not accrue on the amounts owed for any
Prior Acquisitions. In the event the District does not or cannot issue the Bonds within five (5) years
from the date of this Agreement, and, thus does not make payment to the Developer for the Prior
Acquisitions, then the parties agree that the District shall have no reimbursement obligation
whatsoever. The Developer acknowledges that the District may convey some or all of the Work
Product and/or Improvements in the Engineer’s Report to Hillsborough County, Florida and
consents to the District’s conveyance of such Work Product and/or Improvements prior to payment
for any Prior Acquisitions.

7. DEFAULT. A default by either party under this Agreement shall entitle the other
to all remedies available at law or in equity, which may include, but not be limited to, the right of
damages and/or specific performance.

8. ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND COSTS. In the event that either party is required to
enforce this Agreement by court proceedings or otherwise, then the parties agree that the prevailing
party shall be entitled to recover from the other all fees and costs incurred, including reasonable
attorneys’ fees and costs for trial, alternative dispute resolution, or appellate proceedings.

9. AMENDMENTS. Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in this
Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing which is executed by both the District
and the Developer.

10. AUTHORIZATION. The execution of this Agreement has been duly authorized
by the appropriate body or official of the District and the Developer; both the District and the
Developer have complied with all the requirements of law; and both the District and the Developer
have full power and authority to comply with the terms and provisions of this instrument.



11. NOTICES. All notices, requests, consents and other communications under this
Agreement (“Notices”) shall be in writing and shall be delivered, mailed by First Class Malil,
postage prepaid, or overnight delivery service, to the parties, as follows:

A. If to the District: Waterset South Community
Development District
c/o Rizzetta & Company, Inc.
3434 Colwell Avenue, Suite 200
Tampa, Florida 33614
Attn: District Manager

With a copy to: Kutak Rock LLP
107 West College Avenue
Tallahassee, Florida 32301
Attn: District Counsel

B. If to Developer: NNP-Southbend I, LLC
3162 South Falkenburg Road
Riverview, Florida 33578
Attn:

With a copy to: Mahoney Law Group, P.A.
2240 Belleair Road, Suite 210
Clearwater, Florida 33764
Attn: Jessica Paz Mahoney, Esq.

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any Notice shall be deemed received only
upon actual delivery at the address set forth above. Notices delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at the place
of delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on the next business day. If any
time for giving Notice contained in this Agreement would otherwise expire on a non-business day,
the Notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding business day. Saturdays, Sundays, and
legal holidays recognized by the United States government shall not be regarded as business days.
Counsel for the District and counsel for the Developer may deliver Notice on behalf of the District
and the Developer, respectively. Any party or other person to whom Notices are to be sent or
copied may notify the other parties and addressees of any change in name or address to which
Notices shall be sent by providing the same on five (5) days written notice to the parties and
addressees set forth herein.

12. ARM’S LENGTH TRANSACTION. This Agreement has been negotiated fully
between the District and the Developer as an arm’s length transaction. Both parties participated
fully in the preparation of this Agreement and received the advice of counsel. In the case of a
dispute concerning the interpretation of any provision of this Agreement, both parties are deemed
to have drafted, chosen, and selected the language, and the doubtful language will not be
interpreted or construed against either the District or the Developer.

13. THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES. This Agreement is solely for the benefit of
the District and the Developer and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason, to or



for the benefit of any third party not a formal party to this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement
expressed or implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person or corporation
other than the District and the Developer any right, remedy, or claim under or by reason of this
Agreement or any of the provisions or conditions of this Agreement; and all of the provisions,
representations, covenants, and conditions contained in this Agreement shall inure to the sole
benefit of and shall be binding upon the District and the Developer and their respective
representatives, successors, and assigns. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the
contrary, the Trustee for the Bonds shall be a direct third-party beneficiary of the terms and
conditions of this Agreement and, acting at the direction of and on behalf of the bondholders
owning a majority of the aggregate principal amount of Bonds outstanding, shall be entitled to
cause the District to enforce the Developer’s obligations hereunder. The Trustee shall not be
deemed to have assumed any obligations under this Agreement.

14.  ASSIGNMENT. Neither the District nor the Developer may assign this Agreement
or any monies to become due hereunder without the prior written approval of the other and the
Trustee and bondholders owning a majority of the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds
outstanding, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. Such consent shall not be required
in the event of a sale of the majority of the lands within the District then owned by the Developer
pursuant to which the unaffiliated purchaser agrees to assume any remaining obligations of the
Developer under this Agreement, provided however that no such assignment shall be valid where
the assignment is being made for the purpose of avoiding the Developer’s obligations hereunder.

15. APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE. This Agreement and the provisions
contained herein shall be construed, interpreted and controlled according to the laws of the State
of Florida. Each party consents that the venue for any litigation arising out of or related to this
Agreement shall be in Hillsborough County, Florida.

16. PUBLIC RECORDS. The Developer understands and agrees that all documents
of any kind provided to the District in connection with this Agreement may be public records and
treated as such in accordance with Florida law.

17. SEVERABILITY. The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more
provisions of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining
portions of this Agreement, or any part of this Agreement not held to be invalid or unenforceable.

18. LIMITATIONS ON GOVERNMENTAL LIABILITY. Nothing in this
Agreement shall be deemed as a waiver of immunity or limits of liability of the District beyond
any statutory limited waiver of immunity or limits of liability which may have been adopted by
the Florida Legislature in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, or other law, and nothing in this
Agreement shall inure to the benefit of any third party for the purpose of allowing any claim which
would otherwise be barred by sovereign immunity or by other operation of law.

19. HEADINGS FOR CONVENIENCE ONLY. The descriptive headings in this
Agreement are for convenience only and shall not control nor affect the meaning or construction
of any of the provisions of this Agreement.



20. COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in any number of
counterparts, each of which when executed and delivered shall be an original; however, all such
counterparts together shall constitute, but one and the same instrument. Signature and
acknowledgment pages, if any, may be detached from the counterparts and attached to a single
copy of this document to physically form one document.

21. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Agreement shall be effective , 2025.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties below execute this Acquisition Agreement.

ATTEST: WATERSET SOUTH COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Secretary / Assistant Secretary Amanda King
Chairperson, Board of Supervisors

NNP-SOUTHBEND 11, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company

Witness By: Len Jaffe
Its: Vice President

Exhibit A:  Supplemental District Engineer’s Report, Series 2025 Project (2025 Assessment
Area), dated July 31, 2025



Exhibit A

Supplemental District Engineer’s Report, Series 2025 Project (2025 Assessment Area),
dated July 31, 2025



Tab 8



This instrument was prepared by and (This space reserved for Clerk)
upon recording should be returned to:

Alyssa Willson, Esq.
KUTAK ROCK LLP
107 West College Avenue
Tallahassee, Florida 32301

COLLATERAL ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION OF DEVELOPMENT AND
CONTRACT RIGHTS RELATING TO THE
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM- SERIES 2025 PROJECT

This COLLATERAL ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION OF DEVELOPMENT AND
CONTRACT RIGHTS RELATING TO THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (herein,
the “Assignment”) is made this 11" day of September, 2025, by NNP-Southbend II, LLC, whose
address is 3162 South Falkenburg Road, Riverview, Florida 33578, together with its successors
and assigns (the “Landowner” or “Assignor”), in favor of the Waterset South Community
Development District, a local unit of special-purpose government established pursuant to Chapter
190, Florida Statutes, and located in Hillsborough County, Florida, whose address is 3434 Colwell
Avenue, Suite 200, Tampa, Florida 33614 (together with its successors and assigns, the “District”
or “Assignee”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the District proposes to issue its Special Assessment Revenue Bonds, Series
2025 (the <2025 Bonds™) to finance certain public infrastructure which will provide special benefit
to the developable lands (the “Lands™) in the residential project (the “2025 Project”), which is
located within the geographical boundaries of the District (the “Development”); and

WHEREAS, the security for the repayment of the 2025 Bonds is the special assessments
levied against the Lands within the District (the “Special Assessments”); and

WHEREAS, the purchasers of the 2025 Bonds anticipate that the Lands will be developed
in accordance with the Master Report of District Engineer, Master Capital Improvement Plan,
dated August 2022, as supplemented by the Waterset South Community Development District,
District Engineer’s Report Supplement to the Master Capital Improvement Plan, dated July 17,
2025, as supplemented by the Supplemental District Engineer’s Report, Series 2025 Project (2025
Assessment Area) dated July 31, 2025 (the “Engineer’s Report” or “Capital Improvement
Program”) and the Final Supplemental Special Assessment Allocation Report, dated

, 2025 (the “Assessment Report™), until such time as the Lands, as described in
Exhibit A attached hereto, subject to the Special Assessments have been developed and sold to
homebuilders or homebuyers (the “Development Completion™); and

WHEREAS, the failure to achieve Development Completion may increase the likelihood
that the purchasers of the 2025 Bonds will not receive the full benefit of their investment in the
2025 Bonds; and

Collateral Assignment and Assumption (Series 2025) — NNP-Southbend I, LLC 1



WHEREAS, during the period in which the Lands are being developed and have yet to
reach Development Completion, there is an increased likelihood that adverse changes to local or
national economic conditions may result in a default in the payment of the Special Assessments
securing the 2025 Bonds; and

WHEREAS, in the event of default in the payment of the Special Assessments securing
the 2025 Bonds, the District has certain remedies with respect to the lien of the Special
Assessments as more particularly set forth herein; and

WHEREAS, if the Special Assessments are directly billed, the sole remedy available to
the District would be an action in foreclosure; if the Special Assessments are collected pursuant to
Florida’s uniform method of collection, the sole remedy for non-payment of the Special
Assessments is the sale of tax certificates (collectively, the “Remedial Rights”); and

WHEREAS, in the event the District exercises its Remedial Rights, the District will
require the assignment of certain Development & Contract Rights (defined below) to complete
development of the Lands to the extent that, prior to such exercise, such Development & Contract
Rights have not been previously assigned, transferred, or otherwise conveyed to a homebuilder
resulting from the sale of any portion of the Lands in the ordinary course of business, Hillsborough
County, the District, any applicable homeowner’s association or other governing entity or
association in connection with the Development or the Capital Improvement Program (a “Prior
Transfer”); and

WHEREAS, this Assignment is not intended to impair or interfere with the development
of the Development and shall only be inchoate until becoming effective and absolute assignment
and assumption of the Development & Contract Rights upon failure of the Assignor to pay the
Special Assessments levied against the Lands owned by the Assignor; provided, however, that
such assignment shall only be effective and absolute to the extent that this Assignment has not
been terminated earlier pursuant to the terms of this Assignment or to the extent that a Prior
Transfer has not already occurred with respect to the Development & Contract Rights; and

WHEREAS, in the event of a transfer, conveyance or sale of any portion of the Lands
(excluding the conveyance of any portion of the Lands to a county, a homeowner association, other
governmental entity or association or to a homebuilder), any and all affiliated entities or
successors-in-interest to the Landowner’s interest in the Lands shall be subject to this Assignment,
which shall be recorded in the Official Records of Hillsborough County, Florida; and

WHEREAS, the rights assigned to the District hereunder shall be exercised in a manner
which will not materially affect the intended development of the Development; and

WHEREAS, absent this Assignment becoming effective and absolute, it shall
automatically terminate upon the earliest to occur of the following: (i) payment of the 2025 Bonds
in full; (ii) Development Completion; or (iii) upon occurrence of a Prior Transfer, but only to the
extent that such Development & Contract Rights are subject or pertain to the Prior Transfer (the
period from execution of this Assignment to any such termination or absolute effectiveness being
referred to herein as the “Term”).

Collateral Assignment and Assumption (Series 2025) — NNP-Southbend I, LLC 2



NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above recitals which the parties hereby
agree are true and correct and are hereby incorporated by reference and other good and valuable
consideration, the sufficiency of which is acknowledged, Assignor and Assignee agree as follows:

1 Collateral Assignment. Assignor hereby collaterally assigns to Assignee, to the
extent assignable and to the extent that they are solely owned or controlled by Assignor or
any related entity of Assignor, at execution of this Agreement or acquired in the future, all
of Assignor’s development rights and contract rights relating to the Capital Improvement
Program (herein the “Development & Contract Rights™) as security for Assignor’s payment
and performance and discharge of its obligation to pay the Special Assessments levied
against the Lands when due. This Assignment shall become effective and absolute upon
failure of the Assignor to pay the Special Assessments levied against the Lands owned by
the Assignor. The Development & Contract Rights shall include the following as they
pertain to the Capital Improvement Program, but shall specifically exclude any such
portion of the Development & Contract Rights which are subject to a Prior Transfer:

@) Engineering and construction plans and specifications for grading,
roadways, site drainage, stormwater drainage, signage, water distribution, waste water collection,
and other improvements.

(b) Preliminary and final site plans.

(c) Avrchitectural plans and specifications for buildings financed by the District,
if any, and other improvements to the Lands within the District (and specifically excluding builder
house plans).

(d) Permits, approvals, resolutions, variances, licenses, impact fees and
franchises granted by governmental authorities, or any of their respective agencies, for or affecting
the Capital Improvement Program and construction of improvements thereon including, but not
limited to, the following:

(i) Any and all approvals, extensions, amendments, rezoning and
development orders rendered by governmental authorities,
including Hillsborough County relating to the Capital Improvement
Program.

(i)  Any and all service agreements relating to utilities, water and/or
wastewater.

(iii) ~ Permits, more particularly described in the Engineer’s Report.
(e) Contracts with engineers, architects, land planners, landscape architects,
consultants, contractors, and suppliers for or relating to the construction of the Capital

Improvement Program.

() Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, contracts and
agreements with private utility providers to provide utility services to the Capital Improvement
Program, including the lots.

Collateral Assignment and Assumption (Series 2025) — NNP-Southbend I, LLC 3



(@)  All future creations, changes, extensions, revisions, modifications,
substitutions, and replacements of any of the foregoing.

2. Warranties by Assignor. Assignor represents and warrants to Assignee that:

@ Other than in connection with the sale of lots to homebuilders and/or end
users located within Lands and in the ordinary course of business, Assignor has made no
assignment of the Development & Contract Rights to any person or entity other than Assignee and
the (i) mortgagee under Mortgage, Assignment of Rents, Security Agreement and Fixture Filing,
dated as of December 30, 2011, recorded in Official Records Book 20888, Page 216 as modified
by that certain Modification of Mortgage, Assignment of Rents, Security Agreement and Fixture
Filing recorded in Official Records Book 25457, Page 531, and Modification of Mortgage,
Assignment of Rents, Security Agreement and Fixture Filing recorded in Official Records
Instrument # 2020546423, and Modification of Mortgage, Assignment of Rents, Security
Agreement and Fixture Filing recorded in Official Records Instrument # 2021654447 and
Modification of Mortgage, Assignment of Rents, Security Agreement and Fixture Filing recorded
in Official Records Instrument # 2022090764, as affected by that certain Modification of
Mortgage, Assignment of Rents, Security Agreement and Fixture Filing recorded December 16,
2022, in Instrument # 2022589693, and as affected by that certain Modification of Mortgage,
Assignment of Rents, Security Agreement and Fixture Filing recorded December 6, 2023 in
Instrument #2023549053 and that UCC Financing Statement recorded in Official Records Book
15457, Page 538, all of the Public Records of Hillsborough County, Florida that certain as
modified, against title to certain lands owned by the Assignor and a Mortgage, Assignment of
Rents, Security Agreement and Fixture Filing dated as of November 7, 2016, as modified; and (ii)
certain Mortgage made by Landowner, as Mortgagor, in favor of Subordinate Lender, as
Mortgagee recorded in Official Records Book 17285, Page 4946 as modified by that certain
Modification of Mortgage, recorded as Instrument # 2020536246 as further modified by that
certain Modification of Mortgage, recorded as Instrument # 2021652650, as further modified by
that certain Modification of Mortgage recorded December 15, 2022 in Instrument # 2022587586,
as further modified by that certain Modification of Mortgage recorded December 5, 2023 in
Instrument # 2023548388 all of the Public Records of Hillsborough County, Florida].

(b)  Any transfer, conveyance or sale of the Lands (excluding conveyance of a
portion of the Lands to a county, homeowners association, other governmental entity or
association, or homebuilder), shall subject any and all affiliated entities or successors-in-interest
of the Landowners to this Assignment.

(c) Upon approval and execution of Tri-Party Agreement relating to
Acknowledgement of Jurisdiction, Imposition of Special Assessments and Subordination of
Interests, entered into by Landowner, the District and NASH Financing, LLC, and approval and
execution of Tri-Party Agreement relating to Acknowledgement of Jurisdiction, Imposition of
Special Assessments and Subordination of Interests, entered into by Landowner, the District and
Suburban Land Reserve, Inc., Assignor is not prohibited under agreement with any other person
or under any judgment or decree from the execution and delivery of this Assignment.

Collateral Assignment and Assumption (Series 2025) — NNP-Southbend I, LLC 4

Commented [A1]: Jessica do these references need to be
updated?




(d) No action has been brought or threatened which would in any way interfere
with the right of Assignor to execute this Assignment and perform all of Assignor’s obligations
herein contained.

3. Covenants. Assignor covenants with Assignee that during the Term:

() Assignor will use reasonable, good faith efforts to: (i) fulfill, perform, and
observe each and every material condition and covenant of Assignor relating to the Development
& Contract Rights; and (ii) give notice to Assignee of any claim of default relating to the
Development & Contract Rights given to or by Assignor, together with a complete copy of any
such claim.

(b) The Development & Contract Rights include all of Assignor’s right to
modify the Development & Contract Rights, to terminate the Development & Contract Rights, and
to waive or release the performance or observance of any obligation or condition of the
Development & Contract Rights; provided that no such modification, termination, waiver or
release affects any of the Development & Contract Rights which pertain to lands outside of the
District not relating to development of the Lands.

(c) Assignor agrees to perform any and all actions necessary and use good faith
efforts relating to any and all future creations, changes, extensions, revisions, modifications,
substitutions, and replacements of the Development & Contract Rights.

4. Event(s) of Default. Any breach of the Assignor’s warranties contained in Section
2 hereof or breach of covenants contained in Section 3 hereof will, after the giving of notice and
an opportunity to cure (which cure period shall be at least sixty (60) days), shall constitute an Event
of Default under this Assignment.

5. Remedies Upon Event of Default. Upon an Event of Default, Assignee may, as
Assignee’s sole and exclusive remedies, take any or all of the following actions, at Assignee’s
option:

(@) Perform any and all obligations of Assignor relating to the Development &
Contract Rights and exercise any and all rights of Assignor therein as fully as Assignor could.

(b) Initiate, appear in, or defend any action arising out of or affecting the
Development & Contract Rights.

6. Authorization. Upon the occurrence and during the continuation of an Event of
Default, Assignor does hereby authorize and shall direct any party to any agreement relating to the
Development & Contract Rights to tender performance thereunder to Assignee upon written notice
and request from Assignee. Any such performance in favor of Assignee shall constitute a full
release and discharge to the extent of such performance as fully as though made directly to
Assignor.

7. Miscellaneous. Unless the context requires otherwise, whenever used herein, the
singular number shall include the plural, the plural the singular, and the use of any gender shall
include all genders. The terms “person” and “party” shall include individuals, firms, associations,

Collateral Assignment and Assumption (Series 2025) — NNP-Southbend I, LLC 5



joint ventures, partnerships, estates, trusts, business trusts, syndicates, fiduciaries, corporations,
and all other groups and combinations. Titles of paragraphs contained herein are inserted only as
a matter of convenience and for reference and in no way define, limit, extend, or describe the scope
of this Assignment or the intent of any provisions hereunder. This Assignment shall be construed
under Florida law.

8. Third Party Beneficiaries. The Trustee for the 2025 Bonds, on behalf of the
bondholders, shall be a direct third party beneficiary of the terms and conditions of this Assignment
and shall be entitled to cause the District to enforce the Landowner’s obligations hereunder. In the
event that the District does not promptly take Trustee’s written direction under this Agreement, or
the District is otherwise in default under the Indenture, the Trustee shall have the right to enforce
the District’s rights hereunder directly. This Assignment is solely for the benefit of the parties set
forth in this Section, and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason hereof, to or
for the benefit of any other third party. The Trustee shall not be deemed to have assumed any
obligations hereunder.

9. Termination. Absent this Assignment becoming effective and absolute, it shall
automatically terminate upon the earliest to occur of the following: (i) payment of the 2025 Bonds
in full; (ii) Development Completion; or (iii) upon occurrence of a Prior Transfer, but only to the
extent that such Development & Contract Rights are subject or pertain to the Prior Transfer.

10.  Amendment. This Agreement shall constitute the entire agreement between the
parties and may be modified in writing only by the mutual agreement of all parties. This Agreement
may not be amended without the prior written consent of the Trustee on behalf and acting at the
direction of the Bondholders owning a majority of the aggregate principal amount of the 2025
Bonds then outstanding, subject to the last sentence of Section 8.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

Collateral Assignment and Assumption (Series 2025) — NNP-Southbend I, LLC 6



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Assignor and Assignee have caused this Assignment to be
executed and delivered on the day and year first written above.

WITNESSES: WATERSET SOUTH COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Print Name: Amanda King

Chairperson, Board of Supervisors
Address:
Street

City, State, Zip

Print Name:

Address:

Street

City, State, Zip

STATE OF FLORIDA )
COUNTY OF )

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of [__] physical presence or

[__] online notarization this day of , 2025, by Amanda King as Chairperson

of the Board of Supervisors of the Waterset South Community Development District, for and on

behalf of the District. She is [_] personally known to me or [_] produced
as identification.

NOTARY STAMP:

Signature of Notary Public

Printed Name of Notary Public

Collateral Assignment and Assumption (Series 2025) — NNP-Southbend I, LLC 7



WITNESSES: NNP-SOUTHBEND II, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company

Print Name: By: Len Jaffe

Its: Vice President
Address:
Street

City, State, Zip

Print Name:

Address:

Street

City, State, Zip

STATE OF FLORIDA )

COUNTY OF )

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of [__] physical presence or
[_1online notarization this day of , 2025, by Len Jaffe as Vice President of
NNP-Southbend 1I, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, on its behalf. S/He is [_]
personally known to me or [__] produced as identification.
NOTARY STAMP:

Signature of Notary Public

Printed Name of Notary Public

Exhibit A: Legal Description

Collateral Assignment and Assumption (Series 2025) — NNP-Southbend I, LLC 8



Exhibit A

Legal Description of District Lands

WATERSET SOUTH
2025 CDD ASSESSMENT AREA

DESCRIPTION: Two (2) parcels of land lying in Sections 27, 28 and 34,
Township 31 South, Range 19 East, Hillsborough County, Florida and being
more particularly described as follows:

PHASES C1 AND H1

COMMEMCE at the Northeast corner of the Southwest 1/4 of said Section
27, also being a point on the Northerly boundary of WATERSET WOLF CREEK
PHASES A AND D1 AND WATERSET BOULEVARD TECO EXTENSION AND
COVINGTOMN GARDEN DRIVE TECO EXTENSION, according to the plat
thereof, as recorded in Plat Book 142, Pages 12 through 31 inclusive, of the
Public Records of Hillsborough County, Florida, run thence along the North
boundary of the South 1/2 of said Section 27, the following two (2) courses:
1) along said Northerly boundary of WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASES A AND
D1 AND WATERSET BOULEVARD TECO EXTENSION AND COVINGTON
GARDEN DRIVE TECO EXTENSION, N.89*16'50"W., 661.15 feet to the
Northeast corner of WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE B, according to the plat
thereof, as recorded in Plat Book 146, Pages 7 through 28 inclusive, of the
Public Records of Hillsborough County, Florida; 2) along the Northerly
boundary of said WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE B, continue
N.89216'50"W., 1328.78 feet to the Northwest corner of said WATERSET
WOLF CREEK PHASE B, also being on point on the Easterly boundary of the
130.00 foot wide Railroad right-of-way for C.5.X. Transportation, Inc.
(formerly Atlantic Coast Line Railroad and Seaboard Coast Line Railroad) per
Right-of Way and Track Map V19 FLA (4); thence along the Westerly
boundary of said WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE B and said Easterly
boundary of the 130.00 foot wide Railroad right-of-way for C.5.X.
Transportation, Inc., 5.28°37'13"W., 1763.59 feet to the Southwest corner
of said WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE B, also being the POINT OF
BEGINNING; thence along the Southerly boundary of said WATERSET
WOLF CREEK PHASE B, the following six (6) courses: 1) 5.61°22'47"E.,
80.00 feet to a point of curvature; 2) Easterly, 474.72 feet along the arc of a
curve to the left having a radius of 1138.00 feet and a central angle of
23°54'04" (chord bearing 5.73°19'50"E., 471.29 feet) to a point of reverse
curvature; 3) Easterly, 832.86 feet along the arc of a curve to the right
having a radius of 2862.00 feet and a central angle of 16°40'24" {chord
bearing 5.76%56'40"E., 829.92 feet); 4) 5.21°23'33"W., 124.00 feet to a
point on a curve; 5) Southeasterly, 721.95 feet along the arc of said curve
to the right having a radius of 2738.00 feet and a central angle of 15°06'27"
(chord bearing 5.61°03'14"E., 719.86 feet) to a point of tangency; &)
5.53°30'00"E., 66.14 feet to a point on the Westerly boundary of WATERSET

Collateral Assignment and Assumption (Series 2025) — NNP-Southbend I, LLC



WOLF CREEK PHASE D2, according to the plat thereof, as recorded in Plat
Book 143, Pages 145 through 160 inclusive, of the Public Records of
Hillsborough County, Florida; thence along said Westerly boundary of
WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE D2, the following four (4) courses: 1)
continue 5.53°30'00"E., 28.28 feet; 2) 5.01°57'27"E., 84.57 feet; 3)
5.19°55'59"W., 9.32 feet; 4) S.36"30°00"W., 296.36 feet; thence along the
Southerly boundary of said WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE D2, the
following six (6) courses: 1) 5.53°30'00"E., 124.00 feet; 2) N.36°30'00"E.,
322.41 feet; 3) N.B2°20'25"E., 75.95 feet to a point of curvature; 4)
Easterly, 30.37 feet along the arc of a curve to the right having a radius of
50.00 feet and a central angle of 34°48'19" (chord bearing S5.80°15'25"E.,
29.91 feet) to a point of tangency; 5) 5.62°51'16"E., 211.89 feet to a point
of curvature; 6) Southeasterly, 96.62 feet along the arc of a curve to the left
having a radius of 1632.00 feet and a central angle of 03°23'31" (chord
bearing 5.64°33'01"E., 96.60 feet) to the Northwest corner of WATERSET
WOLF CREEK PHASE G2 AND 30TH STREET PHASE G2, according to the plat
thereof, as recorded in Plat Book 146, Pages 257 through 283 inclusive, of
the Public Records of Hillsborough County, Florida; thence along the
Westerly boundary of said WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE G2 AND 30TH
STREET PHASE G2, the following four (4) courses: 1) 5.23°45'00"W., 338.21
feet; 2) 5.11°00'00"W., 710.98 feet; 3) 5.36°30'00"W., 100.00 feet; 4)
5.05°00'00"W., 390.52 feet; thence N.74°32'40"W., 439.45 feet to a point
on a curve; thence Northerly, 4.49 feet along the arc of a curve to the right
having a radius of 775.00 feet and a central angle of 00°19'55" (chord
bearing N.15°37'18"E., 4.49 feet) to a point of reverse curvature; thence
Northwesterly, 30.28 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius
of 20.00 feet and a central angle of 86°45'18" (chord bearing
N.27935'24"W., 27.47 feet) to a point of tangency; thence N.70°58'03"W.,
102.89 feet; thence 5.14°13'00"W., 78.77 feet; thence 5.10°35'00"W.,
56.81 feet; thence S.06°57'00"W., 56.81 feet; thence S.03°19'00"W., 56.81
feet; thence 5.00°19'00"E., 56.81 feet; thence 5.03°57°00"E., 56.81 feet;
thence 5.08°00'35"E., 53.47 feet; thence 5.07°16'03"E., 150.00 feet;
thence S.07°14'56"E., 50.10 feet; thence N.75°05'56"W., 54.69 feet; thence
N.53°30'00"W., 420.00 feet; thence N.36°30°00"E., 481.26 feet to a point
on a curve; thence Northwesterly, 100.61 feet along the arc of a curve to
the right having a radius of 525.00 feet and a central angle of 10°58'50"
{chord bearing N.58%59'25"W., 100.46 feet) to a point of reverse curvature;
thence Westerly, 31.42 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a
radius of 20.00 feet and a central angle of 90°00'00" (chord bearing
5.81°30'00"W., 28.28 feet); thence N.53°30'00"W., 50.00 feet to a point on
a curve; thence Northerly, 31.42 feet along the arc of a curve to the left
having a radius of 20.00 feet and a central angle of 90°00'00" (chord
bearing N.08°30'00"W., 28.28 feet) to a point of tangency; thence
MN.53°30°00"W., 110.00 feet to a point of curvature; thence Westerly, 39.27

Collateral Assignment and Assumption (Series 2025) — NNP-Southbend I, LLC

10



feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 25.00 feet and a
central angle of 90°00'00" (chord bearing 5.81°30°00"W., 35.36 feet);
thence N.53°30'00"W., 124.00 feet; thence N.36°30'00"E., 343.11 feet;
thence N.51°03'00"W., 220.06 feet to a point on a curve; thence
Southwesterly, 14.45 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius
of 4975.00 feet and a central angle of 00°09'59" (chord bearing
5.38952'00"W., 14.45 feet); thence N.51°12'59"W., 50.00 feet to a point on
a curve; thence Southwesterly, 99.10 feet along the arc of said curve to the
left having a radius of 5025.00 feet and a central angle of 01°07'48" (chord
bearing 5.38213'07"W., 99.10 feet); thence N.54%00'00"W., 405.06 feet;
thence N.49°22'13"W., 50.00 feet to a point on a curve; thence
Northeasterly, 30.30 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius
of 375.00 feet and a central angle of 04°37'47" (chord bearing
N.38°18'53"E., 30.29 feet) to a point of tangency; thence N.36°00'00"E.,
65.70 feet to a point of curvature; thence Northerly, 31.42 feet along the arc
of a curve to the left having a radius of 20.00 feet and a central angle of
90°00'00" (chord bearing N.09°00'00"W., 28.28 feet); thence
N.36°00°00"E., 50.00 feet; thence N.54°00°00"W., 100.00 feet; thence
N.36°00°00"E., 120.00 feet; thence N.02°16°49"E., 454.06 feet; thence
N.65°00°00"W., 268.87 feet; thence N.20°30'30"W., 63.02 feet; thence
N.47°54°44"W,, 119.65 feet; thence N.75°18'58"W., 60.03 feet; thence
5.84°02'47"W., 79.70 feet; thence N.37°09'26"W., 29.30 feet; thence
N.04%43'58"E., 20.68 feet; thence N.25°01'33"E., 243.64 feet to a point on
a curve; thence Westerly, 355.86 feet along the arc of a curve to the right
having a radius of 1262.00 feet and a central angle of 16°09°23" (chord
bearing N.69°27'29"W., 354.69 feet) to a point of tangency; thence
N.61222'47"W., 80.00 feet to a point on the aforesaid Easterly boundary of
the 130.00 foot wide Railroad right-of-way for C.5.X. Transportation, Inc.;
thence along said Easterly boundary of the 130.00 foot wide Railroad right-
of-way for C.5.X. Transportation, Inc., N.28°37'13"E., 124.00 feet to the
POINT OF BEGINNING.

Containing 68.155 acres, more or less.
TOGETHER with the following described parcel:
PHASE E

COMMENCE at the Northeast corner of said Section 34, run thence along
the East boundary of said Section 34, the following two (2) courses: 1)
5.00°33'49"W., 1580.26 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING; 2) continue
5.00°33'49"W., 1098.29 feet to the Mortheast corner of WATERSET WOLF
CREEK PHASE F, according to the plat thereof as recorded in Plat Book 147,
Pages 243 through 261 inclusive, of the Public Records of Hillsborough

Collateral Assignment and Assumption (Series 2025) — NNP-Southbend I, LLC

11



County, Florida; thence along the Northerly boundary of said WATERSET
WOLF CREEK PHASE F, the following eleven (11) courses: 1) WEST, 530.85
feet; 2) 5.32°59'46"W., 1019.41 feet; 3) N.31°10°02"W., 471.99 feet; 4)
N.B5°11'27"W., 188.66 feet to a point on a curve; 5) Northeasterly, 29.02
feet along the arc of a curve to the right having a radius of 25.00 feet and a
central angle of 66°30'40" (chord bearing N.56°25'41"E., 27.42 feet); &)
N.00°18'58"W., 50.00 feet; 7) 5.89°41'02"W., 0.97 feet to a point of
curvature; 8) Northwesterly, 35.01 feet along the arc of a curve to the right
having a radius of 25.00 feet and a central angle of 80°14'30" (chord
bearing N.50°11'43"W., 32.22 feet) to a point of reverse curvature; 9)
Northwesterly, 204.64 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a
radius of 270.00 feet and a central angle of 43°25'32" (chord bearing
N.31247'14"W., 199.77 feet) to a point of tangency; 10) N.53%30°00"W.,
35.68 feet to a point of curvature; 11) Northerly, 39.27 feet along the arc of
a curve to the right having a radius of 25.00 feet and a central angle of
90°00'00" (chord bearing N.08°30°00"W., 35.36 feet) to a point of tangency
on the Southeasterly boundary of WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE G2 AND
30TH STREET PHASE G2, according to the plat thereof, as recorded in Plat
Book 146, Pages 257 through 283 inclusive, of the Public Records of
Hillsborough County, Florida; thence along said Southeasterly boundary of
said WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE G2 AND 30TH STREET PHASE G2,
N.36°30°00"E., 1113.00 feet to the Southeast corner of the right-of-way for
30TH STREET NE, according to the plat of WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE
G1 AND 30TH STREET PHASE G1, as recorded in Plat Book 144, Pages 184
through 201 inclusive, of the Public Records of Hillsborough County, Florida;
thence along the Southeasterly boundary of said WATERSET WOLF CREEK
PHASE G1 AND 30TH STREET PHASE G1, continue MN.36°30'00"E., 570.00
feet to a point of cusp; thence Southerly, 39.27 feet along the arc of a curve
to the left having a radius of 25.00 feet and a central angle of 90°00'00"
(chord bearing 5.08°30'00"E., 35.36 feet) to a point of tangency; thence
5.53°30'00"E., 132.00 feet to a point of curvature; thence Easterly, 31.36
feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 50.00 feet and a
central angle of 35°56'11" (chord bearing 5.71°28'06"E., 30.85 feet) to a
point of tangency; thence 5.89°26'11"E., 260.09 feet; thence
5.70°18'01"E., 15.69 feet; thence EAST, 254.84 feet to the POINT OF
BEGINNING.

Containing 41.397 acres, more or less.
ALTOGETHER Containing 109.552 acres, more or less.
AMI-WSN-WS-159

P:\Waterset\CDD\South CDD\2025 ASSESSMENT AREA (C1-E-H1)\WSET-
SOUTH 2025-CDD-ASSESS-DS.doc

Collateral Assignment and Assumption (Series 2025) — NNP-Southbend I, LLC

12



Tab 9



This instrument was prepared by and (This space reserved for Clerk)
upon recording should be returned to:

Alyssa Willson, Esq.
KUTAK ROCK LLP
107 West College Avenue
Tallahassee, Florida 32301

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE WATERSET SOUTH COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
DISTRICT AND NNP-SOUTHBEND I1, LLC, REGARDING THE TRUE-UP AND
PAYMENT OF SERIES 2025 ASSESSMENTS

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this 11" day of September, 2025, by and
between:

WATERSET SOUTH COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit of special-
purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, being
situated in Hillsborough County, Florida, whose address is 3434 Colwell Avenue,
Suite 200, Tampa, Florida 33614 (the “District”), and

NNP-SOUTHBEND II, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, the sole owner
of certain lands within the boundaries of the District, whose address is 3162 South
Falkenburg Road, Riverview, Florida 33578 (the “Landowner”; and together with
the District, the “Parties”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the District was established by an ordinance adopted by the Board of County
Commissioners in and for Hillsborough County, Florida, pursuant to the Uniform Community
Development District Act of 1980, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, as amended (the “Act”) and is
validly existing under the Constitution and laws of the State of Florida; and

WHEREAS, the District, pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, is authorized to levy
such taxes, special assessments, fees and other charges as may be necessary in furtherance of the
District’s activities and services; and

WHEREAS, Landowner is the owner and developer of certain lands within the boundaries
of the District, which lands are described in Exhibit A (the “District Lands”); and

WHEREAS, the District has adopted an improvement plan to finance the planning, design,
acquisition, construction, and installation of certain infrastructure improvements, facilities, and
services as detailed in the Master Report of District Engineer, Master Capital Improvement Plan,
dated August 2022, as supplemented by the Waterset South Community Development District,
District Engineer’s Report Supplement to the Master Capital Improvement Plan, dated July 17,
2025 (collectively the “Master Engineer’s Report™) (the “Capital Improvement Program”); and

True-Up Agreement (Series 2025) — NNP-Southbend I1, LLC 1



WHEREAS, the District intends to finance a portion of the Capital Improvement Program
as described in the Supplemental District Engineer’s Report, Series 2025 Project (2025
Assessment Area) dated July 31, 2025 (the “Supplemental Engineer’s Report” together with the
Master Engineer’s Report the “Engineer’s Report”) (the “2025 Project” or “Improvements”)
through the anticipated issuance of Special Assessment Revenue Bonds, Series 2025, in the
aggregate principal amount of $ (the <2025 Bonds™); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolutions 2022-27, 2022-28, 2022-30, 2025-12, 2025-__ and
2025-__ (the “Assessment Resolutions™), the District has imposed special assessments (the “Series
2025 Assessments™) on the District Lands to secure the repayment of the 2025 Bonds; and

WHEREAS, Landowner agrees that all lands within the District Lands, including
Landowner’s property, benefit from the timely design, construction, or acquisition of the
Improvements; and

WHEREAS, Landowner agrees that the Series 2025 Assessments which were imposed on
the District Lands have been validly imposed and constitute valid, legal and binding liens upon all
District Lands as to which Series 2025 Assessments remain unsatisfied; and

WHEREAS, to the extent permitted by law, Landowner waives any defect in notice or
publication or in the proceedings to levy, impose and collect the Series 2025 Assessments on the
District Lands; and

WHEREAS, the Master Special Assessment Allocation Report, dated August 9, 2022,
attached to Resolution 2022-30 as Exhibit B, as amended by the First Amendment to Master
Special Assessment Allocation Report, dated July 17, 2025 (the “Master Assessment Report™), as
supplemented by the Final Supplemental Special Assessment Allocation Report, dated
, 2025, attached to Resolution 2025-  as Exhibit B (the “Series 2025
Assessment Report” and, together with the Master Assessment Report, the “Assessment Report™),
provide that as the District Lands are platted, the allocation of the amounts assessed to and
constituting a lien upon the District Lands would be calculated based upon certain density
assumptions relating to the number of each type of single-family units to be constructed on the
developable acres within the District, which assumptions were provided by Landowner; and

WHEREAS, Landowner intends that the District Lands will be platted, planned and
developed based on then-existing market conditions, and the actual densities developed may be at
some density less than the densities assumed in the District's Assessment Report; and

WHEREAS, the District's Assessment Report anticipates a mechanism by which Landowner
shall, if required, make certain payments to the District in order to satisfy, in whole or in part, the
assessments allocated and the liens imposed pursuant to the Assessment Resolutions, the amount
of such payments being determined generally by a calculation of the remaining unallocated debt
prior to the District approving the final plat or site plan for a parcel or tract, as described in the
District’s Assessment Report for the 2025 Bonds (which payments shall collectively be referenced
as the “True-Up Payment™); and

True-Up Agreement (Series 2025) — NNP-Southbend I1, LLC 2



WHEREAS, Landowner and the District desire to enter into an agreement to confirm
Landowner’s intention and obligation, if required, to make the True-Up Payment related to the
Series 2025 Assessments, subject to the terms and conditions contained herein.

Now, THEREFORE, based upon good and valuable consideration and the mutual covenants
of the parties, the receipt of which and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties
agree as follows:

SECTION1. RECITALS. The recitals so stated are true and correct and by this reference
are incorporated into and form a material part of this Agreement.

SECTION 2. VALIDITY OF ASSESSMENTS. Landowner agrees that the Assessment
Resolutions have been duly adopted by the District. Landowner further agrees that the Series 2025
Assessments imposed as a lien by the District are legal, valid and binding liens on the land against
which assessed until paid, coequal with the lien of all state, county, district, and municipal taxes,
and superior in dignity to all other liens, titles, and claims. Landowner hereby waives and
relinquishes any rights it may have to challenge, object to or otherwise fail to pay such Series 2025
Assessments.

SECTION3. COVENANT TO PAY. Landowner agrees that to the extent Landowner fails
to timely pay all Series 2025 Assessments collected by mailed notice of the District, said unpaid
Series 2025 Assessments (including True-Up Payments) may be placed on the tax roll by the
District for collection by the Tax Collector pursuant to Section 197.3632, Florida Statutes, in any
subsequent year.

SECTION 4. SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REALLOCATION.

A. Assumptions as to Series 2025 Assessments. As of the date of the execution of this
Agreement, Landowner has informed the District that Landowner plans to construct or provide for
the construction of the specific number and type of single family units (the “Units”) with the total
Equivalent Assessment Unit (“EAU”) count on the District Lands subject to the Series 2025
Assessments, as provided in Table 1 of the Series 2025 Assessment Report, which will be
calculated for a total Equivalent Assessment Unit (“EAU”) count of 287.64 pursuant to the
Assessment Report.

B. Process for Reallocation of Assessments. For the unplatted tracts, the Series 2025
Assessments will initially be on unplatted developable acreage in the District Lands and will be
reallocated as lands are platted. In connection with such development of acreage, the Series 2025
Assessments imposed on the acreage being platted or submitted for site plan review will be
allocated based upon the actual number and type of Units within the area being platted. In
furtherance thereof, at such time as developable acreage is to be platted, Landowner covenants that
such plat shall be presented to the District. The District shall allocate the Series 2025 Assessments
to the Units being platted and the remaining developable acreage of the Landowner within the
District Lands in accordance with the District’s Assessment Report and cause such reallocation to
be recorded in the District’s Improvement Lien Book.

True-Up Agreement (Series 2025) — NNP-Southbend I1, LLC 3



(i). It is an express condition of the lien established by the Assessment Resolutions
that at the time of recording of any and all plats containing any portion of the District Lands from
time to time, that such plat shall be presented to the District for review, approval and allocation of
the Series 2025 Assessments to the Units being platted and the remaining unplatted property in the
District Lands accordance with the District’s Assessment Report. Landowner covenants to comply,
or cause others to comply, with this requirement for the reallocation. No further action by the
Board of Supervisors shall be required. The District’s review of the plats shall be limited solely to
the reallocation of Series 2025 Assessments and enforcement of the District’s assessment lien.
Nothing herein shall in any way operate to or be construed as providing any other plat approval or
disapproval powers to the District.

(ii). As the acreage within the District Lands is developed, it will be platted. At the
time that any residential plat for District Lands is presented to the District, the District shall
determine if the par debt of all outstanding 2025 Bonds will be assigned to the total number of
Units to be developed, taking into account the submitted plat. If not, the District shall determine
the remaining par debt of all outstanding bonds unassigned to Units and the total number of
developable acres owned by Landowner remaining to be platted and shall determine if the
maximum par debt per acre, as provided in the Assessment Report, is exceeded. If the maximum
par debt per acre is exceeded, a debt reduction payment in the amount equal to the par debt that is
not capable of being assigned to the total number of developable acres, plus any applicable interest
charges and collection fees (the “True-Up Payment”) shall become due and payable prior to the
District’s approval of the plat in accordance with the District’s Assessment Report, in addition to
the regular assessment installment payable for lands owned by the Landowner for that tax year.
When the final plat is prepared for lands within the District Lands and presented to the District for
review, approval and reallocation of the Series 2025 Assessments, the above-described process for
determining whether a final True-Up Payment is due and owing shall be adhered to. The District
shall not release the lien of the assessments on any developable land subject to a plat until the
applicable True-Up Payments due, if any, have been made. As evidence of a True-Up Payment
due and payable, the District, after thirty (30) days’ notice to the Landowner that the True-Up
Payment is due, may record a Notice of Lien of Unpaid Assessments over the lands contained
within the plat in the official records of Hillsborough County, Florida, until such time as the True-
Up Payment has been paid to the District. The District will ensure collection of such amounts in a
timely manner in order to meet its debt service obligations, and in all cases, Developer agrees that
such payments shall be made in order to ensure the District’s timely payment of the debt service
obligations on the 2025 Bonds. The District shall record all True-Up Payments in its Improvement
Lien book. In all cases, the True-Up Payment shall be determined in accordance with the District’s
Assessment Report and any conflict between these documents shall be governed by the District’s
Assessment Report.

(iii). The foregoing is based on the District's understanding with Landowner that
Landowner intends to develop a total of 443 Units with the total number of EAUSs as indicated in
the Assessment Report on the developable acres within the District Lands. However, the District
agrees that nothing herein prohibits more than the number of Units or EAUs indicated in the
Assessment Report from being developed. As long as at least the number of EAUSs as indicated in
the Assessment Report are platted, no True-Up Payment will be required. In no event shall the
District collect the Series 2025 Assessments pursuant to the Assessment Resolutions in excess of

True-Up Agreement (Series 2025) — NNP-Southbend 11, LLC 4



the total debt service related to the Improvements on land, including all costs of financing and
interest. The District, however, may collect Series 2025 Assessments in excess of the annual debt
service related to the Improvements on land, including all costs of financing and interest, which
shall be applied to prepay the 2025 Bonds. If the strict application of the True-Up methodology to
any assessment reallocation for any plat pursuant to this paragraph would result in assessments
collected in excess of the District's total debt service obligation for the Improvements on lands, the
District agrees to take appropriate action by resolution at a duly noticed meeting but without the
need for further public hearing, to equitably reallocate the Series 2025 Assessments to such Units
pursuant to the District’s Assessment Report.

SECTIONS5.  ENFORCEMENT. This Agreement is intended to be an additional method of
enforcement of Landowner’s obligation to abide by the requirements of the reallocation of Series
2025 Assessments, including the making of the True-Up Payment, as set forth in the Assessment
Resolutions. A default by any party under this Agreement shall entitle any other party to all
remedies available at law or in equity, excluding consequential and punitive damages.

SECTION6. RECOVERY OF COSTS AND FEES. In the event any party is required to
enforce this Agreement by court proceedings or otherwise, then the prevailing party, as determined
by the applicable court or other dispute resolution provider, shall be entitled to recover from the
non-prevailing party all fees and costs incurred, including reasonable attorneys' fees and costs
incurred prior to or during any litigation or other dispute resolution and including all fees and costs
incurred in appellate proceedings.

SECTION7. NoOTICE. All notices, requests, consents and other communications
hereunder (“Notices”) shall be in writing and shall be delivered, mailed by First Class Mail,
postage prepaid, by overnight delivery service, or telecopied or hand delivered to the parties, as
follows:

A. If to the District: Waterset South Community Development District
3434 Colwell Avenue, Suite 200
Tampa, Florida, 33614
Attn: District Manager

With a copy to: Kutak Rock LLP
107 West College Avenue
Tallahassee, Florida 32301
Attn: District Counsel

B. If to Landowner: NNP-Southbend I, LLC
3162 South Falkenburg Road
Riverview, Florida 33578
Attn:

With a copy to: Mahoney Law Group, P.A
2240 Belleair Road, Suite 210
Clearwater, Florida 33764

True-Up Agreement (Series 2025) — NNP-Southbend I1, LLC 5



Attn: Jessica Mahoney

Except as otherwise provided herein, any Notice shall be deemed received only upon actual
delivery at the address or telecopy number set forth herein. If mailed as provided above, Notices
shall be deemed delivered on the third business day unless actually received earlier. Notices hand
delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at the place of delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed
received on the next business day. If any time for giving Notice contained in this Agreement would
otherwise expire on a non-business day, the Notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding
business day. Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays recognized by the United States government
shall not be regarded as business days. Counsel for the parties may deliver Notice on behalf of the
parties. Any party or other person to whom Notices are to be sent or copied may notify the other
parties and addressees of any change in name, address or telecopy number to which Notices shall
be sent by providing the same on five (5) days written notice to the parties and addressees set forth
herein.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent Florida law requires notice to enforce the
collection of assessments placed on property by the District, then the provision of such notice shall
be in lieu of any additional notice required by this Agreement.

SECTIONS8. ASSIGNMENT.

A. Landowner may not assign its True-Up obligations under this Agreement except in
accordance with the terms of this Section 8(C) below. This Agreement shall constitute a covenant
running with title to the District Lands, binding upon Landowner and its successors and assigns as
to the District Lands or portions thereof, and any transferee of any portion of the District Lands,
but shall not be binding upon transferees permitted by Sections 8(B)(i), (ii) or (iii) below.

B. Landowner shall not transfer any portion of the District Lands to any third party
without complying with the terms of Section 8(C) below, other than:

Q) Platted and fully-developed lots to homebuilders restricted from
replatting.

(i)  Platted and fully-developed lots or completed homes to end users.

(iii)  Portions of the District Lands exempt from assessments to the
County, the District, other governmental agencies or a homeowner’s
association created to serve any portion of the project.

Any transfer of any portion of the District Lands pursuant to subsections (i), (ii) or (iii) of this
Section 8(B) shall constitute an automatic release of such portion of the District Lands from the
scope and effect of this Agreement.

C. Landowner shall not transfer any portion of the District Lands to any third party,

except as permitted by Sections 8(B)(i), (ii) or (iii) above, without satisfying the following
conditions (‘“Transfer Conditions™): either (i) satisfying any True-Up Payment that results from a

True-Up Agreement (Series 2025) — NNP-Southbend I1, LLC 6



True-Up analysis that will be performed by the District Manager as a condition to such transfer;
or (ii) causing such third party to assume in writing Landowner’s True-Up obligation under this
Agreement. The transferee assuming Landowner’s True-Up obligation in accordance herewith
shall be deemed the “Landowner” from and after such transfer for all purposes as to such portion
of the District Lands so transferred. Any transfer that is consummated pursuant to this Section 8(C)
shall operate as a release of Landowner from its obligations under this Agreement as to such
portion of the District Lands only arising from and after the date of such transfer and satisfaction
of all of the Transfer Conditions including payment of any True-Up Payment due pursuant to
subsection (i) or assumption of such obligations by the transferee under subsection (ii) above.

SECTION9. AMENDMENT. This Agreement shall constitute the entire agreement
between the parties and may be modified in writing only by the mutual agreement of all parties.
This Agreement may not be amended without the prior written consent of the Trustee on behalf
and acting at the direction of the Bondholders owning a majority of the aggregate principal amount
of the 2025 Bonds then outstanding, subject to the last sentence of Section 12 hereof.

SECTION 10. TERMINATION. This Agreement shall continue in effect until it is rescinded
in writing by the mutual assent of each party, provided, however, that this Agreement may not be
terminated without the prior written consent of the Trustee on behalf and acting as the direction of
the Bondholders owning a majority of the aggregate principal amount of the 2025 Bonds then
outstanding, subject to the last sentence of Section 12 hereof.

SECTION 11. NEGOTIATION AT ARM’S LENGTH. This Agreement has been negotiated
fully between the parties as an arm’s length transaction. All parties participated fully in the
preparation of this Agreement and received the advice of counsel. In the case of a dispute
concerning the interpretation of any provision of this Agreement, all parties are deemed to have
drafted, chosen and selected the language, and the doubtful language will not be interpreted or
construed against either party.

SECTION 12. BENEFICIARIES. This Agreement is solely for the benefit of the formal
parties herein and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason hereof, to or for the
benefit of any third party not a formal party hereto. Nothing in this Agreement expressed or implied
is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person or corporation other than the parties
hereto any right, remedy or claim under or by reason of this Agreement or any provisions or
conditions hereof; and all of the provisions, representations, covenants and conditions herein
contained shall inure to the sole benefit of and shall be binding upon the parties hereto and their
respective representatives, successors and assigns. Notwithstanding the foregoing or anything else
herein to the contrary, the Trustee for the 2025 Bonds, on behalf of the owners of the 2025 Bonds,
shall be a direct third party beneficiary of the terms and conditions of this Agreement and shall be
entitled to cause the District to enforce the Landowner’s obligations hereunder. In the event that
the District does not promptly take Trustee’s written direction under this Agreement, or the District
is otherwise in default under the Indenture, the Trustee shall have the right to enforce the District’s
rights hereunder directly. The Trustee shall not be deemed to have assumed any obligations
hereunder.

True-Up Agreement (Series 2025) — NNP-Southbend I1, LLC 7



SECTION 13. LIMITATIONS ON GOVERNMENTAL LIABILITY. Nothing in this Agreement
shall be deemed as a waiver of immunity or limits of liability of the District beyond any statutory
limited waiver of immunity or limits of liability which may have been adopted by the Florida
Legislature in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, or other statute, and nothing in this Agreement
shall inure to the benefit of any third party for the purpose of allowing any claim which would
otherwise be barred under the Doctrine of Sovereign Immunity or by operation of law.

SECTION 14. APPLICABLE LAwW. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the
State of Florida.

SECTION 15. PuBLIC RecCORDS. The Landowner understands and agrees that all
documents of any kind provided to the District in connection with this Agreement may be public
records and may require treatment as such in accordance with Florida law.

SECTION 16. EXECUTION IN COUNTERPARTS. This instrument may be executed in any
number of counterparts, each of which, when executed and delivered, shall constitute an original,
and such counterparts together shall constitute one and the same instrument. Signature and
acknowledgment pages, if any, may be detached from the counterparts and attached to a single
copy of this document to physically form one document.

SECTION 17. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Agreement shall become effective after execution

by the parties hereto on the date reflected above.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

True-Up Agreement (Series 2025) — NNP-Southbend I1, LLC 8



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties execute this agreement the day and year first written

above.
WITNESSES: WATERSET SOUTH COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
Print Name: Amanda King
Chairperson, Board of Supervisors
Address:
Street

City, State, Zip

Print Name:

Address:

Street

City, State, Zip

STATE OF FLORIDA )
COUNTY OF )

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of [ ] physical presence or

[__1 online notarization this day of , 2025, by Amanda King as

Chairperson of the Board of Supervisors of the Waterset South Community Development District,

for and on behalf of the District. She is [__] personally known to me or [ ] produced
as identification.

NOTARY STAMP:

Signature of Notary Public

Printed Name of Notary Public

True-Up Agreement (Series 2025) — NNP-Southbend I1, LLC 9



WITNESSES: NNP-SOUTHBEND II, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company

Print Name: By: Len Jaffe

Its: Vice President
Address:
Street

City, State, Zip

Print Name:

Address:

Street

City, State, Zip

STATE OF FLORIDA )

COUNTY OF )

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of [ ] physical presence or
[__1 online notarization this day of , 2025, by Len Jaffe as Vice President,
of NNP-Southbend 1I, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, on its behalf. S/He is [_]
personally known to me or [__] produced as identification.
NOTARY STAMP:

Signature of Notary Public

Printed Name of Notary Public

Exhibit A:  Legal Description of District Lands

True-Up Agreement (Series 2025) — NNP-Southbend I1, LLC 10



Exhibit A

Legal Description of District Lands

WATERSET SOUTH
2025 CDD ASSESSMENT AREA

DESCRIPTION: Two (2) parcels of land lying in Sections 27, 28 and 34,
Township 31 South, Range 19 East, Hillsborough County, Florida and being
more particularly described as follows:

PHASES C1 AND HI1

COMMERMCE at the Mortheast corner of the Southwest 1/4 of said Section
27, also being a point on the Northerly boundary of WATERSET WOLF CREEK
PHASES A AND D1 AND WATERSET BOULEVARD TECO EXTENSION AMND
COVINGTOMN GARDEN DRIVE TECO EXTENSION, according to the plat
thereof, as recorded in Plat Book 142, Pages 12 through 31 inclusive, of the
Public Records of Hillsborough County, Florida, run thence along the North
boundary of the South 1/2 of said Section 27, the following two (2) courses:
1) along said Mortherly boundary of WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASES A AND
D1 AND WATERSET BOULEVARD TECO EXTENSION AND COVINGTONM
GARDEN DRIVE TECO EXTENSION, N.B9?16'50"W., 661.15 feet to the
Mortheast corner of WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE B, according to the plat
thereof, as recorded in Plat Book 146, Pages 7 through 28 inclusive, of the
Public Records of Hillsborough County, Florida; 2) along the Northerly
boundary of said WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE B, continue
MN.89°16°50"W., 1328.78 feet to the Morthwest corner of said WATERSET
WOLF CREEK PHASE B, also being on point on the Easterly boundary of the
130.00 foot wide Railroad right-of-way for C.5.X. Transportation, Inc.
(formerly Atlantic Coast Line Railroad and Seaboard Coast Line Railroad) per
Right-of Way and Track Map V19 FLA (4); thence along the Westerly
boundary of said WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE B and said Easterly
boundary of the 130.00 foot wide Railroad right-of-way for C.5.X.
Transportation, Inc., 5.28°37'13"W., 1763.59 feet to the Southwest corner
of said WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE B, also being the POINT OF
BEGINNING; thence along the Southerly boundary of said WATERSET
WOLF CREEK PHASE B, the following six (6) courses: 1) 5.61%22'47"E.,
80.00 feet to a point of curvature; 2) Easterly, 474.72 feet along the arc of a
curve to the left having a radius of 1138.00 feet and a central angle of
23°54'04" (chord bearing S.73°19'50"E., 471.29 feet) to a point of reverse
curvature; 3) Easterly, 832.86 feet along the arc of a curve to the right
having a radius of 2862.00 feet and a central angle of 16°40'24" {chord
bearing 5.76°56'40"E., 829.92 feat); 4) 5.21°23'33"W., 124.00 feet to a
point on a curve; 5) Southeasterly, 721.95 feet along the arc of said curve
to the right having a radius of 2738.00 feet and a central angle of 15°06'27"
(chord bearing 5.61°03'14"E., 719.86 feet) to a point of tangency; &)
5.53°30'00"E., 66.14 feet to a point on the Westerly boundary of WATERSET

True-Up Agreement (Series 2025) — NNP-Southbend 11, LLC

11



WOLF CREEK PHASE D2, according to the plat thereof, as recorded in Plat
Book 143, Pages 145 through 160 inclusive, of the Public Records of
Hillsborough County, Florida; thence along said Westerly boundary of
WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE D2, the following four (4) courses: 1)
continue 5.53°30'00"E., 28.28 feet; 2) 5.01°57'27"E., 84.57 feet; 3)
5.19°955'59"W., 9.32 feet; 4) 5.36°30°00"W., 296.36 feet; thence along the
Southerly boundary of said WATERSET WOLF CREEK. FHASE D2, the
following six (6) courses: 1) 5.53°30°00"E., 124.00 feet; 2) N.36°30'00"E.,
322.41 feet; 3) N.82°20'25"E., 75.95 feet to a point of curvature; 4)
Easterly, 30.37 feet along the arc of a curve to the right having a radius of
50.00 feet and a central angle of 34°48'19" (chord bearing 5.80°15'25"E.,
29.91 feet) to a point of tangency; 5) 5.62%51'16"E., 211.89 feet to a point
of curvature; &) Southeasterly, 96.62 feet along the arc of a curve to the left
having a radius of 1632.00 feet and a central angle of 03°23'31" (chord
bearing 5.64°33'01"E., 96.60 feet) to the Northwest corner of WATERSET
WOLF CREEK PHASE G2 AND 30TH STREET PHASE G2, according to the plat
theraof, as recorded in Plat Book 146, Pages 257 through 283 inclusive, of
the Public Records of Hillsborough County, Florida; thence along the
Westerly boundary of said WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE G2 AND 30TH
STREET PHASE G2, the following four (4) courses: 1) 5.23°45'00"W., 338.21
feet; 2) 5.11°00'00"W., 710.98 feet; 3) 5.36°30'00"W., 100.00 feet; 4)
S.05°00'00"W., 390.52 feet; thence N.74°32'40"W., 439.45 feet to a point
on a curve; thence Northerly, 4.49 feet along the arc of a curve to the right
having a radius of 775.00 feet and a central angle of 00°19'55" (chord
bearing N.15°37'18"E., 4.49 feet) to a point of reverse curvature; thence
MNorthwesterly, 30.28 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius
of 20.00 feet and a central angle of 86°45'18" {chord bearing
N.2723524"W., 27.47 feet) to a point of tangency; thence N.70°58°03"W.,
102.89 feet; thence 5.14°13'00"W., 78.77 feet; thence 5.10°35'00"W.,
56.81 feet; thence S.06°57'00"W., 56.81 feet; thence 5.03°19'00"W., 56.81
feet; thence 5.00°19'00"E., 56.81 feet; thence 5.03°57'00"E., 56.81 feet;
thence 5.08°00'35"E., 53.47 feet; thence 5.07°16'03"E., 150.00 feet;
thence 5.07°14'56"E., 50.10 feet; thence N.75°*05'56"W., 54.69 feet; thence
MN.53°30°00"W., 420.00 feet; thence N.36°30°00"E., 481.26 feet to a point
on a curve; thence Northwesterly, 100.61 feet along the arc of a curve to
the right having a radius of 525.00 feet and a central angle of 10*58'50"
(chord bearing N.58°59'25"W., 100.46 feet) to a point of reverse curvature;
thence Westerly, 31.42 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a
radius of 20.00 feet and a central angle of 90°00'00" (chord bearing
S.81°30'00"W., 28.28 feet); thence N.53°30'00"W., 50.00 feet to a point on
a curve, thence Mortherly, 31.42 feet along the arc of a curve to the left
having a radius of 20.00 feet and a central angle of 90°00'00" (chord
bearing N.08°30'00"W., 28.28 feet) to a point of tangency; thence
N.53%30°00"W., 110.00 feet to a peint of curvature; thence Westerly, 39.27

True-Up Agreement (Series 2025) — NNP-Southbend 11, LLC

12



feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 25.00 feet and a
central angle of 90°00'00" (chord bearing S.81°30'00"W., 35.36 feet);
thence N.53°30'00"W., 124.00 feet; thence N.36°30'00"E., 343.11 feet;
thence N.51°03'00"W., 220.06 feet to a point on a curve; thence
Southwesterly, 14.45 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius
of 4975.00 feet and a central angle of 00°09'59" (chord bearing
5.38°52'00"W., 14.45 feet); thence N.51°12'59"W., 50.00 feet to a point on
a curve; thence Southwesterly, 99.10 feet along the arc of said curve to the
left having a radius of 5025.00 feet and a central angle of 01°07'48" (chord
bearing 5.38°13'07"W., 99.10 feet); thence N.54°00'00"W., 405.06 feet;
thence N.49%22'13"W., 50.00 feet to a peoint on a curve; thence
Mortheasterly, 30.30 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius
of 375.00 feet and a central angle of 04°37'47" (chord bearing
M.38°18°53"E., 30.29 feet) to a point of tangency,; thence N.36°00'00"E.,
65.70 feet to a point of curvature; thence Northerly, 31.42 feet along the arc
of a curve to the left having a radius of 20.00 feet and a central angle of
90°00'00" (chord bearing N.09°00'00"W., 28.28 feet); thence
MN.36°00°00"E., 50.00 feet; thence N.54°00°00"W., 100.00 feet; thence
M.36°00°00"E., 120.00 feet; thence N.02°16949"E., 454.06 feet; thence
MN.65°00°00"W., 268.87 feet; thence N.20°30°30"W., 63.02 feet; thence
MN.47°54'44"W., 119.65 feet; thence N.75°18°58"W., 60.03 feet; thence
S.84°02'47"W., 79.70 feet; thence N.37°09'26"W., 29.30 feet; thence
MN.04°43°58"E., 20.68 feet; thence N.25°01'33"E., 243.64 feet to a point on
a curve; thence Westerly, 355.86 feet along the arc of a curve to the right
having a radius of 1262.00 feet and a central angle of 16°09'23" (chord
bearing N.69°27'29"W., 354.69 feet) to a point of tangency; thence
MN.61222°47"W., 80.00 feet to a point on the aforesaid Easterly boundary of
the 130.00 foot wide Railroad right-of-way for C.5.X. Transportation, Inc.;
thence along said Easterly boundary of the 130.00 foot wide Railroad right-
of-way for C.5.X. Transportation, Inc., N.28237'13"E., 124.00 feet to the
POINT OF BEGINNING.

Containing 68.155 acres, more or less.
TOGETHER with the following described parcel:
PHASE E

COMMENCE at the Mortheast corner of said Section 34, run thence along
the East boundary of said Section 34, the following two {(2) courses: 1)
5.00°33'49"W., 1580.26 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING; 2) continue
S.00°33'49"W., 1098.29 feet to the Northeast corner of WATERSET WOLF
CREEK PHASE F, according to the plat thereof as recorded in Plat Book 147,
Pages 243 through 261 inclusive, of the Public Records of Hillsborough

True-Up Agreement (Series 2025) — NNP-Southbend 11, LLC

13



County, Florida; thence along the Northerly boundary of said WATERSET
WOLF CREEK PHASE F, the following eleven (11) courses: 1) WEST, 530.85
feet; 2) 5.32°59'46"W., 1019.41 feet; 3) N.31°10°02"W., 471.99 feet; 4)
M.B5°11°27"W., 188.66 feet to a point on a curve; 5) Northeasterly, 29.02
feet along the arc of a curve to the right having a radius of 25.00 feet and a
central angle of 66°30'40" (chord bearing N.56°25'41"E., 27.42 feet); 6)
MN.00°18°58"W., 50.00 feet; 7) 5.89°41'02"W., 0.97 feet to a point of
curvature; 8) Northwesterly, 35.01 feet along the arc of a curve to the right
having a radius of 25.00 feet and a central angle of 80°14'30" (chord
bearing N.50°11'43"W., 32.22 feet) to a point of reverse curvature; 9)
Morthwesterly, 204.564 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a
radius of 270.00 feet and a central angle of 43925'32" (chord bearing
M.31°47°14"W., 199.77 feet) to a point of tangency; 10) N.53°30°'00"W.,
35.68 feet to a point of curvature; 11) Northerly, 39.27 feet along the arc of
a curve to the right having a radius of 25.00 feet and a central angle of
90°00'00" (chord bearing N.08®30°00"W., 35.36 feet) to a point of tangency
on the Southeasterly boundary of WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE G2 AND
30TH STREET PHASE G2, according to the plat thereof, as recorded in Plat
Book 146, Pages 257 through 283 inclusive, of the Public Records of
Hillsborough County, Florida; thence along said Southeasterly boundary of
said WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE G2 AND 30TH STREET PHASE G2,
M.36°30°00"E., 1113.00 feet to the Southeast corner of the right-of-way for
30TH STREET ME, according to the plat of WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE
G1 AND 30TH STREET PHASE G1, as recorded in Plat Book 144, Pages 184
through 201 inclusive, of the Public Records of Hillsborough County, Florida;
thence along the Southeasterly boundary of said WATERSET WOLF CREEK
PHASE G1 AND 30TH STREET PHASE G1, continue MN.36°30'00"E., 570.00
feet to a point of cusp; thence Southerly, 39.27 feet along the arc of a curve
to the left having a radius of 25.00 feet and a central angle of 90°00'00"
(chord bearing 5.08°30'00"E., 35.36 feet) to a point of tangency; thence
5.53°30'00"E., 132.00 feet to a point of curvature; thence Easterly, 31.36
feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 50.00 feet and a
central angle of 35°56'11" (chord bearing 5.71°28'06"E., 30.85 feet) to a
point of tangency; thence 5.89926'11"E., 260.09 feet; thence
S.70°18'01"E., 15.69 feet; thence EAST, 254.84 feet to the POINT OF
BEGINNING.

Containing 41.397 acres, more or less.
ALTOGETHER Containing 109.552 acres, more or less.
AMI-WSMN-WS5-159

P:\Waterset\CDD\South CDDMA2025 ASSESSMENT AREA (C1-E-H1)\WSET-
SOUTH 2025-CDD-ASS5ES5-D5.doc

True-Up Agreement (Series 2025) — NNP-Southbend I1, LLC 14



Tab 10



This space reserved for use by the Clerk of

the Circuit Court
This instrument was prepared by and
upon recording should be returned to:

Alyssa Willson, Esq.
KUTAK ROCK LLP
107 West College Avenue
Tallahassee, Florida 32301

WATERSET SOUTH COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT’S
NOTICE OF SERIES 2025 SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the Board of Supervisors of the Waterset South
Community Development District (the “District”) in accordance with Chapters 170, 190, and
197, Florida Statutes, adopted Resolution Nos. 2022-27, 2022-28, 2022-30, 2025-12, 2025-
and 2025-__ (collectively, the “Assessment Resolutions”), providing for, levying and setting
forth the terms of non-ad valorem special assessments constituting a governmental lien on
certain real property within the boundaries of the District that are specially benefitted by the
improvements of the 2025 Project as described in the District’s adopted Supplemental District
Engineer’s Report, Series 2025 Project (2025 Assessment Area) dated July 31, 2025, which
supplemented the Waterset South Community Development District, District Engineer’s Report
Supplement to the Master Capital Improvement Plan dated July 17, 2025 which supplemented
the Master Report of District Engineer, Master Capital Improvement Plan dated August 2022
(the “Engineer’s Report”).

To finance the costs of the Series 2025 Project, the District issued Waterset South
Community Development District (Hillsborough County, Florida) Special Assessment Revenue
Bonds, Series 2025, which are secured by the non-ad valorem assessments levied by the
Assessment Resolutions (the “Series 2025 Assessments”), as described in the Master Special

Assessment Allocation Report, dated August 9, 2022, as amended by the First Amendment to



Master Special Assessment Allocation Report, dated July 17, 2025 and the Final Supplemental

Special Assessment Allocation Report, dated , 2025 (together, the “2025

Assessment Report”). The legal description of the lands on which said Series 2025 Assessments
are imposed is attached to this Notice as Exhibit A. Copies of the Engineer’s Report and the
Assessment Resolutions may be obtained by contacting the District at:
Waterset South Community Development District
c/o Rizzetta & Company, Inc.
3434 Colwell Avenue, Suite 200
Tampa, Florida 33614
Ph.: 813-933-5571

The Series 2025 Assessments provided for in the Assessment Resolutions were legally
and validly determined and levied in accordance with all applicable requirements of Florida law,
and the Series 2025 Assessments constitute and will at all relevant times in the future constitute,
legal, valid and binding first liens on the land against which assessed until paid, coequal with the
lien of all state, county, district and municipal taxes, and superior in dignity to all other liens,
titles and claims.

The District is a special-purpose form of local government established pursuant to and
governed by Chapter 190, Florida Statutes. Pursuant to Section 190.048, Florida Statutes, you
are hereby notified that: THE WATERSET SOUTH COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
DISTRICT MAY IMPOSE AND LEVY TAXES OR ASSESSMENTS, OR BOTH TAXES
AND ASSESSMENTS, ON THIS PROPERTY. THESE TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS
PAY FOR THE CONSTRUCTION, OPERATION, AND MAINTENANCE COSTS OF
CERTAIN PUBLIC FACILITIES AND SERVICES OF THE DISTRICT AND ARE SET
ANNUALLY BY THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE DISTRICT. THESE TAXES AND

ASSESSMENTS ARE IN ADDITION TO COUNTY AND OTHER LOCAL



GOVERNMENTAL TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS AND ALL OTHER TAXES AND
ASSESSMENTS PROVIDED FOR BY LAW. THE LIEN FOR THE SERIES 2025
ASSESSMENTS IS STATUTORY AND NO FILING IS NECESSARY IN ORDER TO
PERFECT OR PROVIDE RECORD NOTICE THEREOF. THIS NOTICE IS FOR
INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES. IN ADDITION TO THE MINUTES, RECORDS AND
OTHER MATERIAL OF THE DISTRICT AVAILABLE FROM THE DISTRICT, THIS
ALSO CONSTITUTES A LIEN OF RECORD FOR PURPOSES OF SECTION 197.573
OF THE FLORIDA STATUTES AND ALL OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF

THE FLORIDA STATUTES AND OTHER APPLICABLE LAW.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Notice has been executed as of the day of

, 2025, and recorded in the Official Records of Hillsborough County, Florida.

WATERSET SOUTH COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Print Name:
Address: Amanda King

Chairperson, Board of Supervisors
Street

City, State, Zip

Print Name:

Address:

Street

City, State, Zip

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of O physical presence or O
online notarization, this day of , 2025, by Amanda King, Chairperson of
the Board of Supervisors of the Waterset South Community Development District, who is [__]
personally know to me or [__] has produced as identification.

(official notary signature)
[notary stamp] Name:




Exhibit A

Legal Description of District Lands

WATERSET SOUTH
2025 CDD ASSESSMENT AREA

DESCRIPTION: Two (2) parcels of land lying in Sections 27, 28 and 34,
Township 31 South, Range 19 East, Hillsborough County, Florida and being
more particularly described as follows:

PHASES C1 AND H1

COMMERNCE at the Mortheast corner of the Southwest 1/4 of said Section
27, also being a point on the Northerly boundary of WATERSET WOLF CREEK
PHASES A AND D1 AND WATERSET BOULEVARD TECO EXTENSION AMD
COVINGTON GARDEN DRIVE TECO EXTENSION, according to the plat
thereof, as recorded in Plat Book 142, Pages 12 through 31 inclusive, of the
Public Records of Hillsborough County, Florida, run thence along the North
boundary of the South 1/2 of said Section 27, the following two (2) courses:
1) along said Mortherly boundary of WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASES A AND
D1 AND WATERSET BOULEVARD TECO EXTENSION AND COVINGTONM
GARDEN DRIVE TECO EXTENSION, N.BS?16'50"W., 661.15 feet to the
Mortheast corner of WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE B, according to the plat
thereof, as recorded in Plat Book 146, Pages 7 through 28 inclusive, of the
Public Records of Hillsborough County, Florida; 2) along the Northerly
boundary of said WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE B, continue
MN.89°16°50"W., 1328.78 feet to the Northwest corner of said WATERSET
WOLF CREEK PHASE B, also being on point on the Easterly boundary of the
130.00 foot wide Railroad right-of-way for C.5.X. Transportation, Inc.
(formerly Atlantic Coast Line Railroad and Seaboard Coast Line Railroad) per
Right-of Way and Track Map V19 FLA (4); thence along the Westerly
boundary of said WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE B and said Easterly
boundary of the 130.00 foot wide Railroad right-of-way for C.5.X.
Transportation, Inc., S.28%°37'13"W., 1763.59 feet to the Southwest corner
of said WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE B, also being the POINT OF
BEGINNING; thence along the Southerly boundary of said WATERSET
WOLF CREEK PHASE B, the following six (6) courses: 1) 5.61%22'47"E.,
80.00 feet to a point of curvature; 2) Easterly, 474.72 feet along the arc of a
curve to the left having a radius of 1138.00 feet and a central angle of
23°54'04" (chord bearing 5.73°19'50"E., 471.29 feet) to a point of reverse
curvature; 3) Easterly, 832.86 feet along the arc of a curve to the right
having a radius of 2862.00 feet and a central angle of 16°40'24" {chord
bearing 5.76°56'40"E., 829.92 feet); 4) 5.21°23'33"W., 124.00 feet to a
point on a curve; 5) Southeasterly, 721.95 feet along the arc of said curve
to the right having a radius of 2738.00 feet and a central angle of 15°06'27"
(chord bearing 5.61°03'14"E., 719.86 feet) to a point of tangency; &)
5.53°30'00"E., 66.14 feet to a point on the Westerly boundary of WATERSET



WOLF CREEK. PHASE D2, according to the plat thereof, as recorded in Plat
Book 143, Pages 145 through 160 inclusive, of the Public Records of
Hillsborough County, Florida; thence along said Westerly boundary of
WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE D2, the following four (4) courses: 1)
continue 5.53°30'00"E., 28.28 feet; 2) 5.01°57'27"E., 84.57 feet; 3)
5.19°955'59"W., 9.32 feet; 4) 5.36°30°00"W., 296.36 feet; thence along the
Southerly boundary of said WATERSET WOLF CREEK. FHASE D2, the
following six (6) courses: 1) 5.53°30°00"E., 124.00 feet; 2) N.36°30'00"E.,
322.41 feet; 3) N.82°20'25"E., 75.95 feet to a point of curvature; 4)
Easterly, 30.37 feet along the arc of a curve to the right having a radius of
50.00 feet and a central angle of 34°48'19" (chord bearing 5.80°15'25"E.,
29.91 feet) to a point of tangency; 5) 5.62°51'16"E., 211.89 feet to a point
of curvature; &) Southeasterly, 96.62 feet along the arc of a curve to the left
having a radius of 1632.00 feet and a central angle of 03°23'31" (chord
bearing 5.64%33'01"E., 96.60 feet) to the Morthwest corner of WATERSET
WOLF CREEK PHASE G2 AND 30TH STREET PHASE G2, according to the plat
thereof, as recorded in Plat Book 146, Pages 257 through 283 inclusive, of
the Public Records of Hillsborough County, Florida; thence along the
Westerly boundary of said WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE G2 AND 30TH
STREET PHASE G2, the following four (4) courses: 1) 5.23%45'00"W., 338.21
feet; 2) 5.11°00'00"W., 710.98 feet; 3) 5.36°30'00"W., 100.00 feet; 4)
S.05°00'00"W., 390.52 feet; thence N.74°32'40"W., 439.45 feet to a point
on a curve; thence Northerly, 4.49 feet along the arc of a curve to the right
having a radius of 775.00 feet and a central angle of 00?19'55" (chord
bearing N.15°37'18"E., 4.49 feet) to a point of reverse curvature; thence
Morthwesterly, 30.28 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius
of 20.00 feet and a central angle of 86°45'18" {chord bearing
N.2793524"W., 27.47 feet) to a point of tangency; thence N.70°58°03"W.,
102.89 feet; thence 5.14°13'00"W., 78.77 feet; thence 5.10°35'00"W.,
56.81 feet; thence S.06°57'00"W., 56.81 feet; thence 5.03°19'00"W., 56.81
feet; thence 5.00°19'00"E., 56.81 feet; thence 5.03°57'00"E., 56.81 feet;
thence S5.08°00'35"E., 53.47 feet; thence 5.07°16'03"E., 150.00 feet;
thence 5.07°14'56"E., 50.10 feet; thence N.75°05'56"W., 54.69 feet; thence
MN.53230°00"W., 420.00 feet; thence N.36°30°00"E., 481.26 feet to a point
on a curve; thence Northwesterly, 100.61 feet along the arc of a curve to
the right having a radius of 525.00 feet and a central angle of 10°58'50"
(chord bearing N.58°59'25"W., 100.46 feet) to a point of reverse curvature;
thence Westerly, 31.42 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a
radius of 20.00 feet and a central angle of 90°00'00" (chord bearing
S.81°30'00"W., 28.28 feet); thence N.53°30'00"W., 50.00 feet to a point on
a curve; thence Mortherly, 31.42 feet along the arc of a curve to the left
having a radius of 20.00 feet and a central angle of 90°00'00" (chord
bearing N.08°30'00"W., 28.28 feet) to a point of tangency; thence
MN.53°30°00"W., 110.00 feet to a point of curvature; thence Westerly, 39.27



feat along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 25.00 feet and a
central angle of 90°00'00" (chord bearing 5.81°30°00"W., 35.36 feet);
thence MN.53°30°'00"W., 124.00 feet; thence N.36°30°00"E., 343.11 feet;
thence N.51°03'00"W., 220.06 feet to a point on a curve; thence
Southwesterly, 14.45 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius
of 4975.00 feet and a central angle of 00°09°59" (chord bearing
5.38°52'00"W., 14.45 feet); thence N.51°%12'59"W., 50.00 feet to a point on
a curve; thence Southwesterly, 99.10 feet along the arc of said curve to the
left having a radius of 5025.00 feet and a central angle of 01°07'48" (chord
bearing 5.38%13'07"W., 99.10 feet); thence N.54%00'00"W., 405.06 feet;
thence N.49%22'13"W., 50.00 feet to a point on a curve; thence
Mortheasterly, 30.30 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius
of 375.00 feet and a central angle of 04°37'47" (chord bearing
MN.38°18'53"E., 30.29 feet) to a point of tangency,; thence N.36°00'00"E.,
65.70 feet to a point of curvature; thence Northerly, 31.42 feet along the arc
of a curve to the left having a radius of 20.00 feet and a central angle of
90°00'00" (chord bearing N.09°00'00"W., 28.28 feet); thence
MN.36%00'00"E., 50.00 feet; thence N.54°00°00"W., 100.00 feet; thence
MN.36200°'00"E., 120.00 feet; thence M.02°16'49"E., 454.06 feet; thence
N.65200'00"W., 268.87 feet; thence N.20°30'30"W., 63.02 feet; thence
N.47°54'44"W., 119.65 feet; thence N.75%18'58"W., 60.03 feet; thence
5.84°02'47"W., 79.70 feet; thence N.37°09'26"W., 29.30 feet; thence
MN.04°43'58"E., 20.68 feet; thence N.25°01'33"E., 243.64 feet to a point on
a curve; thence Westerly, 355.86 feet along the arc of a curve to the right
having a radius of 1262.00 feet and a central angle of 16°09'23" {chord
bearing N.69°27'29"W., 354.69 feet) to a peoint of tangency; thence
MN.61222'47"W., 80.00 feet to a point on the aforesaid Easterly boundary of
the 130.00 foot wide Railroad right-of-way for C.5.X. Transportation, Inc.;
thence along said Easterly boundary of the 130.00 foot wide Railroad right-
of-way for C.5.X. Transportation, Inc., N.28°37'13"E., 124.00 feet to the
POINT OF BEGINNING.

Containing 68.155 acres, more or less.
TOGETHER with the following described parcel:
PHASE E

COMMENCE at the Mortheast corner of said Section 34, run thence along
the East boundary of said Section 34, the following two (2) courses: 1)
5.00°33'49"W., 1580.26 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING; 2) continue
5.00°33'49"W., 1098.29 feet to the Northeast corner of WATERSET WOLF
CREEK PHASE F, according to the plat thereof as recorded in Plat Book 147,
Pages 243 through 261 inclusive, of the Public Records of Hillsborough



County, Florida; thence along the Northerly boundary of said WATERSET
WOLF CREEK PHASE F, the following eleven (11) courses: 1) WEST, 530.85
feet; 2) 5.32°59'46"W., 1019.41 feet; 3) N.31°10°02"W., 471.99 feet; 4)
MN.85°11°27"W., 188.66 feet to a peoint on a curve; 5) Northeasterly, 29.02
feet along the arc of a curve to the right having a radius of 25.00 feet and a
central angle of 56°30'40" (chord bearing M.56%25'41"E., 27.42 feet); 6)
MN.00°18'58"W., 50.00 feet; 7) 5.89%41'02"W., 0.97 feet to a point of
curvature; 8) Northwesterly, 35.01 feet along the arc of a curve to the right
having a radius of 25.00 feet and a central angle of 80°14'30" {chord
bearing N.50°11'43"W., 32.22 feet) to a point of reverse curvature; 9)
Northwesterly, 204.64 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a
radius of 270.00 feet and a central angle of 43%25'32" (chord bearing
MN.31°47°14"W., 199.77 feet) to a point of tangency; 10) N.53°30°00"W.,
35.68 feet to a point of curvature; 11) Mortherly, 39.27 feet along the arc of
a curve to the right having a radius of 25.00 feet and a central angle of
90°00'00" (chord bearing N.08°30'00"W., 35.36 feet) to a point of tangency
on the Southeasterly boundary of WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE G2 AND
30TH STREET PHASE G2, according to the plat thereof, as recorded in Plat
Book 146, Pages 257 through 283 inclusive, of the Public Records of
Hillsborough County, Florida, thence along said Southeasterly boundary of
said WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE G2 AND 30TH STREET PHASE G2,
MN.36°30°00"E., 1113.00 feet to the Southeast corner of the right-of-way for
30TH STREET ME, according to the plat of WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE
G1 AND 30TH STREET PHASE G1, as recorded in Plat Book 144, Pages 184
through 201 inclusive, of the Public Records of Hillsborough County, Florida;
thence along the Southeasterly boundary of said WATERSET WOLF CREEK
PHASE G1 AND 30TH STREET PHASE G1, continue N.36°30'00"E., 570.00
feet to a point of cusp; thence Southerly, 39.27 feet along the arc of a curve
to the left having a radius of 25.00 feet and a central angle of 90°00'00"
(chord bearing S.08°30'00"E., 35.36 feet) to a point of tangency; thence
5.53°30'00"E., 132.00 feet to a point of curvature; thence Easterly, 31.36
feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 50.00 feet and a
central angle of 35°56'11" (chord bearing S.71°28'06"E., 30.85 feet) to a
point of tangency; thence 5.89°26'11"E., 260.09 feet; thence
5.70°18'01"E., 15.69 feet; thence EAST, 254.84 feet to the POINT OF
BEGINNING.

Containing 41.397 acres, more or less.
ALTOGETHER Containing 109.552 acres, more or less.
AMI-WSN-WS5-159

P:\Waterset\CDD\South CODDMV2025 ASSESSMENT AREA (C1-E-H1)\WSET-
SOUTH 2025-CDD-AS5ES55-D5.doc



Tab 11



AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE
WATERSET SOUTH COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
AND NNP-SOUTHBEND I, LLC, REGARDING THE COMPLETION OF CERTAIN
IMPROVEMENTS RELATING TO THE SERIES 2025 PROJECT

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this 9" day of September, 2025, by and
between:

WATERSET SOUTH COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit of special-
purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, being
situated in Hillsborough County, Florida, whose address is 3434 Colwell Avenue,
Suite 200, Tampa, Florida 33614 (the “District”), and

NNP-SoUTHBEND II, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, the primary
owner of certain lands within the boundaries of the District, whose address is 3162
South Falkenburg Road, Riverview, Florida 33578 (the “Landowner”; and together
with the District, the “Parties™).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the District was established by ordinance adopted by the Board of County
Commissioners in and for Hillsborough County, Florida, pursuant to the Uniform Community
Development District Act of 1980, Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, as amended (the “Act”), and is
validly existing under the Constitution and laws of the State of Florida; and

WHEREAS, the Act authorizes the District to issue bonds for the purpose, among others, of
planning, financing, constructing, operating and/or maintaining certain infrastructure, including
earthwork, roadway improvements, stormwater management facilities including those associated
with such roadway improvements, off-site roadway improvements, potable water and wastewater
facilities, reclaimed water facilities, landscaping, hardscaping and sidewalk improvements,
recreational facilities, and other infrastructure within or without the boundaries of the District; and

WHEREAS, the Landowner is the owner of certain lands in Hillsborough County, Florida,
located within the boundaries of the District (the “Development”); and

WHEREAS, the District has adopted an improvement plan to finance the planning, design,
acquisition, construction, and installation of certain infrastructure improvements, facilities, and
services as detailed in the Master Report of District Engineer, Master Capital Improvement Plan,
dated August 2022, as supplemented by the Waterset South Community Development District,
District Engineer’s Report Supplement to the Master Capital Improvement Plan, dated July 17,
2025, as supplemented by the Supplemental District Engineer’s Report, Series 2025 Project (2025
Assessment Area) dated July 31, 2025 (the “Engineer’s Report”) attached to this Agreement as
Exhibit A (“Series 2025 Project”), and the anticipated costs of the Series 2025 Project described
in the Engineer’s Report are identified in Exhibit D of the Engineer’s Report; and

Completion Agreement (Series 2025) — NNP-Southbend I, LLC 1



WHEREAS, the District has imposed special assessments on the property within the District
to secure financing for the construction of the infrastructure improvements described in Exhibit A,
and has validated $170,835,000.00 in special assessment revenue bonds to fund the planning,
design, permitting, construction and/or acquisition of improvements including the Series 2025
Project; and

WHEREAS, the District intends to finance a portion of the cost of the acquisition,
construction, installation and equipping of the Series 2025 Project through the use of proceeds
from the anticipated sale of $ in aggregate principal amount of Waterset South
Community Development District Special Assessment Revenue Bonds, Series 2025 (the “2025
Bonds”); and

WHEREAS, in order to ensure that the Series 2025 Project is completed and funding is
available in a timely manner to provide for their completion, the Landowner and the District hereby
agree that the District will be obligated to issue no more than $ in bonds to fund the
Series 2025 Project and the Landowner will make provision for any additional funds that may be
needed in the future for the completion of the Series 2025 Project over and above that amount
including, but not limited to, all reasonable and customary administrative, legal, warranty,
engineering, permitting or other related soft costs.

Now, THEREFORE, based upon good and valuable consideration and the mutual covenants
of the parties, the receipt of which and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the District
and the Landowner agree as follows:

1. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS. The recitals stated above are true and correct and
by this reference are incorporated by reference as a material part of this Agreement.

2. COMPLETION OF IMPROVEMENTS. The Landowner and District agree and
acknowledge that the District’s proposed 2025 Bonds will provide only a portion of the funds
necessary to complete the Series 2025 Project. Therefore, as more particularly set forth in
paragraphs 2(a) and 2(b) below, the Landowner hereby agrees to complete, cause to be completed,
provide funds or cause funds to be provided to the District in an amount sufficient to allow the
District to complete or cause to be completed, those portions of the Series 2025 Project which
remain unfunded including, but not limited to, all reasonable and customary administrative, legal,
warranty, engineering, permitting or other related soft costs (the “Remaining Improvements™)
whether pursuant to existing contracts, including change orders thereto, or future contracts.
Nothing herein shall cause or be construed to require the District to issue additional bonds or
indebtedness to provide funds for any portion of the Remaining Improvements. The District and
Landowner hereby acknowledge and agree that the District’s execution of this Agreement
constitutes the manner and means by which the District has elected to provide any and all portions
of the Remaining Improvements not funded by District bonds or other indebtedness. However, in
the District’s sole discretion, nothing herein shall prohibit the District from issuing additional
indebtedness secured by lands outside of the Series 2025 Assessment Area for portions of the
Series 2025 Project costs in excess of $ as described in the Final Supplemental
Special Assessment Allocation Report, dated , 2025, attached to Resolution

Completion Agreement (Series 2025) — NNP-Southbend I, LLC 2



2024-03 as Exhibit B. District shall inform Landowner of any such election and the amount of
such election.

(@) When all or any portion of the Remaining Improvements are the subject of
a District contract, the Landowner shall provide funds or cause funds to be provided
directly to the District in an amount sufficient to complete the Remaining Improvements
pursuant to such contract, including change orders thereto, upon written notice from the
District.

(b)  When any portion of the Remaining Improvements is not the subject of a
District contract, the Landowner may choose to: (i) complete, cause to be completed,
provide funds or cause funds to be provided to the District in an amount sufficient to allow
the District to complete or cause to be completed, those Remaining Improvements; or (ii)
have the District enter into a contract and proceed under Section 2(a) above, subject, in
each case to a formal determination by the District’s Board of Supervisors that the option
selected by the Landowner will not adversely impact the District, and is in the District’s
best interests.

3. OTHER CONDITIONS AND ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

(@) The District and the Landowner agree and acknowledge that the exact
location, size, configuration and composition of the Series 2025 Project may change from
that described in the Engineer’s Report, depending upon final design of the Development,
permitting or other regulatory requirements over time, or other factors. Material changes
to the Series 2025 Project shall be made by a written amendment to the Engineer’s Report,
which shall include an estimate of the cost of the changes.

(b)  The District and Landowner agree and acknowledge that any and all
portions of the Remaining Improvements which are constructed, or caused to be
constructed, by the Landowner shall be conveyed to the District or such other appropriate
unit of local government as is designated in the Engineer’s Report or required by
governmental regulation or development approval. All conveyances to another
governmental entity shall be in accordance with and in the same manner as provided in any
agreement between the District and the appropriate unit of local government.

(©) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, the
payment or performance by Landowner of its obligations hereunder is expressly subject to,
dependent and conditioned upon (i) the issuance of $ par amount of bonds
and use of the proceeds thereof to fund a portion of the Series 2025 Project, and (ii) the
scope, configuration, size and/or composition of the Series 2025 Project not materially
changing without the consent of the Landowner. In the event of a material change to the
scope, configuration, size and/or composition of the Series 2025 Project in response to a
requirement imposed by a regulatory agency, the Landowner shall provide written notice
of such changes to the District.

Completion Agreement (Series 2025) — NNP-Southbend I, LLC 3



4. DEFAULT AND PROTECTION AGAINST THIRD PARTY INTERFERENCE. A default by
either Party under this Agreement, which continues for a period of thirty (30) days after notice of
such default, shall entitle the other to all remedies available at law or in equity, which may include,
but not be limited to, the right of actual damages injunctive relief, and/or, if applicable, specific
performance, but excluding punitive and consequential damages and subject to the recourse
limitations in the documents applicable to District and the 2025 Bonds. The District shall be solely
responsible for enforcing its rights under this Agreement against any interfering third party.
Nothing contained in this Agreement shall limit or impair the District’s right to protect its rights
from interference by a third party to this Agreement.

5. ENFORCEMENT OF AGREEMENT. In the event that either of the Parties is required
to enforce this Agreement by court proceedings or otherwise, then the Parties agree that the
prevailing Party shall be entitled to recover from the other all fees and costs incurred, including
reasonable attorneys' fees and costs for trial, alternative dispute resolution, or appellate
proceedings.

6. AMENDMENTS. Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in this
Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing which is executed by both the District
and the Landowner.

7. AUTHORIZATION. The execution of this Agreement has been duly authorized by
the appropriate body or official of the District and the Landowner, both the District and the
Landowner have complied with all the requirements of law, and both the District and the
Landowner have full power and authority to comply with the terms and provisions of this
instrument.

8. NoTICES. All notices, requests, consents and other communications under this
Agreement ("Notices™) shall be in writing and shall be delivered, mailed by First Class Mail,
postage prepaid, or overnight delivery service, to the Parties, as follows:

A. If to the District: Waterset South Community Development District
3434 Colwell Avenue, Suite 200
Tampa, Florida 33614
Attn: District Manager

With a copy to: Kutak Rock LLP
107 West College Avenue
Tallahassee, Florida 32301
Attn: District Counsel

B. If to Landowner: NNP-Southbend II, LLC
3162 South Falkenburg Road
Riverview, Florida 33578
Attn:

With a copy to: Mahoney Law Group, P.A

Completion Agreement (Series 2025) — NNP-Southbend I, LLC 4



2240 Belleair Road, Suite 210
Clearwater, Florida 33764
Attn: Jessica Mahoney

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any Notice shall be deemed received only
upon actual delivery at the address set forth above. Notices delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at the place
of delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on the next business day. If any
time for giving Notice contained in this Agreement would otherwise expire on a non-business day,
the Notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding business day. Saturdays, Sundays, and
legal holidays recognized by the United States government shall not be regarded as business days.
Counsel for the District and counsel for the Landowner may deliver Notice on behalf of the District
and the Landowner. Any Party or other person to whom Notices are to be sent or copied may notify
the other parties and addressees of any change in name or address to which Notices shall be sent
by providing the same on five (5) days written notice to the parties and addressees set forth herein.

9. ARM’S LENGTH TRANSACTION. This Agreement has been negotiated fully between
the District and the Landowner as an arm’s length transaction. Both Parties participated fully in
the preparation of this Agreement and received the advice of counsel. In the case of a dispute
concerning the interpretation of any provision of this Agreement, both Parties are deemed to have
drafted, chosen, and selected the language, and the doubtful language will not be interpreted or
construed against either the District or the Landowner.

10.  THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES. This Agreement is solely for the benefit of the
District and the Landowner and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason, to or
for the benefit of any third party not a formal party to this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement
expressed or implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person or corporation
other than the District and the Landowner any right, remedy, or claim under or by reason of this
Agreement or any of the provisions or conditions of this Agreement; and all of the provisions,
representations, covenants, and conditions contained in this Agreement shall inure to the sole
benefit of and shall be binding upon the District and the Landowner and their respective
representatives, successors, and assigns.

11.  AsSIGNMENT. Neither the District nor the Landowner may assign this Agreement
or any monies to become due hereunder without the prior written approval of the other; provided
however that Landowner may assign its rights and obligations to any entity which acquires all or
substantially all of Landowner’s interest in the Development without the District’s consent but
with notice to the District.

12.  APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE. This Agreement and the provisions contained
herein shall be construed, interpreted and controlled according to the laws of the State of Florida.
Each Party consents that the venue for any litigation arising out of or related to this Agreement
shall be in Hillsborough County, Florida.

13.  EFrFecCTIVE DATE. This Agreement shall be effective upon the later of the execution
by the District and the Landowner.

Completion Agreement (Series 2025) — NNP-Southbend I, LLC 5



14. PusLIC RECORDS. The Landowner understands and agrees that all documents of
any kind provided to the District in connection with this Agreement may be public records and
treated as such in accordance with Florida law.

15.  SEVERABILITY. The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more provisions
of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining portions of this
Agreement, or any part of this Agreement not held to be invalid or unenforceable.

16. LIMITATIONS ON GOVERNMENTAL LIABILITY. Nothing in this Agreement shall be
deemed as a waiver of immunity or limits of liability of the District beyond any statutory limited
waiver of immunity or limits of liability which may have been adopted by the Florida Legislature
in section 768.28, Florida Statutes, or other statute, and nothing in this Agreement shall inure to
the benefit of any third party for the purpose of allowing any claim which would otherwise be
barred under the Doctrine of Sovereign Immunity or by operation of law.

17.  FORCE MAJEURE. If any Party hereto shall be delayed in, hindered in or prevented
from performing any of its obligations under this Agreement by reason of labor disputes, inability
to obtain any necessary materials or services, acts of God, weather conditions that are unusually
severe or exceed average conditions for that time of year, persistent inclement weather, war,
terrorist acts, insurrection, delays caused by governmental permitting or regulations, the time for
performance of such obligation shall be automatically extended (on a day for day basis) for a
period equal to the period of such delay.

18. HEADINGS FOR CONVENIENCE ONLY. The descriptive headings in this Agreement
are for convenience only and shall not control nor affect the meaning or construction of any of the
provisions of this Agreement.

19.  COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts,
each of which when executed and delivered shall be an original; however, all such counterparts
together shall constitute, but one and the same instrument. Signature and acknowledgment pages,
if any, may be detached from the counterparts and attached to a single copy of this document to
physically form one document.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

Completion Agreement (Series 2025) — NNP-Southbend I, LLC 6



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties execute this Agreement the day and year first
written above.

Attest: WATERSET SOUTH COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Secretary / Assistant Secretary Amanda King
Chairperson, Board of Supervisors

NNP-SOUTHBEND 11, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company

Witness By: Len Jaffe
Its: Vice President

Exhibit A:  Supplemental District Engineer’s Report, Series 2025 Project (2025 Assessment
Area) dated July 31, 2025

Completion Agreement (Series 2025) — NNP-Southbend I, LLC 7



Exhibit A

Supplemental District Engineer’s Report, Series 2025 Project (2025 Assessment Area)
dated July 31, 2025

Completion Agreement (Series 2025) — NNP-Southbend I, LLC



Tab 12



This instrument prepared by:
Alyssa Willson, Esg.

KUTAK ROCK LLP

107 West College Avenue
Tallahassee, Florida 32301

Cross-reference:  O.R. Book 20888, Page 216
O.R. Book 25457, Page 531, Inst # 2020546423;
Inst # 2021654447; Inst # 2022090764; Inst #
2022589693; Inst #  2023549053; Inst
#2024514637

TRI-PARTY AGREEMENT RELATING TO ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF
JURISDICTION, IMPOSITION OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS, AND
SUBORDINATION OF INTERESTS

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this 11" day of September, 2025 by and
between:

Waterset South Community Development District, a local unit
of special purpose government created pursuant to Chapter 190,
Florida Statutes, with a mailing address of 3434 Colwell Avenue,
Suite 200, Tampa, Florida 33544 (the “District”);

NNP-Southbend 11, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
and owner of certain lands within the District, with a mailing
address of 3162 South Falkenburg Road, Riverview, Florida 33578
(the “Landowner” or “Mortgagor”); and

NASH Financing, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company,
with a mailing address of c/o Sekisui House US Holdings, LLC
4225 Executive Square, Suite 1070, La Jolla, California 92037 (the
“Subordinate Lender” or “Mortgagee”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the District is a local unit of special purpose government created pursuant to
Chapter 190, Florida Statutes (the “Act”); and

WHEREAS, the Act authorizes the District to issue bonds for the purposes of planning,
financing, constructing, operating, and/or maintaining certain infrastructure; and

WHEREAS, the District has issued (or will issue) its Waterset South Community
Development District Special Assessment Revenue Bonds, Series 2025 in the aggregate principal
amount of $5,450,000 (the “Series 2025 Bonds”), to finance certain public infrastructure which
will provide special benefit to property within the District; and



WHEREAS, the Series 2025 Bonds are being issued pursuant to the Act and a Master
Trust Indenture dated as of December 1, 2022 by and between the District and U.S. Bank Trust
Company, National Association (the “Master Indenture”) as trustee, as supplemented by a
Third Supplemental Trust Indenture dated as of September 1, 2025 (the "Third Supplemental
Indenture” and, together with the Master Indenture, the "Indenture™); and

WHEREAS, the security for the repayment of the Series 2025 Bonds is the lien of the
special assessments levied by the District against certain lands within the District (the “Series
2025 Assessments”), including certain land within the District owned by the Landowner, from
time to time; and

WHEREAS, the Subordinate Lender is the holder of that certain Mortgage, Assignment
of Rents, Security Agreement and Fixture Filing dated December 30, 2011 and recorded January
4, 2012 in Official Records Book 20888, Page 216, as affected by that certain Modification of
Mortgage, Assignment of Rents, Security Agreement and Fixture Filing recorded December 28,
2017 in Official Records Book 25457, Page 531, as affected by that certain Modification of
Mortgage, Assignment of Rents, Security Agreement and Fixture Filing recorded December 21,
2020 in Instrument # 2020546423, as affected by that certain Modification of Mortgage,
Assignment of Rents, Security Agreement and Fixture Filing recorded December 17, 2021 in
Instrument # 2021654447, as affected by that certain Modification of Mortgage, Assignment of
Rents, Security Agreement and Fixture Filing recorded February 18, 2022 in Instrument #
2022090764, as affected by that certain Modification of Mortgage, Assignment of Rents,
Security Agreement and Fixture Filing recorded December 16, 2022, in Instrument #
2022589693, as affected by that certain Modification of Mortgage, Assignment of Rents,
Security Agreement and Fixture Filing recorded December 6, 2023 in Instrument #2023549053,
and as affected by that certain Modification of Mortgage, Assignment of Rents, Security
Agreement and Fixture Filing recorded December 12, 2024 in Instrument #2024514637, all of
the Public Records of Hillsborough County, Florida (the “Mortgage”); and

WHEREAS, the Mortgage encumbers the real and personal property described therein,
from time to time, located in Hillsborough County, Florida (the real property being referred to as
the “Mortgaged Property” and with the personal property, collectively referred to as the
“Collateral”); and

WHEREAS, the District has levied (or will levy) assessments pursuant to a the Preliminary
Supplemental Special Assessment Allocation Report dated August 14, 2025 (the “Series 2025
Assessments”), and such Series 2025 Assessments will be further allocated as the Series 2025
Assessments on certain benefitted land within the District, including a portion of the Mortgaged
Property, which property is legally described in Exhibit “A” hereto (the “Lands”), in
accordance with Florida law; and

WHEREAS, the Series 2025 Assessments will be imposed and levied for the purpose of
generating funds which will be used to make payments due upon the Series 2025 Bonds which
are being issued concurrently with the effective date of this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, in order to induce the District to impose and levy the Series 2025
Assessments and issue the Series 2025 Bonds, for the benefit of all of the Lands, including

2



portions of the Mortgaged Property, the District has required, and the Mortgagor has requested,
that the Mortgagee acknowledge: (i) the statutory priority of the lien of the Series 2025
Assessments; (ii) that if the Mortgagee becomes the fee simple owner of the Mortgaged
Property, whether by judicial foreclosure, private foreclosure, deed-in-lieu of foreclosure or
otherwise, its title will be subject to all Series 2025 Assessments not previously paid that
encumber the Lands; and (iii) that to the extent that the imposition of the Series 2025
Assessments would otherwise constitute a default under the Mortgage, the Mortgagee shall
waive such default; and

WHEREAS, the Mortgagee has agreed to provide such acknowledgments as set forth
herein; and

WHEREAS, in connection with the issuance by the District of the Series 2025 Bonds, the
Landowner has executed or will execute that certain Collateral Assignment and Assumption of
Development and Contract Rights Relating to the Capital Improvement Program- Series 2025
Project (the “Collateral Assignment”) in favor of the District, collaterally assigning to the
District, Assignor’s development and contract rights relating and to the extent pertaining to the
Series 2025 project (“Project”), as security for Landowner’s payment of the Series 2025
Assessments levied against the Series 2025 Assessment Area, all as more particularly described
in the Collateral Assignment (the “Development and Contract Rights”); and

WHEREAS, the District, the Landowner, and the Subordinate Lender wish to acknowledge
the respective priorities with respect to: (i) the lien of the Series 2025 Assessments; (ii) the lien
and security interest of the Mortgage in favor of the Subordinate Lender; and (iii) the
Development and Contract Rights associated with the Collateral.

Now THEREFORE, in consideration of the benefits that will accrue to each party arising
out of the execution of this Agreement, the sufficiency whereof is hereby acknowledged, the
parties do hereby agree as follows:

1. RECITALS. The foregoing recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein
by this reference.

2. COVENANTS BY THE SUBORDINATE LENDER. The Subordinate Lender makes the
following acknowledgments and agreements to and for the benefit of the District and its
successors and the Landowner and its successors:

a. The Subordinate Lender acknowledges that the Series 2025 Assessments will
impose a statutory lien on the Lands, superior to the lien of the Mortgage.

b. The Subordinate Lender agrees that it will not assert against the District, the
Trustee or the holders of the Series 2025 Bonds, that the lien or payment of
the Series 2025 Assessments will violate any provision of the Mortgage, or
any other agreement made by the Landowner with or for the benefit of
Mortgagee, in connection with the Mortgage or any indebtedness secured
thereby.



c. The Subordinate Lender further agrees that it will not in any way contest the
legality or the validity of the Series 2025 Assessments or contest or challenge
the future levy or imposition of the Series 2025 Assessments or any of the
proceedings to be conducted in connection therewith.

d. If the Subordinate Lender becomes the fee simple owner of the Mortgaged
Property, whether by judicial foreclosure, private foreclosure, deed-in-lieu of
foreclosure or otherwise, the Subordinate Lender recognizes that its title to the
Mortgaged Property will be subject to all unpaid Series 2025 Assessments that
encumber the Series 2025 Assessment Area.

e. The Subordinate Lender agrees that it will not assert against the District, the
Trustee or the holders of the Series 2025 Bonds, that the Collateral
Assignment violates any provision of the Mortgage, or any other agreement
made by the Landowner with or for the benefit of Subordinate Lender, in
connection with the Mortgage or any indebtedness secured thereby.

3. REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS — LANDOWNER. Landowner
represents, warrants, and covenants that:

a. Landowner is the sole owner of the Collateral.

b. To the best of its knowledge, as of the date hereof, there is no other lien or
encumbrance on the Collateral except as set forth herein or appearing of
record.

4. MORTGAGE NOT AFFECTED. This Agreement is made by Subordinate Lender
solely for the benefit of the District and the current and future holders of the Series 2025 Bonds.
Except as set forth herein, this Agreement shall not affect the Mortgage or limit Subordinate
Lender’s rights or Landowner’s obligations under the Mortgage. Without limiting the generality
of the foregoing, nothing herein shall limit Mortgagee’s right or ability to declare a default under
the Mortgage in the event of a violation of the terms of the Mortgage.

5. MORTGAGEE WAIVERS. By execution of this Agreement, the Subordinate Lender
hereby waives any default under the Mortgage, or other documents entered into in connection
therewith, arising solely from the issuance of the Series 2025 Bonds and the imposition of the
Series 2025 Assessments. No other waiver is given or implied.

6. SUBORDINATION. The Subordinate Lender and the Landowner hereby agree that
the lien of the Mortgage is now and shall forever hereafter be subordinate and inferior to the lien
of the Series 2025 Assessments and the lien of the Collateral Assignment. Further, except as
expressly provided for in this Agreement, the terms of the Mortgage and all rights and remedies
of the Subordinate Lender available thereunder are hereby expressly subordinated to the terms of
the Collateral Assignment and the rights and remedies of District available thereunder and under
Florida law relating to the Series 2025 Assessments to the extent levied against the Mortgaged
Property.



7. NOTIFICATION. The District shall, within thirty (30) days, provide notice in the
manner provided herein to the other parties of any of the following which may come to the
attention of such party with respect to this Agreement:

a. Delinquent payment of the Series 2025 Assessments or other assessments
owed to the District on property then encumbered by the Mortgage;

b. Acceleration of the Series 2025 Assessments; and
c. Event of Default under the Indenture or the Collateral Assignment.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT. The Subordinate Lender and Landowner acknowledge and
agree that the failure of Landowner to pay the Series 2025 Assessments levied against the Lands
or the occurrence of an Event of Default under the Indenture shall constitute a default of the
Mortgage.

9. OPPORTUNITY TO CURE. Only to the extent not inconsistent with the Indenture,
the parties agree that the Subordinate Lender shall have ninety (90) days from the receipt of
notice provided per “Section 14. Notification” of this Agreement to cure any delinquent payment
of the Series 2025 Assessments or other assessments owed to the District prior to acceleration or
Event of Default under the Indenture, or exercise by the District or Trustee of any rights or
remedies under the Indenture, the Collateral Assignment or otherwise at law or in equity.

10. REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS — SUBORDINATE LENDER.
Subordinate Lender represents, warrants, and covenants that:

a. Subordinate Lender is the sole owner and current mortgagee under the
Mortgage.

b. To the best of its knowledge, as of the date hereof, there is no default or event
which by notice or the passage of time would constitute an event of default
under the Mortgage.

11. ENFORCEMENT OF AGREEMENT. In the event that a party is required to enforce
this Agreement by court proceedings or otherwise, then the parties agree that the prevailing party
shall be entitled to recover from the defaulting party all fees and costs incurred, including
reasonable attorneys' fees and costs for trial, alternative dispute resolution, or appellate
proceedings.

12.  AMENDMENTS. Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in this
Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing which is executed by each of the
parties. This Agreement may not be amended without the prior written consent of the Trustee
and the owners of a majority of the aggregate principal amount of the Series 2025 Bonds then
outstanding.



13.  AUTHORIZATION. The execution of this Agreement has been duly authorized by
the appropriate body or official of each party, each party has complied with all the requirements
of law, and each party has the full power and authority to comply with the terms and provisions
of this instrument.

14.  NorTiIces. All notices, requests, consents and other communications under this
Agreement ("Notices") shall be in writing and delivered, mailed by First Class Mail, postage
prepaid, or overnight delivery service, to the parties, as follows:

a. If to the District: Waterset South Community Development
District
c/o Rizzetta & Company
3434 Colwell Avenue, Suite 200
Tampa, Florida 33544
Attn.: District Manager

With a copy to: Kutak Rock LLP
107 West College Avenue
Tallahassee, Florida 32301
Attn.: District Counsel

b. If to the Landowner: NNP-Southbend I, LLC
3162 South Falkenburg Road
Riverview, Florida 33578
Attn.: Len Jaffe

With a copy to: Mahoney Law Group, P.A.
2240 Belleair Road, Suite 210
Clearwater, Florida 33764
Attn.: Jessica Mahoney

C. If to the Subordinate NASH Financing, LLC
Lender: c/o Sekisui House US Holdings, LLC
4225 Executive Square, Suite 1070
La Jolla, California 92037
Attn.: Kohji Fukano
Chief Financial Officer

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any Notice shall be deemed received
only upon actual delivery at the address set forth above. Notices delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at the
place of delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on the next business day.
If any time for giving Notice contained in this Agreement would otherwise expire on a non-
business day, the Notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding business day. Saturdays,
Sundays, and legal holidays recognized by the United States government shall not be regarded as
business days. Counsel for each party may deliver Notice on behalf of the respective party he/she
represents. Any party or other person to whom Notices are to be sent or copied may notify the



other parties and addressees of any change in name or address to which Notices shall be sent by
providing the same on at least five (5) days written notice to the parties and addressees set forth
herein.

15. ARM’S LENGTH TRANSACTION. This Agreement has been negotiated fully by and
between the parties as an arm’s length transaction. The parties participated fully in the
preparation of this Agreement and received the advice of counsel. In the case of a dispute
concerning the interpretation of any provision of this Agreement, the parties are all deemed to
have drafted, chosen, and selected the language, and the doubtful language will not be
interpreted or construed against any party as the drafter of that language.

16.  THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES. Except as set forth herein, this Agreement is
solely for the benefit of the parties hereto and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by
reason of, to or for the benefit of any third party not a formal party to this Agreement. Except as
set forth herein, nothing in this Agreement expressed or implied is intended or shall be construed
to confer upon any person or corporation other than the parties any right, remedy, or claim under
or by reason of this Agreement or any of the provisions or conditions of this Agreement; except
as set forth herein, all of the provisions, representations, covenants, and conditions contained in
this Agreement shall inure to the sole benefit of and shall be binding upon the parties and their
respective representatives, successors, and assigns. Notwithstanding anything herein to the
contrary, the Trustee for the Series 2025 Bonds, on behalf of the owners thereof, shall be a direct
third-party beneficiary of the terms and conditions of this Agreement and shall be entitled to
cause the District to enforce the Landowner’s and Subordinate Lender’s respective obligations
hereunder.

17.  ASSIGNMENT. None of the parties may assign this Agreement or any monies to
become due hereunder without the prior written approval of the others, which approval shall not
be unreasonably withheld.

18.  APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE. This Agreement and the provisions contained
herein shall be construed, interpreted and controlled according to the laws of the State of Florida.
Each party consents that the venue for any litigation arising out of or related to this Agreement
shall be in Hillsborough County, Florida.

19. EFFecTIVE DATE. This Agreement shall be effective after execution by all of the
parties hereto.

20. PuBLIC RECORDS. The parties understand and agree that all documents of any
kind provided to the District may be public records and treated as such in accordance with
Florida law.

21. SEVERABILITY. The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more provisions
of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining portions of this
Agreement, or any part of this Agreement not held to be invalid or unenforceable.



22. LIMITATIONS ON GOVERNMENTAL LIABILITY. Nothing in this Agreement shall
be deemed as a waiver of immunity or limit of liability of the District beyond any statutory
limited waiver of immunity or limits of liability which may have been adopted by the Florida
Legislature in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, or other statute, and nothing in this Agreement
shall inure to the benefit of any third party for the purpose of allowing any claim which would
otherwise be barred under the Doctrine of Sovereign Immunity or by operation of law.

23. HEADINGS FOR CONVENIENCE ONLY. The descriptive headings in this
Agreement are for convenience only and shall not control nor affect the meaning or construction
of any of the provisions of this Agreement.

24.  COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in any number of
counterparts, each of which when executed and delivered shall be an original; however, all such
counterparts together shall constitute but one and the same instrument. Signature pages and
acknowledgment pages, if any, may be detached from the counterparts and attached to a single
copy of this document physically to form one document.

25. FURTHER ASSURANCES. So long as the Series 2025 Assessments encumber any of
the Mortgaged Property and the Collateral Assignment and/or the Mortgage encumber any of the
Collateral, Subordinate Lender will execute, acknowledge and deliver, in recordable form and
upon demand, any subordinations or other instruments the District reasonably requires in order to
carry out the provisions of this Agreement.

26. EFFECT OF AGREEMENT. The declarations, acknowledgments, and agreements
contained herein shall run with title to the Mortgaged Property, as partially released from time to
time, and shall be binding on such Mortgaged Property and on all persons (including
corporations, associations, trusts, and other legal entities) taking title to all or any part of the
Mortgaged Property while still subject to the lien of the Mortgage, and its successors in interest,
whether or not the Mortgaged Property is platted at such time. By taking such title, such persons
shall be deemed to have consented and agreed to the provisions of this Agreement to the same
extent as if they had executed it, and by taking such title such persons shall be estopped from
contesting, in court or otherwise, the validity, legality, and enforceability of this Agreement or of
any of the ordinances, resolutions, agreements, documents, and other matters dealt with herein.

[Signature pages follow.]



Dated as of this day of , 2025.

Attest: Waterset South Community
Development District, a local unit of
special purpose  government  created
pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes

By:
Secretary / Assistant Secretary Amanda King
Printed Name: Its:  Chairperson
Address:
Street

City, State, Zip

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF HILLSBOROUGH

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of [ ] physical presence or

[__1 online notarization this day of , 2025, by Amanda King as
Chairperson of Waterset South Community Development District, for and on behalf of said
company. She O is personally known to me or O produced as

identification.

NOTARY SEAL

NOTARY PUBLIC, State of

Print or Stamp Name
My Commission Expires:




Dated as of this day of , 2025.

Witnesses: NNP-SOUTHBEND II, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company

By:
Printed Name: Daryl-Lynn Burke,
Address: Vice President and Treasurer

Street

City, State, Zip

Printed Name:
Address:

Street

City, State, Zip

“A Notary Public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the
individual who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness,
accuracy, or validity of that document.”

State of California
County of )

On , 2025 before me,
personally appeared Daryl-Lynn Burke, who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the
person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they
executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity, and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the
instrument the person, or the entity upon behalf of which the person acted, executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing
paragraph is true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

Signature (Seal)

10




Dated as of this day of , 2025.

Witnesses: MORTGAGEE:

NASH FINANCING, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company

Printed Name:
Address:

By: North America Sekisui House, LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company,
its sole member

Street

City, State, Zip
By:
Kohji Fukano, Chief Financial Officer

Printed Name:

Address: Address: c/o Sekisui House US Holdings, LLC
4225 Executive Square
Street Suite 1070

La Jolla, California 92037

City, State, Zip

“A Notary Public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the
individual who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness,
accuracy, or validity of that document.”

On , 2025, bhefore me, , Notary
Public, personally appeared Kohji Fukano, who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be
the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that
he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their
signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted,
executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing
paragraph is true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

Signature (Seal)

11




Exhibit “A”

Legal Description of the Lands within the Waterset South Community Development
District — Series 2025 Project (the “Lands”)

WATERSET SOUTH
2025 CDD ASSESSMENT AREA

12



Tab 13



This instrument prepared by:
Alyssa Willson, Esg.
KUTAK ROCK LLP

107 West College Avenue
Tallahassee, Florida 32301

Cross-reference: O.R. Book 17285, Page 494;
Instrument # 2020536246; Instrument #

2021652650; Instrument #2022587586;
Instrument # 2023548388; Instrument
#2024514143

TRI-PARTY AGREEMENT RELATING TO ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF
JURISDICTION, IMPOSITION OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS, AND
SUBORDINATION OF INTERESTS

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this 11 day of September, 2025 by and
between:

Waterset South Community Development District, a local unit of
special purpose government created pursuant to Chapter 190,
Florida Statutes, with a mailing address of 3434 Colwell Avenue,
Suite 200, Tampa, Florida 33544 (the “District”);

NNP-Southbend 11, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company
and owner of certain lands within the District, with a mailing address
of 3162 South Falkenburg Road, Riverview, Florida 33578 (the
“Landowner” or “Mortgagor”); and

Land Reserve, Inc.,, a Utah corporation formerly knowm as
Suburban Land Reserve, Inc., a Utah corporation, with a mailing
address of 51 South Main Street, Suite 301, Salt Lake City, Utah
84111 (the “Subordinate Lender” or “Mortgagee”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the District is a local unit of special purpose government created pursuant to
Chapter 190, Florida Statutes (the “Act”); and

WHEREAS, the Act authorizes the District to issue bonds for the purposes of planning,
financing, constructing, operating, and/or maintaining certain infrastructure; and

WHEREAS, the District has issued (or will issue) its Waterset South Community
Development District Special Assessment Revenue Bonds, Series 2025 in the aggregate principal
amount of $5,450,000 (the “Series 2025 Bonds”), to finance certain public infrastructure which
will provide special benefit to property within the District; and

Tri-Party Agreement —Land Reserve



WHEREAS, the Series 2025 Bonds are being issued pursuant to the Act and a Master Trust
Indenture dated as of December 1, 2022 by and between the District and U.S. Bank Trust
Company, National Association (the “Master Indenture”) as trustee, as supplemented by a Third
Supplemental Trust Indenture dated as of September 1, 2025 (the "Third Supplemental
Indenture” and, together with the Master Indenture, the "Indenture™); and

WHEREAS, the security for the repayment of the Series 2025 Bonds is the lien of the special
assessments levied by the District against certain lands within the District (the “Series 2025
Assessments”™), including certain land within the District owned by the Landowner, from time to
time; and

WHEREAS, the Subordinate Lender is the holder of that certain Mortgage dated December 15,
2006 and recorded December 29, 2006 in Official Records Book 17285, Page 494, as affected by that
certain Modification of Mortgage recorded December 17, 2020 in Instrument # 2020536246, Modification
of Mortgage recorded December 16, 2021 in Instrument # 2021652650, Modification of Mortgage recorded
December 15, 2022 in Instrument # 2022587586, Modification of Mortgage recorded December 5, 2023
in Instrument # 2023548388, and Modification of Mortgage recorded December 11, 2024 in Instrument #
2024514143, all of the Public Records of Hillsborough County, Florida (the “Mortgage™); and

WHEREAS, the Mortgage encumbers the real and personal property described therein, from
time to time, located in Hillsborough County, Florida (the real property being referred to as the
“Mortgaged Property” and with the personal property, collectively referred to as the
“Collateral”); and

WHEREAS, the District has levied (or will levy) assessments pursuant to a the Preliminary
Supplemental Special Assessment Allocation Report dated August 14, 2025 (the “Series 2025
Assessments”), and such Series 2025 Assessments will be further allocated as the Series 2025
Assessments on certain benefitted land within the District, including a portion of the Mortgaged
Property, which property is legally described in Exhibit “A” hereto (the “Lands”), in accordance
with Florida law; and

WHEREAS, the Series 2025 Assessments will be imposed and levied for the purpose of
generating funds which will be used to make payments due upon the Series 2025 Bonds which are
being issued concurrently with the effective date of this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, in order to induce the District to impose and levy the Series 2025 Assessments
and issue the Series 2025 Bonds, for the benefit of all of the Lands, including portions of the
Mortgaged Property, the District has required, and the Mortgagor has requested, that the
Mortgagee acknowledge: (i) the statutory priority of the lien of the Series 2025 Assessments; (ii)
that if the Mortgagee becomes the fee simple owner of the Mortgaged Property, whether by judicial
foreclosure, private foreclosure, deed-in-lieu of foreclosure or otherwise, its title will be subject to
all Series 2025 Assessments not previously paid that encumber the Lands; and (iii) that to the
extent that the imposition of the Series 2025 Assessments would otherwise constitute a default
under the Mortgage, the Mortgagee shall waive such default; and

WHEREAS, the Mortgagee has agreed to provide such acknowledgments as set forth herein;
and

Tri-Party Agreement —Land Reserve



WHEREAS, in connection with the issuance by the District of the Series 2025 Bonds, the
Landowner has executed or will execute that certain Collateral Assignment and Assumption of
Development and Contract Rights Relating to the Capital Improvement Program- Series 2025
Project (the “Collateral Assignment”) in favor of the District, collaterally assigning to the
District, Assignor’s development and contract rights relating and to the extent pertaining to the
Series 2025 project (“Project”), as security for Landowner’s payment of the Series 2025
Assessments levied against the Series 2025 Assessment Area, all as more particularly described in
the Collateral Assignment (the “Development and Contract Rights”); and

WHEREAS, the District, the Landowner, and the Subordinate Lender wish to acknowledge
the respective priorities with respect to: (i) the lien of the Series 2025 Assessments; (ii) the lien
and security interest of the Mortgage in favor of the Subordinate Lender; and (iii) the Development
and Contract Rights associated with the Collateral.

Now THEREFORE, in consideration of the benefits that will accrue to each party arising
out of the execution of this Agreement, the sufficiency whereof is hereby acknowledged, the
parties do hereby agree as follows:

1. RECITALS. The foregoing recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein
by this reference.

2. COVENANTS BY THE SUBORDINATE LENDER. The Subordinate Lender makes the
following acknowledgments and agreements to and for the benefit of the District and its successors
and the Landowner and its successors:

a. The Subordinate Lender acknowledges that the Series 2025 Assessments will
impose a statutory lien on the Lands, superior to the lien of the Mortgage.

b. The Subordinate Lender agrees that it will not assert against the District, the
Trustee or the holders of the Series 2025 Bonds, that the lien or payment of the
Series 2025 Assessments will violate any provision of the Mortgage, or any
other agreement made by the Landowner with or for the benefit of Mortgagee,
in connection with the Mortgage or any indebtedness secured thereby.

c. The Subordinate Lender further agrees that it will not in any way contest the
legality or the validity of the Series 2025 Assessments or contest or challenge
the future levy or imposition of the Series 2025 Assessments or any of the
proceedings to be conducted in connection therewith.

d. If the Subordinate Lender becomes the fee simple owner of the Mortgaged
Property, whether by judicial foreclosure, private foreclosure, deed-in-lieu of
foreclosure or otherwise, the Subordinate Lender recognizes that its title to the
Mortgaged Property will be subject to all unpaid Series 2025 Assessments that
encumber the Series 2025 Assessment Area.

Tri-Party Agreement —Land Reserve



e. The Subordinate Lender agrees that it will not assert against the District, the
Trustee or the holders of the Series 2025 Bonds, that the Collateral Assignment
violates any provision of the Mortgage, or any other agreement made by the
Landowner with or for the benefit of Subordinate Lender, in connection with
the Mortgage or any indebtedness secured thereby.

3. REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS — LANDOWNER. Landowner
represents, warrants, and covenants that:

a. Landowner is the sole owner of the Collateral.

b. To the best of its knowledge, as of the date hereof, there is no other lien or
encumbrance on the Collateral except as set forth herein or appearing of record.

4. MORTGAGE NOT AFFECTED. This Agreement is made by Subordinate Lender
solely for the benefit of the District and the current and future holders of the Series 2025 Bonds.
Except as set forth herein, this Agreement shall not affect the Mortgage or limit Subordinate
Lender’s rights or Landowner’s obligations under the Mortgage. Without limiting the generality
of the foregoing, nothing herein shall limit Mortgagee’s right or ability to declare a default under
the Mortgage in the event of a violation of the terms of the Mortgage.

5. MORTGAGEE WAIVERS. By execution of this Agreement, the Subordinate Lender
hereby waives any default under the Mortgage, or other documents entered into in connection
therewith, arising solely from the issuance of the Series 2025 Bonds and the imposition of the
Series 2025 Assessments. No other waiver is given or implied.

6. SUBORDINATION. The Subordinate Lender and the Landowner hereby agree that
the lien of the Mortgage is now and shall forever hereafter be subordinate and inferior to the lien
of the Series 2025 Assessments and the lien of the Collateral Assignment. Further, except as
expressly provided for in this Agreement, the terms of the Mortgage and all rights and remedies
of the Subordinate Lender available thereunder are hereby expressly subordinated to the terms of
the Collateral Assignment and the rights and remedies of District available thereunder and under
Florida law relating to the Series 2025 Assessments to the extent levied against the Mortgaged
Property.

7. NOTIFICATION. The District shall, within thirty (30) days, provide notice in the
manner provided herein to the other parties of any of the following which may come to the
attention of such party with respect to this Agreement:

a. Delinquent payment of the Series 2025 Assessments or other assessments owed
to the District on property then encumbered by the Mortgage;

b. Acceleration of the Series 2025 Assessments; and

c. Event of Default under the Indenture or the Collateral Assignment.

Tri-Party Agreement —Land Reserve



8. EVENT OF DEFAULT. The Subordinate Lender and Landowner acknowledge and
agree that the failure of Landowner to pay the Series 2025 Assessments levied against the Lands
or the occurrence of an Event of Default under the Indenture shall constitute a default of the
Mortgage.

9. OPPORTUNITY TO CURE. Only to the extent not inconsistent with the Indenture, the
parties agree that the Subordinate Lender shall have ninety (90) days from the receipt of notice
provided per “Section 14. Notification” of this Agreement to cure any delinquent payment of the
Series 2025 Assessments or other assessments owed to the District prior to acceleration or Event
of Default under the Indenture, or exercise by the District or Trustee of any rights or remedies
under the Indenture, the Collateral Assignment or otherwise at law or in equity.

10.  REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS — SUBORDINATE LENDER.
Subordinate Lender represents, warrants, and covenants that:

a. Subordinate Lender is the sole owner and current mortgagee under the
Mortgage.

b. To the best of its knowledge, as of the date hereof, there is no default or event
which by notice or the passage of time would constitute an event of default
under the Mortgage.

11. ENFORCEMENT OF AGREEMENT. In the event that a party is required to enforce
this Agreement by court proceedings or otherwise, then the parties agree that the prevailing party
shall be entitled to recover from the defaulting party all fees and costs incurred, including
reasonable attorneys' fees and costs for trial, alternative dispute resolution, or appellate
proceedings.

12.  AMENDMENTS. Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in this
Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing which is executed by each of the parties.
This Agreement may not be amended without the prior written consent of the Trustee and the
owners of a majority of the aggregate principal amount of the Series 2025 Bonds then outstanding.

13.  AUTHORIZATION. The execution of this Agreement has been duly authorized by
the appropriate body or official of each party, each party has complied with all the requirements
of law, and each party has the full power and authority to comply with the terms and provisions of
this instrument.

14, NoTICES. All notices, requests, consents and other communications under this
Agreement ("Notices™) shall be in writing and delivered, mailed by First Class Mail, postage
prepaid, or overnight delivery service, to the parties, as follows:

a. If to the District: Waterset South Community Development
District
c/o Rizzetta & Company
3434 Colwell Avenue, Suite 200

Tri-Party Agreement —Land Reserve



Tampa, Florida 33544
Attn.: District Manager

With a copy to: Kutak Rock LLP
107 West College Avenue
Tallahassee, Florida 32301
Attn.: District Counsel

b. If to the Landowner: NNP-Southbend I, LLC
3162 South Falkenburg Road
Riverview, Florida 33578
Attn.: Len Jaffe

With a copy to: Mahoney Law Group, P.A.
2240 Belleair Road, Suite 210
Clearwater, Florida 33764
Attn.: Jessica Mahoney

C. If to the Subordinate Land Reserve, Inc.
Lender: 51 South Main Street, Suite 301
Salt Lake City, Utah 84111
Attn.: JD Humpherys and Tyler L. Buswell

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any Notice shall be deemed received only
upon actual delivery at the address set forth above. Notices delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at the place
of delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on the next business day. If any
time for giving Notice contained in this Agreement would otherwise expire on a non-business day,
the Notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding business day. Saturdays, Sundays, and
legal holidays recognized by the United States government shall not be regarded as business days.
Counsel for each party may deliver Notice on behalf of the respective party he/she represents. Any
party or other person to whom Notices are to be sent or copied may notify the other parties and
addressees of any change in name or address to which Notices shall be sent by providing the same
on at least five (5) days written notice to the parties and addressees set forth herein.

15. ARM’S LENGTH TRANSACTION. This Agreement has been negotiated fully by and
between the parties as an arm’s length transaction. The parties participated fully in the preparation
of this Agreement and received the advice of counsel. In the case of a dispute concerning the
interpretation of any provision of this Agreement, the parties are all deemed to have drafted,
chosen, and selected the language, and the doubtful language will not be interpreted or construed
against any party as the drafter of that language.

16.  THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES. Except as set forth herein, this Agreement is solely
for the benefit of the parties hereto and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason
of, to or for the benefit of any third party not a formal party to this Agreement. Except as set forth
herein, nothing in this Agreement expressed or implied is intended or shall be construed to confer
upon any person or corporation other than the parties any right, remedy, or claim under or by

Tri-Party Agreement —Land Reserve



reason of this Agreement or any of the provisions or conditions of this Agreement; except as set
forth herein, all of the provisions, representations, covenants, and conditions contained in this
Agreement shall inure to the sole benefit of and shall be binding upon the parties and their
respective representatives, successors, and assigns. Notwithstanding anything herein to the
contrary, the Trustee for the Series 2025 Bonds, on behalf of the owners thereof, shall be a direct
third-party beneficiary of the terms and conditions of this Agreement and shall be entitled to cause
the District to enforce the Landowner’s and Subordinate Lender’s respective obligations
hereunder.

17.  ASSIGNMENT. None of the parties may assign this Agreement or any monies to
become due hereunder without the prior written approval of the others, which approval shall not
be unreasonably withheld.

18.  APPLICABLE LAw AND VENUE. This Agreement and the provisions contained
herein shall be construed, interpreted and controlled according to the laws of the State of Florida.
Each party consents that the venue for any litigation arising out of or related to this Agreement
shall be in Hillsborough County, Florida.

19. EFFecTIVE DATE. This Agreement shall be effective after execution by all of the
parties hereto.

20. PuBLIC RECORDS. The parties understand and agree that all documents of any kind
provided to the District may be public records and treated as such in accordance with Florida law.

21.  SEVERABILITY. The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more provisions
of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining portions of this
Agreement, or any part of this Agreement not held to be invalid or unenforceable.

22. LIMITATIONS ON GOVERNMENTAL LIABILITY. Nothing in this Agreement shall be
deemed as a waiver of immunity or limit of liability of the District beyond any statutory limited
waiver of immunity or limits of liability which may have been adopted by the Florida Legislature
in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, or other statute, and nothing in this Agreement shall inure to
the benefit of any third party for the purpose of allowing any claim which would otherwise be
barred under the Doctrine of Sovereign Immunity or by operation of law.

23. HEADINGS FOR CONVENIENCE ONLY. The descriptive headings in this Agreement
are for convenience only and shall not control nor affect the meaning or construction of any of the
provisions of this Agreement.

24.  COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts,
each of which when executed and delivered shall be an original; however, all such counterparts
together shall constitute but one and the same instrument. Signature pages and acknowledgment
pages, if any, may be detached from the counterparts and attached to a single copy of this document
physically to form one document.

Tri-Party Agreement —Land Reserve



25. FURTHER ASSURANCES. So long as the Series 2025 Assessments encumber any of
the Mortgaged Property and the Collateral Assignment and/or the Mortgage encumber any of the
Collateral, Subordinate Lender will execute, acknowledge and deliver, in recordable form and
upon demand, any subordinations or other instruments the District reasonably requires in order to
carry out the provisions of this Agreement.

26. EFFECT OF AGREEMENT. The declarations, acknowledgments, and agreements
contained herein shall run with title to the Mortgaged Property, as partially released from time to
time, and shall be binding on such Mortgaged Property and on all persons (including corporations,
associations, trusts, and other legal entities) taking title to all or any part of the Mortgaged Property
while still subject to the lien of the Mortgage, and its successors in interest, whether or not the
Mortgaged Property is platted at such time. By taking such title, such persons shall be deemed to
have consented and agreed to the provisions of this Agreement to the same extent as if they had
executed it, and by taking such title such persons shall be estopped from contesting, in court or
otherwise, the validity, legality, and enforceability of this Agreement or of any of the ordinances,
resolutions, agreements, documents, and other matters dealt with herein.

[Signature pages follow.]

Tri-Party Agreement —Land Reserve



Dated as of this day of

Attest:

Secretary / Assistant Secretary
Printed Name:

Address:

Street

City, State, Zip

STATE OF FLORIDA

COUNTY OF HILLSBOROUGH

, 2025.

Waterset South Community
Development District, a local unit of
special purpose  government  created
pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes

By:

Amanda King
Its:  Chairperson

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of [ ] physical presence or

[__1 online notarization this day of

, 2025, by Amanda King as Chairperson

of Waterset South Community Development District, for and on behalf of said company. She OJ

is personally known to me or O produced

NOTARY SEAL

Tri-Party Agreement —Land Reserve

as identification.

NOTARY PUBLIC, State of

Print or Stamp Name
My Commission Expires:




Dated as of this day of , 2025.

Witnesses: NNP-SOUTHBEND II, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company

By:
Printed Name: Daryl-Lynn Burke,
Address: Vice President and Treasurer

Street

City, State, Zip

Printed Name:
Address:

Street

City, State, Zip

“A Notary Public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the
individual who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the
truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document.”

State of California
County of )

On , 2025 bhefore me,
personally appeared Daryl-Lynn Burke, who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the
person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they
executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity, and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the
instrument the person, or the entity upon behalf of which the person acted, executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing
paragraph is true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

Signature (Seal)

Tri-Party Agreement —Land Reserve



Dated as of this day of

Witnesses:

Printed Name:

Address:

Street

City, State, Zip

Printed Name:

Address:

Street

City, State, Zip

STATE OF
COUNTY OF

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of

, 2025.

MORTGAGEE:

LAND RESERVE, INC.,
a Utah corporation

By:
Tyler L. Buswell, President
Address:
51 South Main Street, Suite 301
Salt Lake City, Utah 84111

Salt Lake City, Utah 84111

51 South Main Street, Suite 301

Salt Lake City, Utah 84111

2025 by means of [ physical presence or [1 online notarization, by Tyler L. Buswell, as Pre5|dent
of Land Reserve, Inc., a Utah corporation, on behalf of the corporation, who is [ personally

known to me or [J produced

Tri-Party Agreement —Land Reserve

as identification.

NOTARY PUBLIC, State of

Print or Stamp Name
My Commission Expires:
Affix Notary Seal:



Exhibit “A”

Legal Description of the Lands within the Waterset South Community Development
District — Series 2025 Project (the “Lands”)

WATERSET SOUTH
2025 CDD ASSESSMENT AREA

Tri-Party Agreement —Land Reserve



Tab 14



This instrument was prepared by and (This space reserved for Clerk)
upon recording should be returned to:

Alyssa Willson, Esq.
KUTAK ROCK LLP
107 West College Avenue
Tallahassee, Florida 32301

DECLARATION OF CONSENT TO JURISDICTION OF
WATERSET SOUTH COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
AND TO IMPOSITION OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS (“DECLARATION?”)

The undersigned, being a duly authorized representative of NNP-Southbend 1I, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company, as the owner of those lands described in Exhibit A attached
hereto (the “Property”), located within the boundaries of Waterset South Community Development
District (the “District”), intends that it and its respective successors in interest, heirs and assigns
(collectively the “Landowner”) shall be legally bound by this Declaration, hereby declares,
acknowledges and agrees, as applicable, as follows:

1. Landowner acknowledges that the District is, and has been at all times, on and after July
27, 2022, a legally created, duly organized, and validly existing community development district
under the provisions of Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, as amended (the “Act”). Without limiting
the generality of the foregoing, the Landowner acknowledges that: (a) the petition filed with the
Board of County Commissioners of Hillsborough County, Florida (the “County”), relating to the
creation of the District contained all matters required by the Act to be contained therein and was
filed in the manner and by the persons required by the Act; (b) Ordinance No. 22-19, effective as
of July 27, 2022, was duly and properly adopted by the County in compliance with all applicable
requirements of law; and (c) the members of the Board of Supervisors of the District (the “Board”)
were duly and properly designated pursuant to the Act to serve in their respective capacities and
had the authority and right to authorize, approve and undertake all actions of the District approved
and undertaken from July 27, 2022, to and including the date of this Declaration.

2. The Landowner acknowledges and agrees, that the special assessments imposed by
Resolution Nos. 2022-27, 2022-28, 2022-30, 2025-12, 2025- , and 2025-__ , duly adopted by
the Board on August 9, 2022, August 9, 2022, September 13, 2022, July 17, 2025,
, 2025 and , 2025, respectively (collectively, the
“Assessment Resolutions”), and all proceedings undertaken by the District with respect thereto
have been in accordance with applicable Florida law, that the District has taken all action necessary
to levy and impose the special assessments, and the special assessments are legal, valid and binding
first liens upon the Property co-equal with the lien of all state, county, district and municipal taxes,
superior in dignity to all other liens, titles and claims, until paid.

3. The Landowner hereby waives, for itself and its successors and assigns, the right granted
in Chapter 170.09, Florida Statutes, to prepay the special assessments without interest within thirty
(30) days after the improvements are completed, in consideration of the rights granted by the

Declaration of Consent (Series 2025) — NNP-Southbend 11, LLC 1



District to prepay special assessments in full or in part at any time, but with interest, under the
circumstances set forth in the resolutions of the District levying the special assessments.

4. The Landowner hereby expressly, for itself and its successors and assigns, (i) agrees that
the special assessments, the Assessment Resolutions, and the terms of the financing documents
related to the District’s issuance of the Waterset South Community Development District Special
Assessment Revenue Bonds, Series 2025 (the “2025 Bonds”) or securing payment thereof (the
“Financing Documents™) are valid and binding obligations enforceable in accordance with their
terms; (ii) represents that the Landowner has no claims or offsets whatsoever against, or defenses
or counterclaims whatsoever to, payments of the special assessments and Financing Documents
(and the Landowner hereby expressly waives any such claims, offsets, defenses or counterclaims);
and (iii) waives and relinquishes any argument, claim or defense that foreclosure proceedings
cannot be commenced until one (1) year after the date of the Landowner’s default and agrees that,
immediate use of remedies in Chapter 170, Florida Statutes, is an appropriate and available
remedy, notwithstanding the provisions of Section 190.026, Florida Statutes.

5. This Declaration shall represent a lien of record for purposes of Chapter 197, Florida
Statutes, including, without limitation, Section 197.573, Florida Statutes. Other information
regarding the special assessments is available from District Manager, 3434 Colwell Avenue, Suite
200, Tampa, Florida 33614.

THE DECLARATIONS, ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS AND AGREEMENTS
CONTAINED HEREIN SHALL RUN WITH THE LAND DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT A
HERETO AND SHALL BE BINDING ON THE LANDOWNER AND ON ALL PERSONS
(INCLUDING CORPORATIONS, ASSOCIATIONS, TRUSTS AND OTHER LEGAL
ENTITIES) TAKING TITLE TO ALL OR ANY PART OF THE PROPERTY, AND THEIR
SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST, WHETHER OR NOT THE PROPERTY IS PLATTED AT
SUCH TIME. BY TAKING SUCH TITLE, SUCH PERSONS SHALL BE DEEMED TO
HAVE CONSENTED AND AGREE TO THE PROVISIONS OF THIS DECLARATION
TO THE SAME EXTENT AS IF THEY HAD EXECUTED IT AND BY TAKING SUCH
TITLE, SUCH PERSONS SHALL BE ESTOPPED FROM CONTESTING, IN COURT OR
OTHERWISE, THE VALIDITY, LEGALITY AND ENFORCEABILITY OF THIS
DECLARATION.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

Declaration of Consent (Series 2025) — NNP-Southbend 11, LLC 2



Effective the day of , 2025.

NNP-SOUTHBEND II, LLC, a Delaware
limited liability company

Print Name: By: Len Jaffe
Address: Its: Vice President
Street

City, State, Zip

STATE OF FLORIDA )

COUNTY OF )

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of [__] physical presence or
[__] online notarization this day of , 2025, by Len Jaffe as Vice President of
NNP-Southbend 11, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, on its behalf. S/He is [ ]
personally known to me or [__] produced as identification.
NOTARY STAMP:

Signature of Notary Public

Printed Name of Notary Public

Exhibit A: Legal Description

Declaration of Consent (Series 2025) — NNP-Southbend 11, LLC 3



Exhibit A

Legal Description of District Lands

Declaration of Consent (Series 2025) — NNP-Southbend 11, LLC



Declaration of Consent (Series 2025) — NNP-Southbend 11, LLC



Declaration of Consent (Series 2025) — NNP-Southbend 11, LLC



Declaration of Consent (Series 2025) — NNP-Southbend 11, LLC



Tab 15



This instrument prepared by and upon
recording should be returned to:

Alyssa C. Willson, Esq.
Kutak Rock LLP

107 West College Avenue (This space reserved for Clerk)
Tallahassee, Florida 32301

THIRD SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF PUBLIC FINANCING AND
MAINTENANCE OF IMPROVEMENTS TO REAL PROPERTY UNDERTAKEN BY
THE WATERSET SOUTH COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Board of Supervisors?

Waterset South Community Development District

Amanda King Deneen Klenke
Chairperson Assistant Secretary
Pete Williams John Blakley
Vice Chairperson Assistant Secretary
Lynda McMorrow

Assistant Secretary

Rizzetta & Company, Inc.
District Manager
3434 Colwell Avenue
Suite 200
Tampa, Florida 33614
(813) 933-5571

District records are on file at the offices of Rizzetta & Company, Inc., at 3434 Colwell Avenue
Suite 200, Tampa, Florida 33614, and are available for public inspection upon request during
normal business hours.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

! This list reflects the composition of the Board of Supervisors as of October 9, 2025. For a current list of
Board Members, please contact the District Manager’s office.

1



FNEFOAUCTION ..ot e ettt e e e e e e ettt e e e e e e e e e et eeee e e e e e e eeeeneeens 3

What is the District and hOW IS It QOVEINEA?.........ccviiiiiiiieieee e 4

What infrastructure improvements does the District provide

and how are the Improvements Paid fOr? ... 5
ASSeSSMENtS, FEES aNd CRANJES ........ccveiiee et sre e 8
AV [=3 4 pToTo o) B @] | I=Tod ¥ o] o PSRRI 9



WATERSET SOUTH
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

INTRODUCTION

The Waterset South Community Development District (the “District™) is a local unit of
special-purpose government created pursuant to and existing under the provisions of Chapter
190, Florida Statutes. Under Florida law, community development districts are required to take
affirmative steps to provide for the full disclosure of information relating to the public financing
and maintenance of improvements to real property undertaken by such districts. Unlike city and
county governments, the District has only certain limited powers and responsibilities. These
powers and responsibilities include, for example, construction and/or acquisition, as well as
maintenance of roadways, utilities, earthwork, stormwater management, landscape, irrigation,
entry features, street lighting, underground electric, conservation and mitigation, an amenity
facility, and other related public infrastructure.



DISCLOSURE OF PUBLIC FINANCING AND MAINTENANCE
OF IMPROVEMENTS TO REAL PROPERTY UNDERTAKEN BY
THE WATERSET SOUTH COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Under Florida law, community development districts are required to take affirmative
steps to provide for the full disclosure of information relating to the public financing and
maintenance of improvements to real property undertaken by such districts. The law specifically
provides that this information shall be made available to all persons currently residing within the
District and to all prospective District residents. The following information describing the
Waterset South Community Development District and the assessments, fees and charges that
may be levied within the District to pay for certain community infrastructure is provided to fulfill
this statutory requirement.

What is the District and how is it governed?

The District is an independent, special taxing district, created pursuant to and existing
under the provisions of Chapter 190, Florida Statutes (the “Act”), and established by Ordinance
No. 22-19, enacted by the Board of County Commissioners of Hillsborough County, Florida,
which was effective on July 27, 2022, as amended by Ordinance No. 25-9, enacted by the Board
of County Commissioners of Hillsborough County, Florida, which was effective as of February
12, 2025. The District encompasses approximately 800.206 acres of land located entirely within
the boundaries of Hillsborough County, Florida. As a local unit of special-purpose government,
the District provides an alternative means for planning, financing, constructing, operating and
maintaining various public improvements and community facilities within its jurisdiction.

The District is governed by a five-member Board of Supervisors, the members of which
must be residents of the State and citizens of the United States. Within ninety (90) days of
appointment of the initial board, members were elected on an at-large basis by the owners of
property within the District, each landowner being entitled to one vote for each acre of land with
fractions thereof rounded upward to the nearest whole number. Elections are then held every two
years in November. Commencing when both six years after the initial appointment of
Supervisors have passed and the District has attained a minimum of two hundred and fifty (250)
qualified electors, Supervisors whose terms are expiring will begin to be elected by qualified
electors of the District. A “qualified elector” in this instance is any person at least eighteen (18)
years of age who is a citizen of the United States, a legal resident of Florida and of the District,
and who is also registered with the Supervisor of Elections to vote in Hillsborough County.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if at any time the Board proposes to exercise its ad valorem
taxing power, it shall, prior to the exercise of such power, call an election at which all members
of the Board shall be elected by qualified electors of the District.

Board meetings are noticed in a local newspaper and conducted in a public forum in
which public participation is permitted. Consistent with Florida’s public records laws, the
records of the District are available for public inspection during normal business hours. Elected
members of the Board are similarly bound by the State’s open meetings law and are generally
subject to the same disclosure requirements as other elected officials under the State’s ethics
laws.

4



What infrastructure improvements does the District provide
and how are the improvements paid for?

The District is comprised of approximately 800.206 acres, and located entirely within
Hillsborough County, Florida. The legal description of the lands encompassed within the District
is attached hereto as Exhibit A. The public infrastructure necessary to support the District’s
development program includes, but is not limited to, earthwork, roadway improvements,
stormwater management facilities including those associated with such roadway improvements,
off-site roadway improvements, potable water and wastewater facilities, reclaimed water
facilities, landscaping, hardscaping and sidewalk improvements, and recreational facilities.
These infrastructure improvements are more fully detailed below. To plan the infrastructure
improvements necessary for the District, the District adopted the Master Report of District
Engineer, Master Capital Improvement Plan, dated August 2022, (the “Engineer’s Report”),
which details all of the improvements currently contemplated for the completion of the
infrastructure of the District (the “Capital Improvement Plan). Copies of the Engineer’s Report
and Supplemental Engineer’s Report (defined below) are available for review in the District’s
public records.

These public infrastructure improvements have been and will be funded by the District’s
sale of bonds. On October 31, 2022, the Thirteenth Judicial Circuit Court of the State of Florida,
in and for Hillsborough County, Florida, entered a Final Judgment validating the District’s
ability to issue an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $170,835,000 in Special Assessment
Bonds for infrastructure needs of the District.

On October 16, 2025, the District will issue $5,700,000.00 Waterset South Community
Development District Special Assessment Revenue Bonds, Series 2025 (the “Series 2025
Bonds”) for the purpose of: (1) financing a portion of the costs association with the acquisition,
construction, installation and equipping the Series 2025 Project, a portion of the Capital
Improvement Plan as described in the District Engineer's Report Supplement to the Master
Capital Improvement Plan, dated July 17, 2025, and the Supplemental District Engineer's
Report, Series 2025 Project (2025 Assessment Area), dated July 31, 2025 (together the
“Supplemental Engineer's Report”) and generally described below; (2) funding the Series 2025
Reserve Account in an amount equal to the Series 2025 Reserve Account Requirement; (3)
capitalizing a portion of the interest to accrue on the Series 2025 Bonds, and (4) paying certain
costs associated with the issuance of the Series 2025 Bonds.

EARTHWORK

The District presently intends to provide funding for the earthwork required to support
the 2025 Assessment Area. Hillsborough County regulates the design criteria for the final
grading and fill requirements within the District. To ensure that the District meets the
requirements for vertical separation and drainage, earthwork will be required. The source of fill
material for the site is generally planned to be generated from the excavation of the required
stormwater management facilities. Any excavation beyond the depths required for stormwater
treatment and floodplain compensation that is not required as fill for the proposed upland

5



portions of the District will be funded by the Developer. If excavation of stormwater
management facilities to the required depth for treatment results in excess material, the District
will be responsible for disposal. The Developer may handle disposal for the District.

The earthwork associated with the fill of the local roadways within Phase C1 is eligible for
funding by the District to ensure adequate stormwater collection. The earthwork associated with
the fill for the lot pads within Phase C1 is ineligible for funding by the District and will be the
responsibility of the Developer.

ROADWAYS

The 2025 Assessment Area includes portions of roadways that will serve the District,
including 1,200 LF of Waterset Boulevard and 1,400 LF of Covington Garden Drive. Waterset
Boulevard is a two-lane divided roadway with a 124’ right-of-way. Covington Garden Drive is a
124’ right-of-way collector road that transitions from two-lane divided to a two-lane undivided
section.

Waterset Boulevard and this section of Covington Garden Drive are on the Hillsborough
County Long Range Planning Map and may accordingly be eligible for Transportation Impact
Fee Credits. Impact fee credits issued for District funded improvements will be addressed in a
separate agreement between the District and the Developer.

Local roadways will be designed in accordance with Hillsborough County standards.

Collector roadways described and the local roadways within Phases H1 and E will be
constructed or acquired by the District then dedicated for maintenance by Hillsborough County.

The local roadways within Phase C1 will not be eligible for District funding and will be
funded solely by the Developer. The local roadways within Phase C1 will be owned and
maintained by an HOA.

WASTEWATER COLLECTION

The District will provide the sanitary sewer collection system for the 2025 Assessment
Area. The District is within the Hillsborough County service area, with wastewater treatment
service to be provided by the Hillsborough County Wastewater Department. The District’s onsite
sanitary sewer system will consist of conventional gravity collection lines with appurtenant
manholes, and force mains. The constructed systems will be constructed or acquired by the
District then dedicated to Hillsborough County for operation and maintenance.

WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM

The District will provide the potable water facilities required to support the 2025
Assessment Area. The District is within the Hillsborough County service area with potable water
and fire service to be provided by the Hillsborough County Water Department. The water
distribution systems within the 2025 project will consist of 12", 8", 6" and 4" watermains with

6



appurtenant valves and fire hydrants. The constructed systems will be constructed or acquired by
the District then dedicated to Hillsborough County for operation and maintenance.

RECLAIMED WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM

The District will provide the reclaimed water facilities required to support the 2025
Assessment Area. The District is within the Hillsborough County service area with reclaimed
water service to be provided by the Hillsborough County Water Department. The reclaimed
water distribution systems within the 2025 Assessment Area will consist of 12", 8", 6" and 4"
reclaimed watermains with appurtenant valves. The constructed systems will be constructed or
acquired by the District then dedicated to Hillsborough County for operation and maintenance.

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT

The District will provide stormwater management facilities required to support the 2025
Assessment Area. Hillsborough County and the Southwest Florida Water Management District
(“SWFWMD”) regulate the design criteria for the stormwater management system within the
District. The pre-development site runoff and water management conditions have been
developed by Hillsborough County and SWFWMD. The existing, onsite, naturally occurring
wetlands are as delineated by SWFWMD and the Hillsborough County Environmental
Protection Commission.

The stormwater management plan for the District focuses on utilizing newly constructed
ponds in the uplands for stormwater treatment in conjunction with the naturally occurring
wetlands.

The primary objectives of the stormwater management system for the District are:

1. To provide a stormwater conveyance and storage system, which includes stormwater
quality treatment.

2. To adequately protect development within the District from regulatory-defined rainfall

events.

To maintain wetland hydroperiods.

4. To ensure that adverse stormwater impacts do not occur upstream or downstream because
of the development.

5. To satisfactorily accommodate stormwater runoff from adjacent off-site areas that
naturally drains through the District. Accommodating existing drainage conditions is a
requirement of more than one regulatory agency and is an integral part of the
infrastructure improvements constructed with development projects.

6. Preserve the function of the floodplain storage during the 100-year storm event.

w

The stormwater collection and outfall systems will be a combination of curb inlets, pipe
culverts, control structures and open waterways. Wetland hydroperiods (normal pool and season
high water elevations) will be maintained through proper design and maintenance of the outfall
control structures. It will be the responsibility of the District to maintain the stormwater
management system and ensure its operation.

7



LANDSCAPING, HARDSCAPE, AND IRRIGATION

Significant landscape features, and associated irrigation systems are planned for the
District. These features include landscaping of the main roadways, parks, common areas, and
perimeter buffer areas. The landscaping and irrigation necessary for the 2025 Assessment Area
may be funded and/or maintained by the District.

Any landscaping and irrigation behind the gates within Phase C1 may not be funded or
maintained by the District.

Significant hardscape features and are planned for the District. These features include
entry monuments along the main roadways in the District. The entry features supporting the
2025 Assessment Area may be funded and/or maintained by the District.

The gated entry features for Phase C1 may not be funded or maintained by the District.
RECREATIONAL FACILITIES

It is anticipated that the District will expand the Development's recreational facilities
including neighborhood parks and open space intended for both active and passive use featuring
pavilions, mulched and concrete pathways, boardwalk wetland ditch crossings, trail system, and
benches. The recreational improvements may be funded and/or maintained by the District.

The District will have substantial wildlife conservation areas located throughout. The
Development proposes to preserve many of the existing wetlands present within the
Development to provide habitat for wildlife and will include passive recreation trails around and
near these areas.

Assessments, Fees and Charges

The costs of acquisition or construction of a portion of these infrastructure improvements
have been financed by the District through the sale of its Series 2025 Bonds. The annual debt
service payments, including interest due thereon, are payable solely from and secured by the levy
of non-ad valorem or special assessments against lands within the District which benefit from the
construction, acquisition, establishment and operation of the District’s improvements.
Specifically, the Series 2025 Assessments pay back the Series 2025 Bonds for its share of the
Series 2025 Project infrastructure. Pursuant to the Waterset South Community Development
District Master Special Assessment Allocation Report, dated August 9, 2022, the First
Amendment to Master Special Assessment Allocation Report, dated July 17, 2025, and the Final
Supplemental Special Assessment Allocation Report, dated September 17, 2025, the Phase E and
Phase H-1 Units are assessed as conventional units and Phase C-1 units are age-qualified units.
As noted above, certain improvements located behind the gates within Phase C1 are not financed
by the District nor eligible for District ownership or maintenance. The annual debt service
obligations of the District which must be defrayed by annual assessments upon each parcel of

8



land or platted lot will depend upon the type of property purchased. Provided below are the
current maximum annual assessment levels for the Series 2025 Bonds. Interested persons are
encouraged to contact the District Manager for information regarding special assessments on a
particular lot or parcel of lands. A copy of the District’s assessment methodology and assessment
roll are available for review in the District’s public records.

The current maximum annual debt assessment for each issuance of the Series 2025 Bonds
per unit is as follows:

Product Type Maximum Annual Debt
Assessment Per Unit
Phase C-1 - Villa 36’ $612.00
Phase C-1 - Single Family 50’ $850.00
Phase C-1 - Single Family 60’ $1,020.00
Phase E — Townhome 20’ $750.00
Phase E — Townhome 24’ $900.00
Phase E — Cluster Detached 31.25° $1,150.00
Phase H-1 - Single Family 40° $1,200.00
Phase H-1 - Single Family 50’ $1,500.00
Phase H-1 - Single Family 60° $1,800.00

Note: The maximum annual assessments level amounts include discounts for early payments and
estimated county collection costs, which may fluctuate.

The District may undertake the construction, acquisition, or installation of other future
improvements and facilities, which may be financed by bonds, notes, or other methods
authorized by Chapter 190, Florida Statutes. More information can be obtained from the Capital
Improvement Plan on file with the District.

In addition to the special assessments described above, the District’s Board of
Supervisors may annually determine and calculate operations and maintenance assessments
against all benefited lands in the District. These assessments may also be collected in the same
manner as county ad valorem taxes.

Method of Collection

The District’s special and/or operation and maintenance assessments may appear on that
portion of the annual real estate tax notice entitled “non-ad valorem assessments,” and will be
collected by the Hillsborough County Tax Collector in the same manner as county ad valorem
taxes. Each property owner must pay both ad valorem and non-ad valorem assessments at the
same time. Property owners will, however, be entitled to the same discounts as provided for ad
valorem taxes. As with any tax notice, if all taxes and assessments due are not paid within the
prescribed time limit, the tax collector is required to sell tax certificates which, if not timely
redeemed, may result in the loss of title to the property. The District may also elect to collect the
assessment directly.



This description of the Waterset South Community Development District’s operation,
services and financing structure is intended to provide assistance to landowners and purchasers
concerning the important role that the District plays in providing infrastructure improvements
essential to the use and development of this community. If you have any questions or would
simply like additional information about the District, please write to or call the: District
Manager, Waterset South Community Development District, 3434 Colwell Avenue, Suite 200,
Tampa, Florida 33614, (813) 933-5571.

The information provided herein is a good faith effort to accurately and fully disclose
information regarding the public financing and maintenance of improvements to real property
undertaken by the District and should only be relied upon as such. The information contained
herein is, and can only be, a status summary of the District’s public financing and maintenance
activities and is subject to supplementation and clarification from the actual documents and other
sources from which this information is derived. In addition, the information contained herein
may be subject to change over time, in the due course of the District’s activities and in
accordance with Florida law. Prospective and current residents and other members of the public
should seek confirmation and/or additional information from the District Manager’s office with
regard to any questions or points of interest raised by the information presented herein.

10



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Third Supplemental Disclosure of Public Financing and
Maintenance of Improvements to Real Property Undertaken has been executed as of the
day of October, 2025, and recorded in the Official Records of Hillsborough County, Florida.

WITNESSES: WATERSET SOUTH COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Print Name: Amanda King
Address Chairperson, Board of Supervisors
Street

City, State, Zip

Print Name:
Address

Street

City, State, Zip

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by means of O physical presence
or O online notarization this day of October, 2025, by Amanda King as Chairperson of
the Board of Supervisors of the Waterset South Community Development District.

NOTARY SEAL

(Official Notary Signature & Seal)
Name:
Personally Known
OR Produced Identification
Type of Identification

11



EXHIBIT A

WATERSET SOUTH
2025 CDD ASSESSMENT AREA

DESCRIPTION: Two (2) parcels of land lying in Sections 27, 28 and 34,
Township 31 South, Range 19 East, Hillsborough County, Flarida and being
more particularly described as follows:

PHASES C1 AND H1

COMMENCE at the Northeast corner of the Southwest 1/4 of said Section
27, also being a point on the Northerly boundary of WATERSET WOLF CREEK
PHASES A AND D1 AND WATERSET BOULEVARD TECO EXTENSION AND
COVINGTON GARDEN DRIVE TECO EXTENSION, according to the plat
thereof, as recorded in Plat Book 142, Pages 12 through 31 inclusive, of the
Public Records of Hillshorough County, Florida, run thence along the North
boundary of the South 1/2 of said Section 27, the following two (2) courses:
1) along said Northerly boundary of WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASES A AND
D1 AND WATERSET BOULEVARD TECO EXTENSION AND COVINGTON
GARDEN DRIVE TECO EXTENSION, N.89°16'50"W., 661.15 feet to the
Mortheast corner of WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE B, according to the plat
thereof, as recorded in Plat Book 146, Pages 7 through 28 inclusive, of the
Public Records of Hillsborough County, Florida; 2) along the Northerly
boundary of said WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE B, continue
MN.89°16'50"W., 1328.78 feet to the Northwest corner of said WATERSET
WOLF CREEK PHASE B, also being on point on the Easterly boundary of the
130.00 foot wide Railroad right-of-way for C.5.X. Transportation, Inc.
(formerly Atlantic Coast Line Railroad and Seaboard Coast Line Railroad) per
Right-of Way and Track Map V19 FLA (4); thence along the Westerly
boundary of said WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE B and said Easterly
boundary of the 130.00 foot wide Railroad right-of-way for C.5.X.
Transportation, Inc., S.28°37'13"W., 1763.59 feet to the Southwest corner
of said WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE B, also being the POINT OF
BEGINNING; thence along the Southerly boundary of said WATERSET
WOLF CREEK PHASE B, the following six (6) courses: 1) 5.61°22'47"E.,
80.00 feet to a point of curvature; 2) Easterly, 474.72 feet along the arc of a
curve to the left having a radius of 1138.00 feet and a central angle of
23°54'04" (chord bearing 5.73%19'50"E., 471.29 feet) to a point of reverse
curvature; 3) Easterly, 832.86 feet along the arc of a curve to the right
having a radius of 2862.00 feet and a central angle of 16°40'24" (chord
bearing S.76°56'40"E., 829.92 feet); 4) 5.21°23'33"W., 124.00 feet to a
point on a curve; 5) Southeasterly, 721.95 feet along the arc of said curve
to the right having a radius of 2738.00 feet and a central angle of 15°06'27"
(chord bearing 5.61°03'14"E., 719.86 feet) to a point of tangency; 6)
S.53°30'00"E., 66.14 feet to a point on the Westerly boundary of WATERSET

12



WOLF CREEK PHASE D2, according to the plat thereof, as recorded in Plat
Book 143, Pages 145 through 160 inclusive, of the Public Records of
Hillshorough County, Florida; thence along said Westerly boundary of
WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE D2, the following four (4) courses: 1)
continue S.53°30'00"E., 28.28 feet; 2) S.01°57'27"E., 84.57 feet; 3)
S5.19955'59"W., 9.32 feet; 4) 5.36°30'00"W., 296.36 feet; thence along the
Southerly boundary of said WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE D2, the
following six (6) courses: 1) 5.53°30'00"E., 124.00 feet; 2) N.36°30'00"E.,
322.41 feet; 3) N.82°20'25"E., 75.95 feet to a point of curvature; 4)
Easterly, 30.37 feet along the arc of a curve to the right having a radius of
50.00 feet and a central angle of 34°48'19" (chord bearing S.80°15'25"E.,
29.91 feet) to a point of tangency; 5) 5.62°51'16"E., 211.89 feet to a point
of curvature; 6) Southeasterly, 96.62 feet along the arc of a curve to the left
having a radius of 1632.00 feet and a central angle of 03°23'31" (chord
bearing 5.64°33'01"E., 96.60 feet) to the Northwest corner of WATERSET
WOLF CREEK PHASE G2 AND 30TH STREET PHASE G2, according to the plat
thereof, as recorded in Plat Book 146, Pages 257 through 283 inclusive, of
the Public Records of Hillsborough County, Florida; thence along the
Westerly boundary of said WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE G2 AND 30TH
STREET PHASE G2, the following four (4) courses: 1) 5.23245'00"W., 338.21
feet; 2) S.11°00'00"W., 710.98 feet; 3) S.36°30'00"W., 100.00 feet; 4)
S.05°00'00"W., 390.52 feet; thence N.74°32'40"W., 439.45 feet to a point
on a curve; thence Northerly, 4.49 feet along the arc of a curve to the right
having a radius of 775.00 feet and a central angle of 00°19'55" (chord
bearing N.15°37'18"E., 4.49 feet) to a point of reverse curvature; thence
Morthwesterly, 30.28 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius
of 20.00 feet and a central angle of 86°45'18" (chord bearing
N.27°35'24"W., 27.47 feet) to a point of tangency; thence N.70°58'03"W.,
102.89 feet; thence 5.14°13'00"W., 78.77 feet; thence 5.10°35'00"W.,
56.81 feet; thence S5.06°57'00"W., 56.81 feet; thence 5.03°19'00"W., 56.81
feet; thence S.00°19'00"E., 56.81 feet; thence 5.03°57'00"E., 56.81 feet;
thence 5.08°200'35"E., 53.47 feet; thence S.07°16'03"E., 150.00 feet;
thence S.07°14'56"E., 50.10 feet; thence N.75°05'56"W., 54.69 feet; thence
N.53°30'00"W., 420.00 feet; thence N.36°30'00"E., 481.26 feet to a point
on a curve; thence Northwesterly, 100.61 feet along the arc of a curve to
the right having a radius of 525.00 feet and a central angle of 10°58'50"
(chord bearing N.58°59'25"W., 100.46 feet) to a point of reverse curvature;
thence Westerly, 31.42 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a
radius of 20.00 feet and a central angle of 90°00'00" (chord bearing
S.81°30'00"W., 28.28 feet); thence N.53°30'00"W., 50.00 feet to a point on
a curve; thence Northerly, 31.42 feet along the arc of a curve to the left
having a radius of 20.00 feet and a central angle of 90°00'00" (chord
bearing N.08°30'00"W., 28.28 feet) to a point of tangency; thence
N.53°30'00"W., 110.00 feet to a point of curvature; thence Westerly, 39.27

13



feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 25.00 feet and a
central angle of 90°00'00" (chord bearing 5.81°30'00"W., 35.36 feet);
thence N.53°30'00"W., 124.00 feet; thence N.36°30'00"E., 343.11 feet;
thence N.51°03'00"W., 220.06 feet to a point on a curve; thence
Southwesterly, 14.45 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius
of 4975.00 feet and a central angle of 00°09'59" (chord bearing
S.38B°52'00"W., 14.45 feet); thence N.51212'59"W., 50.00 feet to a point on
a curve; thence Southwesterly, 99.10 feet along the arc of said curve to the
left having a radius of 5025.00 feet and a central angle of 01°07'48" (chord
bearing 5.38°13'07"W., 99.10 feet); thence N.54°00'00"W., 405.06 feet;
thence N.49°22'13"W., 50.00 feet to a point on a curve; thence
MNortheasterly, 30.30 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius
of 375.00 feet and a central angle of 04°37'47" (chord bearing
MN.38°18'53"E., 30.29 feet) to a point of tangency; thence N.36°00'00"E.,
65.70 feet to a point of curvature; thence Northerly, 31.42 feet along the arc
of a curve to the left having a radius of 20.00 feet and a central angle of
90°00'00" (chord bearing N.09°00'00"W., 28.28 feet); thence
N.36°00'00"E., 50.00 feet; thence N.54°00'00"W., 100.00 feet; thence
N.36°00'00"E., 120.00 feet; thence N.02°16'49"E., 454.06 feet; thence
N.65°00'00"W., 268.87 feet; thence N.20°30'30"W., 63.02 feet; thence
N.47°54'44"W., 119.65 feet; thence N.75218'58"W., 60.03 feet; thence
5.84°02'47"W., 79.70 feet; thence N.37°09'26"W., 29.30 feet; thence
N.04°43'58"E., 20.68 feet; thence N.25°01'33"E., 243.64 feet to a point on
a curve; thence Westerly, 355.86 feet along the arc of a curve to the right
having a radius of 1262.00 feet and a central angle of 16°09'23" (chord
bearing N.69°27'29"W., 354.69 feet) to a point of tangency; thence
MN.61°22'47"W., 80.00 feet to a point on the aforesaid Easterly boundary of
the 130.00 foot wide Railroad right-of-way for C.S5.X. Transportation, Inc.;
thence along said Easterly boundary of the 130.00 foot wide Railroad right-
of-way for C.S.X. Transportation, Inc., N.28°37'13"E., 124.00 feet to the
POINT OF BEGINNING.

Containing 68.155 acres, more or less.
TOGETHER with the following described parcel:
PHASE E

COMMENCE at the Northeast corner of said Section 34, run thence along
the East boundary of said Section 34, the following two (2) courses: 1)
5.00°33'49"W., 1580.26 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING; 2) continue
5.00°33'49"W., 1098.29 feet to the Northeast corner of WATERSET WOLF
CREEK PHASE F, according to the plat thereof as recorded in Plat Book 147,
Pages 243 through 261 inclusive, of the Public Records of Hillsborough

14



County, Florida; thence along the Northerly boundary of said WATERSET
WOLF CREEK PHASE F, the following eleven (11) courses: 1) WEST, 530.85
feet; 2) S.32°59'46"W., 1019.41 feet; 3) N.31°10'02"W., 471.99 feet; 4)
MN.8B5°11'27"W., 188.66 feet to a point on a curve; 5) Northeasterly, 29.02
feet along the arc of a curve to the right having a radius of 25.00 feet and a
central angle of 66230'40" (chord bearing N.56°25'41"E., 27.42 feet); 6)
MN.00°18'58"W., 50.00 feet; 7) S.89°41'02"W., 0.97 feet to a point of
curvature; 8) Northwesterly, 35.01 feet along the arc of a curve to the right
having a radius of 25.00 feet and a central angle of 80°14'30" (chord
bearing N.50°11'43"W., 32.22 feet) to a point of reverse curvature; 9)
Morthwesterly, 204.64 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a
radius of 270.00 feet and a central angle of 43°25'32" (chord bearing
N.31°47'14"W., 199.77 feet) to a point of tangency; 10) N.53°30'00"W.,
35.68 feet to a point of curvature; 11) Northerly, 39.27 feet along the arc of
a curve to the right having a radius of 25.00 feet and a central angle of
90°00'00" (chord bearing N.08°30'00"W., 35.36 feet) to a point of tangency
on the Southeasterly boundary of WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE G2 AND
30TH STREET PHASE G2, according to the plat thereof, as recorded in Plat
Book 146, Pages 257 through 283 inclusive, of the Public Records of
Hillsborough County, Florida; thence along said Southeasterly boundary of
said WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE G2 AND 30TH STREET PHASE G2,
M.36°30'00"E., 1113.00 feet to the Southeast corner of the right-of-way for
30TH STREET NE, according to the plat of WATERSET WOLF CREEK PHASE
G1 AND 30TH STREET PHASE G1, as recorded in Plat Book 144, Pages 184
through 201 inclusive, of the Public Records of Hillsborough County, Florida;
thence along the Southeasterly boundary of said WATERSET WOLF CREEK
PHASE G1 AND 30TH STREET PHASE G1, continue N.36°30'00"E., 570.00
feet to a point of cusp; thence Southerly, 39.27 feet along the arc of a curve
to the left having a radius of 25.00 feet and a central angle of 90°00'00"
(chord bearing S.08°30'00"E., 35.36 feet) to a point of tangency; thence
S.53°30'00"E., 132.00 feet to a point of curvature; thence Easterly, 31.36
feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 50.00 feet and a
central angle of 35°56'11" (chord bearing 5.71°28'06"E., 30.85 feet) to a
point of tangency; thence S.89°26'11"E., 260.09 feet; thence
S.70°18'01"E., 15.69 feet; thence EAST, 254.84 feet to the POINT OF
BEGINNING.

Containing 41.397 acres, more or less.

ALTOGETHER Containing 109.552 acres, more or less.

15



Tab 16



RESOLUTION 2026-03

A RESOLUTION SETTING FORTH THE SPECIFIC TERMS OF THE WATERSET SOUTH
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT’S SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REVENUE BONDS,
SERIES 2025; CONFIRMING THE DISTRICT’S PROVISION OF THE SERIES 2025 PROJECT
AND ADOPTING A SUPPLEMENTAL ENGINEER’S REPORT; CONFIRMING AND ADOPTING
A SUPPLEMENTAL ASSESSMENT REPORT; CONFIRMING, ALLOCATING AND
AUTHORIZING THE COLLECTION OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS SECURING SERIES 2025
BONDS; PROVIDING FOR THE APPLICATION OF TRUE-UP PAYMENTS; PROVIDING FOR
THE SUPPLEMENT TO THE IMPROVEMENT LIEN BOOK; PROVIDING FOR THE RECORDING
OF A NOTICE OF SERIES 2025 SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS,
SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Waterset South Community Development District (the “District”) has previously
indicated its intention to undertake, install, establish, construct or acquire certain public infrastructure
improvements within the District, and to finance such improvements through the imposition of special
assessments on benefitted property within the District and the issuance of bonds; and

WHEREAS, the District’s Board of Supervisors (the “Board”) has previously adopted, after notice
and public hearing, Resolutions 2022-30 and 2025-_, relating to the imposition, levy, collection and
enforcement of such special assessments; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to and consistent with the terms of Resolutions 2022-30 and 2025-_, this
Resolution shall set forth the terms of bonds actually issued by the District, and apply the adopted special
assessment methodology to the actual scope of the project to be completed with a series of bonds and
the terms of the bond issue; and

WHEREAS, on , 2025, the District entered into a Bond Purchase Agreement
whereby it agreed to sell $ of its Special Assessment Revenue Bonds, Series 2025 (the
“Series 2025 Bonds”); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to and consistent with Resolutions 2022-30 and 2025-__, the District desires
to set forth the particular terms of the sale of the Series 2025 Bonds and confirm the lien of the special
assessments securing the Series 2025 Bonds on the lands within 2025 Assessment Area within the District.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE WATERSET
SOUTH COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. AUTHORITY FOR THIS RESOLUTION. This Resolution is adopted pursuant to the
provisions of Florida law, including Chapters 170 and 197, Florida Statutes, and Resolutions 2022-30 and
2025- .

SECTION 2. FINDINGS. The Board of Supervisors of the Waterset South Community Development
District hereby finds and determines as follows:



(a) On September 13, 2022 and September 11, 2025, the District, after due notice and public
hearing, adopted Resolutions 2022-30 and 2025-__, which, among other things, equalized, approved,
confirmed and levied special assessments on all of the lands within the District benefitting from the
infrastructure improvements authorized by the District. Those Resolutions provided that as each series of
bonds was issued to fund all or any portion of the District’s infrastructure improvements within the
District, a supplemental resolution would be adopted to set forth the specific terms of the bonds and
certifying the amount of the lien of the special assessments securing any portion of the bonds, including
interest, costs of issuance, the number of payments due, the True-Up amounts and the application of
receipt of True-Up proceeds.

(b) The Supplemental District Engineer’s Report, Series 2025 Project (2025 Assessment Area),
dated July 31, 2025, which is attached to this Resolution as Exhibit A (the “Supplemental Engineer’s
Report”), identifies and describes the capital infrastructure improvements providing benefit to “2025
Assessment Area” included within the District’s “Series 2025 Project,” a portion of which project is to be
financed with the Series 2025 Bonds. The District hereby confirms that the Series 2025 Project serves a
proper, essential and valid public purpose. The Supplemental Engineer’s Report is hereby confirmed. The
District ratifies its use in connection with the sale of the Series 2025 Bonds.

(c) The Final Supplemental Special Assessment Allocation Report, dated , 2025,
attached to this Resolution as Exhibit B (the “Supplemental Assessment Report”), applies the adopted
Master Assessment Methodology Report for the District to the actual terms of the Series 2025 Bonds. The
Supplemental Assessment Report is hereby approved, adopted and confirmed. The District ratifies its use
in connection with the sale of the Series 2025 Bonds.

(d) The Series 2025 Project will specially benefit all of the developable acreage within 2025
Assessment Area. It is reasonable, proper, just and right to assess the portion of the costs of the Series
2025 Project financed, in part, with the Series 2025 Bonds to the specially benefited properties within
2025 Assessment Area, as set forth in Resolutions 2022-30 and 2025-__ and this Resolution.

SECTION 3. CONFIRMATION OF MAXIMUM ASSESSMENT LIEN FOR SERIES 2025 BONDS. As
provided in Resolutions 2022-30 and 2025-__, this Resolution is intended to set forth the terms of the
Series 2025 Bonds and the final amount of the lien of the special assessments securing those bonds. The
Series 2025 Bonds, in a par amount of $ shall bear such rates of interest and maturity as
shown on Exhibit C attached hereto. The final payment on the Series 2025 Bonds shall be due on May 1,
2055. The sources and uses of funds of the Series 2025 Bonds shall be as set forth in Exhibit D. The debt
service due on the Series 2025 Bonds is set forth on Exhibit E attached hereto. The lien of the special
assessments securing the Series 2025 Bonds on all developable land within 2025 Assessment Area within
the District shall be the principal amount due on the Series 2025 Bonds, together with accrued but unpaid
interest thereon, and together with the amount by which annual assessments are grossed up to include
early payment discounts required by law and costs of collection. The Series 2025 Bonds are secured solely
by the lien against lands within 2025 Assessment Area within the District.

SECTION 4. ALLOCATION OF ASSESSMENTS SECURING SERIES 2025 BONDS.



(a) The special assessments for the Series 2025 Bonds shall be allocated in accordance with
Exhibit B, which allocation shall initially be on a per acre basis and further allocated as lands are platted.
The Supplemental Assessment Report is consistent with the District’s Master Assessment Methodology
Report. The Supplemental Assessment Report, considered herein, reflects the actual terms of the issuance
of the District’s Series 2025 Bonds. The estimated costs of collection of the special assessments for the
Series 2025 Bonds are as set forth in the Supplemental Assessment Report.

(b) The lien of the special assessments securing the Series 2025 Bonds includes all developable
land within 2025 Assessment Area within the District, as such land is ultimately defined and set forth in
plats or other designations of developable acreage. To the extent land is added to 2025 Assessment Area,
the District may, by supplemental resolution, determine such land to be benefited by the Series 2025
Project and reallocate the special assessments securing the Series 2025 Bonds and impose special
assessments on the newly added and benefited property.

(c) Taking into account earnings on certain funds and accounts as set forth in the Master Trust
Indenture, dated December 1, 2022 and Third Supplemental Trust Indenture, dated September 1, 2025
and by and between the District and U.S. Bank Trust Company, National Association, as trustee, the
District shall begin annual collection of special assessments for the Series 2025 Bonds debt service
payments using the methods available to it by law. Debt service payments and semi-annual installments
of interest are reflected on Exhibit E.

(d) The District hereby certifies the special assessments for collection and directs staff to take all
actions necessary to meet the time and other deadlines imposed by Hillsborough County and Florida law
for collection. The District Manager shall prepare or cause to be prepared each year a tax roll for purposes
of effecting the collection of the special assessments and present same to the District Board as required
by law. The District Manager is further directed and authorized to take all actions necessary to collect any
prepayments of debt as and when due and to collect special assessments on unplatted property using
methods available to the District authorized by Florida law in order to provide for the timely payment of
debt service on the Series 2025 Bonds.

SECTION 5. APPLICATION OF TRUE-UP PAYMENTS. Pursuant to Resolutions 2022-30 and 2025-
__, there may be required from time to time certain True-Up payments. As lands are platted within 2025
Assessment Area, the special assessments securing the Series 2025 Bonds shall be allocated to the platted
lands and the unplatted lands as set forth in Resolutions 2022-30 and 2025-_, this Resolution, and the
Supplemental Assessment Report, including, without limitation, the application of the True-Up process
set forth in Section 8 of Resolution 2022-30. The True-Up calculations will be made in accordance with the
process set forth in the Supplemental Assessment Report. The District shall apply all True-Up payments
related to the Series 2025 Bonds only to the credit of the Series 2025 Bonds. All True-Up payments, as
well as all other prepayments of assessments, shall be deposited into the accounts specified in the First
Supplemental Indenture governing the Series 2025 Bonds.

SECTION 6. IMPROVEMENT LIEN BOOK. Immediately following the adoption of this Resolution
these special assessments as reflected herein shall be recorded by the Secretary of the District in the
District’s Improvement Lien Book. The special assessment or assessments against each respective parcel
shall be and shall remain a legal, valid and binding first lien on such parcel until paid and such lien shall be

3



coequal with the lien of all state, county, district, municipal or other governmental taxes and superior in
dignity to all other liens, titles, and claims.

SECTION 7. OTHER PROVISIONS REMAIN IN EFFECT. This Resolution is intended to supplement
Resolutions 2022-30 and 2025-__, which remain in full force and effect. This Resolution and Resolutions
2022-30 and 2025-__ shall be construed to the maximum extent possible to give full force and effect to
the provisions of each resolution. All District resolutions or parts thereof in actual conflict with this
Resolution are, to the extent of such conflict, superseded and repealed.

SECTION 8. ASSESSMENT NOTICE. The District’s Secretary is hereby directed to record a Notice
of Series 2025 Special Assessments securing the Series 2025 Bonds in the Official Records of Hillsborough
County, Florida, or such other instrument evidencing the actions taken by the District.

SECTION 9. SEVERABILITY. If any section or part of a section of this Resolution be declared invalid
or unconstitutional, the validity, force and effect of any other section or part of a section of this resolution
shall not thereby be affected or impaired unless it clearly appears that such other section or part of a
section of this Resolution is wholly or necessarily dependent upon the section or part of a section so held
to be invalid or unconstitutional.

SECTION 10. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Resolution shall become effective upon its adoption.

[Signatures on Next Page]



APPROVED and ADOPTED this 11" day of September, 2025.

ATTEST: WATERSET SOUTH COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
Secretary / Assistant Secretary Chairperson, Board of Supervisors
Exhibit A: Supplemental District Engineer’s Report, Series 2025 Project (2025 Assessment Area),
dated July 31, 2025
Exhibit B: Final Supplemental Special Assessment Allocation Report, dated , 2025
Exhibit C: Maturities and Coupon of Series 2025 Bonds
Exhibit D: Sources and Uses of Funds for Series 2025 Bonds
Exhibit E: Annual Debt Service Payment Due on Series 2025 Bonds



Exhibit A

District Engineer’s Report, Supplement to Master Capital Improvement Plan,
dated July 17, 2025



Exhibit B

Final Supplemental Special Assessment Allocation Report, dated , 2025




Exhibit C

Maturities and Coupon of Series 2025 Bonds



Exhibit D

Sources and Uses of Funds for Series 2025 Bonds



Exhibit E

Annual Debt Service Payment Due on Series 2025 Bonds



Tab 17



CURVE DATA TABLE

RADIUS DELTA ARC CHORD BEARING /

1538.00 | 35'57'42" | 965.32 949.56 | S.18'31°09"W. ,
1662.00 | 11°47'42" | 342.14 341.54 N.06"2609"E.
1538.00 | 09°30'29” | 255.23 254.93 | S.0523'11°W. N.05'23'11"E. |

1938.00 | 131011 | 445.46 | 444.48 | S.0557'09°E. | // / EASEMENT AND RIGHT—-OF —WAY
2062.00 | 12°28'29" | 448.95 448.06 S.06"18'00"E. N.06"18°00"W. / / (O.R. 3767, PAGE 1928 AND
1517.00 | 00°48'04” 21.21 21.21 N.85'50'54"E. | / / O.R. 3767, PAGE 1938)
1517.00 | 13'41'50" | 362.65 361.79 N.78'35'57"E. / / AS AFFECTED BY

1672.00 13°05'54”" 382.23 381.40 S.80°06°19"W. / / PARTIAL TERMINATION OF EASEMENT
9 1938.00 | 24°21'46” | 824.06 817.86 | S.12'48'36"W. / / (INST. # 2021668905 &

10 1637.50 | 12°29'13" | 356.88 356.17 N.55°14'37"E. / INST. # 2022005287)
11 1562.50 | 40°30°03" | 1104.49 | 1081.64 N.69"15'02"E.
12 25.00 | 91°07°40” 39.76 35.70 S.44'56'07"E.
13 25.00 | 66°30°40" 29.02 27.42 N.56"25'41"E.
14 25.00 | 80°14'30" 35.01 32.22 | N.5O"11°43"W.
15 270.00 | 4325'32" | 204.64 199.77 | N.31°47°14"W.
16 25.00 | 90°00°00" 39.27 35.36 | N.08'30°00°W.
17 1938.00 | 08'24'15" | 284.26 284.01 | N.08'20°07"W.
18 1938.00 | 04'45'56” | 161.19 161.15 | N.01°45°02"W.
19 100.00 | 45°30°36” 79.43 77.36 | S.68'39°43"W.
20 267.00 | 0847'27" 40.97 4093 | S.87°0117°W.
21 723.00 | 0828'55" | 107.03 106.93 | S.86°52°01°W.
22 286.00 | 84'56'47" | 424.02 386.24 | N.46°25°08"W.
23 2326.88 | 08'35'11" | 348.71 348.38 | N.08'14°20"W.
24 1677.98 | 05°41°01" | 166.45 166.38 | N.09'41°25"W.
25 105.00 | 85722'03" | 156.44 142.37 | N.49'31°56"W.
26 25.00 | 91°55'02" 40.11 35.94 | S.41°49°31°W.

=z
o

(O.R. 2493, PAGE 685)

TAMPA ELECTRIC
COMPANY PROPERTY

SECTION 27-31-19
%,
& S
R0
\
Sy
96
(@)
3
o
Q

~N

~N
NORTHWEST 1/4 OF
SECTION 27-31-19
NORTHEAST 1/4 OF

o EN] Kol o BN [ON | G} B

<& &((\g(\& NORTH BOUNDARY OF
THE SOUTH 1/2 OF
SECTION 27-31-19

\\

_|
Py
>
O
_|
/
\\
A\

/ @\l/ ’” 1
/7 Q B—58 F~J BASIS OF BEARINGS

,/ / T — T The East boundary of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 34,
/ / 2 N S — Township 31 South, Range 19 East, Hillsborough
/ 31 County, Florida, has a Grid bearing of S.00°33'49"W.

7 < =
7 S / 41 The Grid Bearings as shown hereon refer to the State

TTT+ Plane Coordinate System, North American Horizontal

°s [
, Sy 120314y ) . _ : Datum of 1983 (NAD 83-1990 ADJUSTMENT) for the

// Wog 6 " ,\“L‘L%l 5/ SCALE: I = 300 West Zone of Florida.
7~ WATERSET PHASES |,; "~ A& 75/ >0 (6 7 e —

5A-2B AND 5B-1 "2/ | 8\7’ Y 0 300 600 LEGEND:
«(PLAT BOOK 138, PAGES 114-136) \,/ 11 ¢ 5 [\17\@7\ 8 SCALE IN FEET (R) indicates radial line
[N\ 34/ 33/>\ - N0y Laise? N2 (NR) indicates non-radial line
RB - Reference Bearing
O.R. - Official Records Book
D.B. - Deed Book
INST. # - Instrument Number
T.E.C.O. - Tampa Electric Company
C.D.D. - Waterset South Community Development District

|

| CARDINAL BEARING NOTE:

| Cardinal bearings where shown

| hereon shall be assumed to have

the same bearings as follows:
NORTH - N.00°00'00"E.
SOUTH - S.00°00'00"W.
EAST - N.90°00'00"E.
WEST - N.90°00'00"W. /

100" TAMPA ELECTRIC
COMPANY EASEMENT

(D.B. 1765, PAGE 267)

BNOUAWNE

Limits of Waterset South
Community Development District
after Boundary Modification

7

-31-19
1309.10°

(O.R. 2493, PAGE 685)

TAMPA ELECTRIC
\ COMPANY PROPERTY

N

R
E]
12121218/

lo§+'<'_1"oFf_|—7'_——
L L L

T
T T —|—‘“‘CT(100’r
I57156] 55| 2415315215
58|5756] 55/ 54153 L >
——4E77 LJ_J_J__J__L._\—\"’/\,\'V’\\ \@\)O))'
- — 1—-T"r——\ 29“3CA31\ \ v
\

//// | "// . 72| (T T e

EAST BOUNDARY OF
THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF

SECTION 27
)
55

NN
5.00°36

e S L S e

SECTION 27-31-19
SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF
SECTION 27-31-19

T.E.C.0. | P 73| 17118[19120] 21| 22|23|24

PARCEL "E_1” i 74 | [ tgloek 104\6\5\4\3\\23))

— \7
INS @ 16l15114h3l121111101918 )\
(INST. 2021416839) V) [E——— |75 ] I R IS IR Ll iy
/S S S S 17 76 N

T
SEE DETAIL "B” I PTrl-rrl—rr-\-rr\‘CYN\E’\g,@\%@j\)

\\ — (@]

N LBy

N

SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF

WATERSET SOUTH
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
(LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF DISTRICT BOUNDARIES AFTER BOUNDARY MODIFICATION)

— —

DESCRIPTION: A parcel of land lying in Sections 26, 27, 28, 33 and 34, Township 31 South, Range 19 East, Hillsborough County, Florida and being more particularly described
as follows:

| 2 ——T T BLOCK 108

m 1019181716
_l' /\11LLLLJJ

COMMENCE at the Northeast corner of said Section 34 for a POINT OF BEGINNING, run thence along the East boundary of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34,
S.00°33'49"W., 1580.26 feet; thence WEST, 545.17 feet; thence N.53°30'00"W., 178.57 feet; thence S.36°30'00"W., 3224.26 feet to a point of curvature; thence Southerly,
965.32 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 1538.00 feet and a central angle of 35°57'42" (chord bearing S.18°31'09"W., 949.56 feet) to a point of
tangency; thence S.00°32'18"W., 122.72 feet to a point on the Northerly boundary of the right-of-way for 19TH AVENUE NORTHEAST; thence along said Northerly boundary of
the right-of-way for 19TH AVENUE NORTHEAST, N.88°43'57"W., 124.01 feet; thence N.00°32'18"E., 121.14 feet to a point of curvature; thence Northerly, 342.14 feet along the
arc of said curve to the right having a radius of 1662.00 feet and a central angle of 11°47'42" (chord bearing N.06°26'09"E., 341.54 feet); thence WEST, 365.00 feet; thence
—r— - NORTH, 580.00 feet; thence N.20°00'00"W., 730.00 feet; thence N.60°00'00"W., 910.00 feet; thence N.30°00'00"W., 320.00 feet; thence N.79°51'35"W., 623.86 feet to a point
rrr on a curve; thence Southerly, 255.23 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 1538.00 feet and a central angle of 09°30'29" (chord bearing S.05°23'11"W.,

2\
Iy

-
s
prd
»
'

T.E.C.O.
PROPERTY
(O.R. 2493,
PAGE 685)
L
\QGEN

(PLAT BOOK 139, PAGES 189-202)

WATERSET PHASE 5B-2

T
o |N|®|©]
I

y LESS/
& SCHOOL/SITE

S.00°37°43"W.
n S.00°36°55"W.

o
o
%

e
P

b
B e
5
-

|
/
/

1811912021, 15114113112 \
IL — BLcl)CKl 106 || BLOJ;K '1 051 254.93 feet) to a point of tangency; thence S.00°37'56"W., 1016.67 feet to a point of curvature; thence Southerly, 445.46 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a

— ___Q___l_L_L_l_l_l_l—l | radius of 1938.00 feet and a central angle of 13°10'11" (chord bearing S.05°57'09"E., 444.48 feet) to a point of reverse curvature; thence Southerly, 448.95 feet along the arc
|

|

of a curve to the right having a radius of 2062.00 feet and a central angle of 12°28'29" (chord bearing S.06°18'00"E., 448.06 feet) to a point of tangency; thence S.00°03'46"E.,
> po 351.58 feet to a point on the aforesaid Northerly boundary of the right-of-way for 19TH AVENUE NORTHEAST; thence along said Northerly boundary of the right-of-way for 19TH
y J o /4/7" AVENUE NORTHEAST, N.88°36'23"W., 268.09 feet to a point on the West boundary of the Southwest 1/4 of aforesaid Section 34; thence along said West boundary of the
\ | /_\ / Se, N 3 y Op Southwest 1/4 of Section 34, N.00°37'12"E., 2523.57 feet to the Southeast corner of the Northeast 1/4 of the aforesaid Section 33; thence along the South boundary of said
C Ol?r CO Northeast 1/4 of Section 33, N.89°02'54"W., 2081.94 feet to a point Easterly boundary of the 130.00 foot wide Railroad right-of-way for C.S.X. Transportation, Inc. (formerly
7,95 A5 Sr M$ Atlantic Coast Line Railroad and Seaboard Coast Line Railroad) per Right-of Way and Track Map V19 FLA (4); thence along said Easterly boundary of the 130.00 foot wide
71 Co A/C$ Railroad right-of-way for C.S.X. Transportation, Inc., N.28°37'13"E., 5866.89 feet to a point on the North boundary of the South 1/2 of the aforesaid Section 27; thence along
S 7S /7’54 SO(/;\/T\‘ On 415 said North boundary of the South 1/2 of Section 27, S.89°16'50"E., 4666.51 feet to the Northeast corner of the Southeast 1/4 of said Section 27; thence along the East
Wi o So OO/X R4 /V boundary of said Southeast 1/4 of Section 27, S.00°36'55"W., 448.17 feet to a point on a curve, also being the Northwest corner of PARCEL "D-2B”, according to Special
29, '?500 07/7,’?/\/5@/\/@5 Warranty Deed, as recorded in Instrument #: 2021416838, of the Public Records of Hillsborough County, Florida; thence along the Northerly boundary of said PARCEL “D-2B”",
5 C 4y /V R N & Easterly, 21.21 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 1517.00 feet and a central angle of 00°48'04" (chord bearing N.85°50'54"E., 21.21 feet) to the
/5,00/7‘//77 0. 05 & 79 Sr Easterlymost corner of said PARCEL “D-2B”, also being the Westerlymost corner of PARCEL “D-1", according to Special Warranty Deed, as recorded in Instrument #:
ﬁ%{/@’?/ 5532 5'437 2021416839, of the Public Records of Hillsborough County, Florida; thence along the Southerly boundary of said PARCEL “"D-1", continue Easterly, 362.65 feet along the arc of
) said curve to the left having the same radius of 1517.00 feet and a central angle of 13°41'50" (chord bearing N.78°35'57"E., 361.79 feet) to the Southeast corner of said
PARCEL “D-1", also being a point on the East boundary of the West 375.00 feet of the aforesaid Section 26, and also being a point on the Westerly boundary of Hillsborough
County Waterset Park Site, as recorded in Official Records Book 24509, Page 1614, of the Public Records of Hillsborough County, Florida; thence along said East boundary of the
West 375.00 feet of Section 26, the following two (2) courses: 1) along the aforesaid Westerly boundary of Hillsborough County Waterset Park Site, S.00°36'55"W., 22.17 feet to
the Southwest corner of said Hillsborough County Waterset Park Site, also being a point on the Westerly boundary of WATERSET PHASE 5A-2B AND 5B-1, according to the plat
thereof, as recorded in Plat Book 138, Pages 114 through 136 inclusive, of the Public Records of Hillsborough County, Florida; 2) along said Westerly boundary of WATERSET
PHASE 5A-2B AND 5B-1, continue S.00°36'55"W., 140.75 feet to a point on a curve, also being the Southeast corner of PARCEL “D-2A", according to the aforesaid Special
Warranty Deed, as recorded in Instrument #: 2021416838, of the Public Records of Hillsborough County, Florida; thence along the Southerly boundary of said PARCEL “D-2A",
Westerly, 382.23 feet along the arc of said curve to the right having a radius of 1672.00 feet and a central angle of 13°05'54" (chord bearing S.80°06'19"W., 381.40 feet) to the
Southwest corner of said PARCEL “"D-2A", also being a point on the aforesaid East boundary of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 27; thence along said East boundary of the
Southeast 1/4 of Section 27, S.00°36'55"W., 1309.10 feet to the Northwest corner of PARCEL “E-2", according to the aforesaid Special Warranty Deed, as recorded in
Instrument #: 2021416838, of the Public Records of Hillsborough County, Florida; thence along the Northerly boundary of said PARCEL “E-2", EAST, 375.02 feet to the Northeast
corner of said PARCEL “E-2 ", also being a point on the aforesaid East boundary of the West 375.00 feet of Section 26, and also being a point on the West boundary of
WATERSET PHASE 5B-2, according to the plat thereof, as recorded in Plat Book 139, Pages 189 through 202 inclusive, of the Public Records of Hillsborough County, Florida;
thence along the Easterly boundary of said PARCEL “E-2", said East boundary of the West 375.00 feet of Section 26 and said West boundary of WATERSET PHASE 5B-2,
S.00°36'55"W., 106.01 feet to the Southeast corner of said PARCEL “E-2"”; thence along the Southerly boundary of said PARCEL “E-2", WEST, 375.02 feet to the Southwest
corner of said PARCEL “E-2", also being a point on the aforesaid East boundary of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 27; thence along said East boundary of the Southeast 1/4 of
Section 27, S.00°36'55"W., 610.29 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING.

SEE DETAIL "C” :
ON SHEET 2 —/

WATERSET SOUTH
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

AFTER BOUNDARY MODIFICATION
784.046 Ac.t
- 25.166 Ac.+
758.880 Ac.+
+ 41.326 Ac.+
800.206 Ac.+
+ 69.411 Ac. +
869.617 Ac.+

&%
6
N2
F

~,
~,
~,
~
~.
-
.~

(INST. #2022381433)

WATERSET SOUTH C.D.D:

FASTERLY BOUNDARY O

REFERENCE LINE

NORTHEAST 1/4 OF
SECTION 34-31-19

EAST BOUNDARY OF
THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF

SECTION 34-31-19
BASIS OF BEARINGS

NORTHWEST 1/4 OF
SEC_TIPN_ 34-31-19

— PROJECT 2005-116-P
19827, PAGE 270)

HILLSBOROUGH
COUNTY PROPERTY

WATERSET PARK ADDITION

PARCEL 101
(O.R.

N,
' IIVG Containing 784.046 acres, more or less.

LESS AND EXCEPT THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PARCEL:

1098.29’

(School Site)
DESCRIPTION: A parcel of land lying in Sections 27 and 34, Township 31 South, Range 19 East, Hillsborough County, Florida, and being more particularly described as follows:

EXPANSION
PARCEL 1

(PHASE E)
BOUNDARY AMENDMENT
(Instrument No. 2025070821)

COMMENCE at the Southeast corner of said Section 27, run thence along the South boundary of said Section 27, N 89°12'28" W, a distance of 234.62 feet to the POINT OF
BEGINNING; thence departing said South boundary, S 00°37'43" W, a distance of 16.33 feet; thence Southerly, 824.06 feet along the arc of a tangent curve to the right having
a radius of 1938.00 feet and a central angle of 24°21'46" (chord bearing S 12°48'36" W, 817.86 feet); thence N 53°30'00" W, a distance of 1419.80 feet; thence Northeasterly,
356.88 feet along the arc of a non-tangent curve to the left having a radius of 1637.50 feet and a central angle of 12°29'13" (chord bearing N 55°14'37" E, 356.17 feet); thence
Easterly, 1104.49 feet along the arc of a reverse curve to the right having a radius of 1562.50 feet and a central angle of 40°30'03" (chord bearing N 69°15'02" E, 1081.64
feet); thence Southeasterly, 39. 76 feet along the arc of a compound curve to the right having a radius of 25.00 feet and a central angle of 91°07'40" (chord bearing S
44°56'07" E, 35.70 feet); thence S 00°37'43" W, a distance of 591.71 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING.

S.00°33'49"W.

TAMPA ELECTRIC
COMPANY PROPERTY

N.89°02'54"W. 2081.94’

/l
/
/
/ SOUTH BOUNDARY OF

/ THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF
/ SECTION 33-31-19

(O.R. 2646, PAGE 956)

Containing 25.166 acres, more or less.

WEST TOGETHER WITH THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PARCEL:

(EXPANSION PARCEL 1 [PHASE E]J)
DESCRIPTION: A parcel of land lying in Section 34, Township 31 South, Range 19 East, Hillsborough County, Florida and being more particularly described as follows:

|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
I
: COMMENCE at the Northeast corner of said Section 34, run thence along the East boundary of the Northeast 1/4 of said Section 34, the following two (2) courses: 1) along the
I Easterly boundary of Waterset South Community Development District, as recorded in Instrument Number 2022381433, of the Public Records of Hillsborough County, Florida,
: S.00°33'49"W., 1580.26 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING; 2) continue S.00°33'49"W., 1098.29 feet; thence WEST, 530.85 feet; thence S.32°59'46"W., 1019.41 feet; thence
| N.31°10'02"W., 471.99 feet; thence N.85°11'27"W., 188.66 feet to a point on a curve; thence Northeasterly, 29.02 feet along the arc of a curve to the right having a radius of
: 25.00 feet and a central angle of 66°30'40" (chord bearing N.56°25'41"E., 27.42 feet); thence N.00°18'58"W., 50.00 feet; thence S.89°41'02"W., 0.97 feet to a point of
[ curvature; thence Northwesterly, 35.01 feet along the arc of a curve to the right having a radius of 25.00 feet and a central angle of 80°14'30" (chord bearing N.50°11'43"W.,
: 32.22 feet) to a point of reverse curvature; thence Northwesterly, 204.64 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 270.00 feet and a central angle of 43°25'32"
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|

P
e Seae
- ~,
» ~,
ra ~

N

SOUTHERLY BOUNDARY OF

T N S

SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF
SECTION 34-31-19

1753, PAGE 2)

23.86
357,
SE R
75,
. So, YW,
Ve #2002Vl ARy
S 90, <505, Cp OF
00,00,, 827 A
[0) ,gz/ )

/ N
EXPANSION .

5.87:47°02°W, PARCEL 2

134.75’
(PHASE 1)

SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF
SECTION 34-31-19

(chord bearing N.31°47'14"W., 199.77 feet) to a point of tangency; thence N.53°30'00"W., 35.68 feet to a point of curvature; thence Northerly, 39.27 feet along the arc of a
curve to the right having a radius of 25.00 feet and a central angle of 90°00'00" (chord bearing N.08°30'00"W., 35.36 feet) to a point of tangency on said Easterly boundary of
Waterset South Community Development District; thence along said Easterly boundary of Waterset South Community Development District, the following three (3) courses:1)
N.36°30'00"E., 1652.00 feet; 2) S.53°30'00"E., 178.57 feet; 3) EAST, 545.17 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING.

100" TAMPA ELECTRIC
COMPANY EASEMENT

NN\ N\
(D.B.

(INST. #2025070821)

134.75'
a°

N.00°37°56"E.
WATERSET SOUTH C.D.D.

Containing 41.326 acres, more or less.

\\ S.00"37°56"W.~ 1016.67’
S

ALSO TOGETHER WITH THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PARCEL:

(EXPANSION PARCEL 2 [PHASE I)
DESCRIPTION: A parcel of land lying in Section 34, Township 31 South, Range 19 East, Hillsborough County, Florida and being more particularly described as follows:

N
C 4\\
C7 N 2
o
Qp

00°37'12"E.  2523.57"

COMMENCE at the Southwest corner of said Section 34, run thence along the West boundary of the Southwest 1/4 of said Section 34, N.00°37'12"E., 47.38 feet to a point on
the Northerly boundary of the right-of-way for 19TH AVENUE NORTHEAST, also being a point on the Southerly boundary of Waterset South Community Development District, as
recorded in Instrument #: 2025070821, of the Public Records of Hillsborough County, Florida; thence along said Southerly boundary of Waterset South Community Development
District, the following twelve (12) courses: 1) along the aforesaid Northerly boundary of the right-of-way for 19TH AVENUE NORTHEAST, S.88°36'23"E., 268.09 feet; 2)
N.00°03'46"W., 351.58 feet to a point of curvature; 3) Northerly, 448.95 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 2062.00 feet and a central angle of 12°28'29"
(chord bearing N.06°18'00"W., 448.06 feet) to a point of reverse curvature; 4) Northerly, 284.26 feet along the arc of a curve to the right having a radius of 1938.00 feet and a

¢
N
(&

X central angle of 08°24'15" (chord bearing N.08°20'07"W., 284.01 feet) to the POINT OF BEGINNING; 5) continue Northerly, 161.19 feet along the arc of said curve to the
o 3 right having the same radius of 1938.00 feet and a central angle of 04°45'56" (chord bearing N.01°45'02"W., 161.15 feet) to a point of tangency; 6) N.00°37'56"E., 1016.67
< '\56 feet to a point of curvature; 7) Northerly, 255.23 feet along the arc of a curve to the right having a radius of 1538.00 feet and a central angle of 09°30'29" (chord bearing
X ?~$G © N.05°23'11"E., 254.93 feet); 8) S.79°51'35"E., 623.86 feet; 9) S.30°00'00"E., 320.00 feet; 10) S.60°00'00"E., 910.00 feet; 11) S.20°00'00"E., 730.00 feet; 12) SOUTH, 580.00
< o feet; thence S.18°00'00"W., 226.70 feet; thence N.69°51'10"W., 306.15 feet to a point on a curve; thence Westerly, 79.43 feet along the arc of a curve to the right having a
Dl & 6" radius of 100.00 feet and a central angle of 45°30'36" (chord bearing S.68°39'43"W., 77.36 feet) to a point of tangency; thence N.88°34'59"W., 75.24 feet; thence

c23

Cb5

WEST BOUNDARY OF
THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF
SECTION 34-31-19

\e\@é\ 4N\ << 977 S.01°25'09"W., 8.00 feet; thence N.88°34'51"W., 57.75 feet to a point on a curve; thence Westerly, 40.97 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 267.00 feet
O\>/\ 6\>\\?§S"QT v and a central angle of 08°47'27" (chord bearing S.87°01'17"W., 40.93 feet) to a point of tangency; thence S.82°37'34"W., 120.87 feet to a point of curvature; thence Westerly,
50\\$OQ\\\\ 3 Di® 107.03 feet along the arc of a curve to the right having a radius of 723.00 feet and a central angle of 08°28'55" (chord bearing S.86°52'01"W., 106.93 feet) to a point of
N7 a9, — COMPANY EASEMENT b“/\g 0_\ a" tangency; thence N.88°53'32"W., 387.34 feet to a point of curvature; thence Northwesterly, 424.02 feet along the arc of a curve to the right having a radius of 286.00 feet and
) C (D.B. 1753, PAGE 2) /5,\\0@ ﬂO‘ a central angle of 84°56'47" (chord bearing N.46°25'08"W., 386.24 feet) to a point of reverse curvature; thence Northerly, 348.71 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having
R . 8 | Y r_- 3 a radius of 2326.88 feet and a central angle of 08°35'11" (chord bearing N.08°14'20"W., 348.38 feet) to a point of reverse curvature; thence Northerly, 166.45 feet along the
i Y, A Y . e el ; : 1:‘ ——————————— -———"7 : o) arc of a curve to the right having a radius of 1677.98 feet and a central angle of 05°41'01" (chord bearing N.09°41'25"W., 166.38 feet) to a point of reverse curvature; thence

TAMPA ELECTRIC
N\ COMPANY EASEMENT
N TAMPA ELECTRIC (O.R. 3386, PAGE 781)

N.88°53'32"W. C 21

SEE DETAIL "E” .
387.34

N.00°03’46"W.

_______________________________ I Northwesterly, 156.44 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 105.00 feet and a central angle of 85°22'03" (chord bearing N.49°31'56"W., 142.37 feet) to a
T : point of tangency; thence S.87°47'02"W., 134.75 feet to a point of curvature; thence Southwesterly, 40.11 feet along the arc of a curve to the left having a radius of 25.00 feet

\
NORTHERLY BOUNDARY OF \\ ) 19th AVENUE NORTHEAST TOWNSHIP 32 SOUTH and a central angle of 91°55'02" (chord bearing S.41°49'31"W., 35.94 feet) to the POINT OF BEGINNING.

THE RIGHT—OF—WAY FOR N S (PUBLIC) RIG
N N HT—OF-WAY — WIDTH
19th AVENUE NORTHWEST N B\, VARIES 3 2 e Containing 69.411 acres, more or less.
Q

X Con S ALTOGETHER containing 869.617 acres, more or less.

N.88'34'59"W., D _oo&/m&f
7524\ P Of ég%/;/f@

Cop %, 3; WATERSET SOUTH
.,‘ ¥ COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
%, 7o NEETETw. , < % AFTER BOUNDARY MODIFICATION

S.01°25’09"W.
8.00°

7, y /
[} Q/ N 57.7 ’
A \ S Prepared For: NINP-SOUTHBEND 11, LLC.

DESCRIPTION SKETCH
(Not a Survey) AMERRITT, INC.

LAND SURVEYING AND MAPPING
LICENSED BUSINESS NUMBER LB7778
3010 W. Azeele Street, Suite 150

~,
~. P
.~ -
- -
---------

09/30/25 Add Expansion Parcel 2 WFS Tampa, FL 33609
2 |07/19/24 Add Expansion Parcel 1 VBR PHONE (8,13) 221-5200
1 [11/30/21 Revised Boundary and VBR
Less Out School Site - Drawn: WFS |Checked: AWM Order No.: AMI-WSN—-WS—-152
No. Date Description pwn.| John Lee Stillwell 6593 Date: 9—3-21 | Dwg: WSET—SOUTH—2025 CDD AMEND—DS.dwg
REVISIONS FLORIDA PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR & MAPPER NO. ..2%9%..
File Path: P:\Waterset\CDD\South CDD\CDD 2025 AMENDMENT

NOT VALID WITHOUT THE SIGNATURE AND THE ORIGINAL RAISED SEAL OR AN AUTHENTICATED
SHEET NO. 1 OF 2 SHEETS DIGITAL SIGNATURE AND SEAL OF THE FLORIDA LICENSED SURVEYOR AND MAPPER SEC.’S 26,27,28,33&34, TOWNSHIP 31 SOUTH, RANGE 19 EAST



AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
34

AutoCAD SHX Text
35

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
34

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
34

AutoCAD SHX Text
35

AutoCAD SHX Text
36

AutoCAD SHX Text
37

AutoCAD SHX Text
38

AutoCAD SHX Text
39

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
41

AutoCAD SHX Text
42

AutoCAD SHX Text
43

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
45

AutoCAD SHX Text
46

AutoCAD SHX Text
47

AutoCAD SHX Text
48

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY PROPERTY (O.R. 2493, PAGE 685)

AutoCAD SHX Text
 BOULEVARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK 99

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK 100

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK 100

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK 101

AutoCAD SHX Text
HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY WATERSET PARK SITE (O.R. 24509, PAGE 1614)

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK 100

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATERSET PHASES  5A-2B AND 5B-1 (PLAT BOOK 138, PAGES 114-136)

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT OF COMMENCEMENT NORTHEAST CORNER OF  SECTION 34, TOWNSHIP 31 SOUTH, RANGE 19 EAST AND THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SECTION 27, TOWNSHIP 31 SOUTH, RANGE 19 EAST CERTIFIED CORNER RECORD No. 055582 4"x4" Concrete Monument  with 'X' Cut in Top (Found)

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
34

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.E.C.O.  PROPERTY (O.R. 2493,  PAGE 685)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY PROPERTY (O.R. 2493, PAGE 685)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH BOUNDARY OF  THE SOUTH 1/2 OF SECTION 27-31-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST BOUNDARY OF  THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 27-31-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
100' TAMPA ELECTRIC  COMPANY EASEMENT  (D.B. 1765, PAGE 267)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF   SECTION 27-31-19 SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF   SECTION 27-31-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHWEST 1/4 OF   SECTION 27-31-19 NORTHEAST 1/4 OF   SECTION 27-31-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHEAST CORNER OF  THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 27-31-19 (EAST 1/4 CORNER) CERTIFIED CORNER  RECORD No. 115037 Set 4"x4" Concrete Monument "LB7778 PRM"

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHWEST CORNER OF  THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 27-31-19 (CENTER OF SECTION) CERTIFIED CORNER  RECORD No. 115038 Set 4"x4" Concrete Monument "LB7778 PRM"

AutoCAD SHX Text
71

AutoCAD SHX Text
70

AutoCAD SHX Text
72

AutoCAD SHX Text
73

AutoCAD SHX Text
74

AutoCAD SHX Text
75

AutoCAD SHX Text
76

AutoCAD SHX Text
77

AutoCAD SHX Text
78

AutoCAD SHX Text
79

AutoCAD SHX Text
HILLSBOROUGH  COUNTY PROPERTY WATERSET PARK ADDITION  PARCEL 101 - PROJECT 2005-116-P (O.R. 19827, PAGE 270)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT "B-40B"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVINGTON 

AutoCAD SHX Text
69

AutoCAD SHX Text
67

AutoCAD SHX Text
66

AutoCAD SHX Text
68

AutoCAD SHX Text
65

AutoCAD SHX Text
64

AutoCAD SHX Text
63

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK 100

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
45

AutoCAD SHX Text
46

AutoCAD SHX Text
47

AutoCAD SHX Text
48

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK 100

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK 102

AutoCAD SHX Text
56

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
55

AutoCAD SHX Text
57

AutoCAD SHX Text
58

AutoCAD SHX Text
49

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
51

AutoCAD SHX Text
52

AutoCAD SHX Text
53

AutoCAD SHX Text
54

AutoCAD SHX Text
59

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
61

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
81

AutoCAD SHX Text
82

AutoCAD SHX Text
83

AutoCAD SHX Text
84

AutoCAD SHX Text
85

AutoCAD SHX Text
86

AutoCAD SHX Text
87

AutoCAD SHX Text
88

AutoCAD SHX Text
89

AutoCAD SHX Text
90

AutoCAD SHX Text
91

AutoCAD SHX Text
92

AutoCAD SHX Text
93

AutoCAD SHX Text
94

AutoCAD SHX Text
95

AutoCAD SHX Text
96

AutoCAD SHX Text
97

AutoCAD SHX Text
98

AutoCAD SHX Text
99

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT  "B-58"

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK 100

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK 100

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK 104

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK 106

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK 108

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK 107

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK 105

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATERSET PHASE 5B-2 (PLAT BOOK 139, PAGES 189-202)

AutoCAD SHX Text
35

AutoCAD SHX Text
34

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
34

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF   SECTION 34, TOWNSHIP 31 SOUTH, RANGE 19 EAST CERTIFIED CORNER RECORD No. 109636 Nail and Disk "LB7768"

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHEAST CORNER OF   SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 32 SOUTH, RANGE 19 EAST CERTIFIED CORNER RECORD No. 104627 Nail and Disk "LB7866"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.S.X.  TRANSPORTATION, INC. (FORMERLY ATLANTIC COAST LINE RAILROAD  & SEABOARD COAST LINE RAILROAD) RIGHT-OF-WAY AND TRACK MAP V19 FLA (4) (130' RAILROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASTERLY BOUNDARY OF THE  130' WIDE RAILROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY  FOR C.S.X. TRANSPORTATION, INC. (FORMERLY ATLANTIC COAST LINE RAILROAD  & SEABOARD COAST LINE RAILROAD)

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHWEST CORNER OF  SECTION 27-31-19 CERTIFIED CORNER  RECORD No. 083086 Concrete Monument with  "+" Cross Cut

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHWEST 1/4 OF   SECTION 34-31-19 NORTHEAST 1/4 OF   SECTION 34-31-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF   SECTION 34-31-19 SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF   SECTION 34-31-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
19th AVENUE NORTHEAST (PUBLIC) RIGHT-OF-WAY - WIDTH VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT OF BEGINNING  

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHERLY BOUNDARY OF  THE RIGHT-OF-WAY FOR 19th AVENUE NORTHWEST

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST BOUNDARY OF  THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 34-31-19 BASIS OF BEARINGS REFERENCE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
62

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST BOUNDARY OF  THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 34-31-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF  SECTION 33-31-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE IN FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH BOUNDARY OF  THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 33-31-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT  "B-58"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.00°33'49"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1580.26'

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST

AutoCAD SHX Text
545.17'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.53°30'00"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
178.57'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.36°30'00"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3224.26'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.00°32'18"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
122.72'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.88°43'57"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
124.01'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.00°32'18"E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
121.14'

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST

AutoCAD SHX Text
365.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
580.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.20°00'00"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
730.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.60°00'00"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
910.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.30°00'00"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
320.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.79°51'35"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
623.86'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.00°37'56"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1016.67'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.00°03'46"E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
351.58'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.88°36'23"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
268.09'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.28°37'13"E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.89°16'50"E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4666.51'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.00°36'55"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
448.17'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.00°36'55"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1309.10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.00°36'55"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
610.29'

AutoCAD SHX Text
RB=S.77°40'00"E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(NR)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(NR)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATERSET 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(NR)

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.E.C.O. PARCEL "E-1" (INST. 2021416839)

AutoCAD SHX Text
 GARDEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DELTA

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHORD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1538.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
35°57'42"

AutoCAD SHX Text
965.32

AutoCAD SHX Text
949.56

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.18°31'09"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1662.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
11°47'42"

AutoCAD SHX Text
342.14

AutoCAD SHX Text
341.54

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.06°26'09"E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
1538.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
09°30'29"

AutoCAD SHX Text
255.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
254.93

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.05°23'11"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
1938.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
13°10'11"

AutoCAD SHX Text
445.46

AutoCAD SHX Text
444.48

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.05°57'09"E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
2062.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
12°28'29"

AutoCAD SHX Text
448.95

AutoCAD SHX Text
448.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.06°18'00"E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
1517.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
00°48'04"

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
21.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.85°50'54"E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
1517.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
13°41'50"

AutoCAD SHX Text
362.65

AutoCAD SHX Text
361.79

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.78°35'57"E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
1672.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
13°05'54"

AutoCAD SHX Text
382.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
381.40

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.80°06'19"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE DETAIL "A" ON SHEET 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE DETAIL "B" ON SHEET 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK 106

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.00°37'12"E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2523.57'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.89°02'54"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2081.94'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5866.89'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LESS SCHOOL SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.00°37'43"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
591.71'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.53°30'00"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1419.80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE DETAIL "C" ON SHEET 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
1938.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
24°21'46"

AutoCAD SHX Text
824.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
817.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.12°48'36"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
1637.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
12°29'13"

AutoCAD SHX Text
356.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
356.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.55°14'37"E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
1562.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
40°30'03"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1104.49

AutoCAD SHX Text
1081.64

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.69°15'02"E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
91°07'40"

AutoCAD SHX Text
39.76

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.44°56'07"E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(NR)

AutoCAD SHX Text
100' TAMPA ELECTRIC  COMPANY EASEMENT  (D.B. 1753, PAGE 2)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAMPA ELECTRIC  COMPANY EASEMENT  (D.B. 1753, PAGE 2)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAMPA ELECTRIC  COMPANY EASEMENT  (O.R. 3386, PAGE 781)

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.85°11'27"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
188.66'

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.68'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.00°33'49"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1098.29'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.32°59'46"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1019.41'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.31°10'02"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
471.99'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.53°30'00"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.53°30'00"E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.36°30'00"E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1652.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY PROPERTY (O.R. 2646, PAGE 956)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE DETAIL "D" ON SHEET 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST

AutoCAD SHX Text
530.85'

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
66°30'40"

AutoCAD SHX Text
29.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
27.42

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.56°25'41"E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
80°14'30"

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
32.22

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.50°11'43"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
270.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
43°25'32"

AutoCAD SHX Text
204.64

AutoCAD SHX Text
199.77

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.31°47'14"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
90°00'00"

AutoCAD SHX Text
39.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.36

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.08°30'00"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
 WATERSET SOUTH  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AFTER BOUNDARY MODIFICATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASTERLY BOUNDARY OF  WATERSET SOUTH C.D.D. (INST. #2022381433)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASTERLY BOUNDARY OF  WATERSET SOUTH C.D.D. (INST. #2022381433)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT AND RIGHT-OF-WAY (O.R. 3767, PAGE 1928 AND O.R. 3767, PAGE 1938) AS AFFECTED BY  PARTIAL TERMINATION OF EASEMENT (INST. # 2021668905 &  INST. # 2022005287)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWNSHIP 31 SOUTH TOWNSHIP 32 SOUTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPANSION PARCEL 1 (PHASE E) BOUNDARY AMENDMENT (Instrument No. 2025070821) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.79°51'35"E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.30°00'00"E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.60°00'00"E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.20°00'00"E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHERLY BOUNDARY OF  WATERSET SOUTH C.D.D. (INST. #2025070821)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.00°03'46"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.88°36'23"E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.06°18'00"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT OF COMMENCEMENT EXPANSION PARCEL 2 SOUTHWEST CORNER OF   SECTION 34, TOWNSHIP 31 SOUTH, RANGE 19 EAST CERTIFIED CORNER RECORD No. 109116 Nail and Disk "LB7866"

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.05°23'11"E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.00°37'56"E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT OF BEGINNING  

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPANSION

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.87°47'02"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
134.75'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPANSION PARCEL 2 

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.18°00'00"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
226.70'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.69°51'10"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
306.15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.88°34'59"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
75.24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.88°34'51"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
57.75'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.82°37'34"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
120.87'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.88°53'32"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
387.34'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.87°47'02"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
134.75'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHERLY BOUNDARY OF  WATERSET SOUTH C.D.D. (INST. #2025070821)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.88°34'59"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
75.24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.01°25'09"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.88°34'51"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
57.75'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(NR)

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE DETAIL "E" ON SHEET 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
1938.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
08°24'15"

AutoCAD SHX Text
284.26

AutoCAD SHX Text
284.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.08°20'07"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
1938.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
04°45'56"

AutoCAD SHX Text
161.19

AutoCAD SHX Text
161.15

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.01°45'02"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
100.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
45°30'36"

AutoCAD SHX Text
79.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
77.36

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.68°39'43"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
267.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
08°47'27"

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.97

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.93

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.87°01'17"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
723.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
08°28'55"

AutoCAD SHX Text
107.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
106.93

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.86°52'01"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
286.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
84°56'47"

AutoCAD SHX Text
424.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
386.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.46°25'08"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
2326.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
08°35'11"

AutoCAD SHX Text
348.71

AutoCAD SHX Text
348.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.08°14'20"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
1677.98

AutoCAD SHX Text
05°41'01"

AutoCAD SHX Text
166.45

AutoCAD SHX Text
166.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.09°41'25"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
105.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
85°22'03"

AutoCAD SHX Text
156.44

AutoCAD SHX Text
142.37

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.49°31'56"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
91°55'02"

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.11

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.94

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.41°49'31"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT OF BEGINNING  

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPANSION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEC.'S 26,27,28,33&34, TOWNSHIP 31 SOUTH, RANGE 19 EAST

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLORIDA PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR & MAPPER NO.  ..................

AutoCAD SHX Text
9-3-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
Dwg:

AutoCAD SHX Text
AMI-WSN-WS-152

AutoCAD SHX Text
WSET-SOUTH-2025 CDD AMEND-DS.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
AWM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WFS

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Checked:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Order No.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NNP-SOUTHBEND II, LLC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
Dwn.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Description

AutoCAD SHX Text
(Not a Survey)

AutoCAD SHX Text
File Path:

AutoCAD SHX Text
P:\Waterset\CDD\South CDD\CDD 2025 AMENDMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
11/30/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
VBR

AutoCAD SHX Text
Revised Boundary and  Less Out School Site

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT VALID WITHOUT THE SIGNATURE AND THE ORIGINAL RAISED SEAL OR AN AUTHENTICATED DIGITAL SIGNATURE AND SEAL OF THE FLORIDA LICENSED SURVEYOR AND MAPPER

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
07/19/24

AutoCAD SHX Text
VBR

AutoCAD SHX Text
Add Expansion Parcel 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
09/30/25

AutoCAD SHX Text
WFS

AutoCAD SHX Text
Add Expansion Parcel 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
John Lee Stillwell

AutoCAD SHX Text
6593

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO. 1 OF 2 SHEETS


-
O ig
o
=
OOy
G 3 5
(@)]
____________ - > ) s.e “‘T % e
_________ <Z 3 Tewa- PN
..... a N .r 1)
L EAST BOUNDARY OF < s® Y )
s B THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF % SR N .
25 B s P secion 27-31019 < =3 NRTTIRY
%% O "8
L0 = 73 < —~0) - \‘\
- = (%\d)\ 5@_.‘“:“3) AT TED 45 . >
\Q%(ﬂ% 3} ;pA U N PL a2 s Ew
EASCAN E10k DAR - 539
s Fl¥8T  wormER BONTET e NN T e S°%
/ U B AR - - — N\ e T o X
,’ll U&) ||| n OF P - e e e - >|__/\ méo_.__
/ C6 - — S f ______ © % 3 > o = ': ~~~~~~~
/ BEEEEEE \OFASTERLY oF /b N Ea © Tol 1 T NOTE:
] - e Page MO N OO W S SEE SHEET 1 OF 2 SHEETS FOR:
; ESTERL yE L&z Lig | 1) LEGAL DESCRIPTION
Ilf ; T ” - ” OF -’ — = .
\ 100" TAMPA ELECTRIC PARCEL "D-2B P4 L s = 3 - ! HILLSBOROUGH 2) CURVE DATA TABLE
\ T.E.C.0. EASEMENT > - 0 3) BASIS OF BEARINGS NOTE
\  COMPANY EASEMENT | <Z 2 ; !
\ (D.B. 1765 , RESERVATION ) N <ZE N Qs ‘ COUNTY ™ 4) CARDINAL BEARING NOTE
\GI ’ INST. #: 2021416838 ~ L B = 5) LEGEND
\ PAGE 267) , (INST. # ) TH o > =< = 38 So, Lo 2 \Iiv: I;rll(E I:‘SSIE'-IIE-
ERSET souU 3 = 0% aws o & PN
| WAT =N O = O 4 N aen ) Zio=  (OR. 24509, N
T RESERVATION ) S50 e C Cop, TN 1 TN PAGE 1614) =N
~ EASEMEN - o < = 4, \ ) - "
s T.E-C-O' E 4.59) PPLas /’ \ m _g ) 0 é\/? =\ | . > AN
"""""" (OR. 18845, PAG / T &z s L7 ~~
_____ ° ____—" / . g \ - \
________________________ ’I' ? ~ D_CI % v /, \\\
TteREIIIs e eemm e s 0 AN \ W ,/, NER OF \
_____________ / - A Ew - OUTHWEST COR \
--------------- ”:' 5;8 . 8 o —— SH\LLSBOROUGH COU‘_\I‘_EY \
________________ = | Z WATERSET PARK Sl a®
------------- "l (fj . S N] [n& “‘
______________ / - \ \
____________ | EAST BOUNDARY OF = < ©®O;/W“ \
f THE WEST 375.00 FEET 5 @%E Y\ 1 T
P T \ ' OF SECTION 26-31-19 0 Lﬁﬁ o) ® -. s
l" -------‘~::\‘ m W ?\)B\’\ " "" B ““\
{ B < ‘ of P ™ 0
{ 100’ TAMPA ELECTRIC W - i S u® B
i COMPANY EASEMENT 3 63%\»55 A - \\ .’ S 27
{ (D.B. 1765, TR el Tep - i oL
} PAGE 267) T MY _ -7, \ .-' S5 N
; ~ TN " ’ LIRS )
\ - H / N N\
‘\‘ - \ /0(/ » \ / :'l Q L M \
. WATERSET'SOUTH C.D.D. — T ThaCT ) ey >\ ®55 g
! » » AN hpo =z SOUTHERLY BOUNDARY OF
Z B—58 \ “57/26% \ H =L WATERSET SOUTH C.D.D. \
\ -Lil'n (CDD) OPE\N \ >’ 'l' FE ('NST. #2025070821) ‘I‘
\ ZR! SPACE \ -7 ! N.88'36'03" \
\ sl / e .88'36'23"W '.
N BII ~ \ - - /\’l' I' b - I
it WATERSET PHASES ~ / ; S-B836 23°F. ;
3 > I 5A-2B AND 5B-1 =. N ‘ ,=
R \ O ORTHERLY BOUN !
~ ST SR : RN (F,F;EAETS o 1133:)’ | NOOST 2 = THE  RIGHT—OF—WAY FOR
2 SOUr/, . 3 5o 9% /\_% I \ 47. 33 | 34 19th AVENUE NORTHWEST ;
\\ L d O K 6 N ,..___...—__'", “‘ ’l
\\‘ Otg S 104/:1/587‘ c cﬂ E = @ @ d @ l TRACT ”B—58” /' Iy - ’,'
—0~ & SOR Qoo % >0 I \ /
21 s D VER R OE o ¥ I WETLAND Wt 19th AVENUE
. |5~ 4 N RS Ta | CONSERVATION .~ E‘“GEN\E NORTHEAST
5 e | mgEl S I AREA - cOMWVECCEL 2 opst (PUBLIC) RIGHT—OF—WAY
TLE . Qouw ? | 3 PAR Y of ¢ 19 — WIDTH VARIES
~~~~~ = Q - 0\\‘\1 “5\0 ORNER, “RaNCE L 16
~~~~~~~ ooy - O I v E)(\’P‘ rfllas) SOUT™ 0. 109
~~~~~~ H T~ a ~ A SOUTNS\,\\P 3\?\500 856" .
------- an _——’——_ R ” B7 \\\\ :"
------- L - \ __——"— TO ORNE . k L s 7
_________ > W 2T g C Dis
- P I T
AN < O T e e
5 R
<=3
S~ DETAIL "E”
DETAIL "A” NOT TO SCALE
NOT TO SCALE (SEE SHEET 1)
(SEE SHEET 1)
------------------- r------------“--
____ [ TTeel
________ | [T
—————— | -~~-“~
f”— I “‘\
l"’ | “‘5
o [ .
et I S
------------ "" | ‘\‘
------------- >_ --—------“--_ 'l' . | ‘\\\
____ — "~___ 'l’ | N
———————— Q |D_i fe} --'~-__ 'l' - ? | \\\ __——"'--_------------"-—__
—————— E LIJ 00 --‘~_~ — o ’l' - Q | \\\ _—’——— -~~~‘~_
——————— — D_ © iii-‘~~ L H A I" ': .i\ ! O — /';\ L \\\ ,—//’ -“~‘~
,,,, O oY s o oy ) ' ®v= 8 o o I
-~ X < T"\ ™ /’ wlo b ig o L o “ . .
I"’ _l E ‘\‘\ 52 o NI) I" O I 8 E LL‘ o d— A \\\ I" “‘\
L 0 am l = o © / A I HW o . ~ | . > . Py \ i @ “
- ) | LN / I Q< = r= O~ R0 \ o .
s <Z 2 | 3"z SERE I R-1o1 S8 P
ad s / I - [Te} N~ N\ s’ \‘\
7 — al < o~ OO “w "I s > n | - Z TN - O “\ /l \
a [0} > al ¢ l m & 5 . K | <C <Z( g (@) % 8 IEIEJ LlJ. O @ g ‘\‘ 'I' (% \‘\
) & <=3 0P ' h=5 L glg @55 —x g
- D —o2 G’ I < / & | 90 o S Ok o \ / d} \
% T ) O <& Wy 76 N / “0,,S. oo & ¥ HOO \ / o 5
= L O @ T, L/ FO TN Wy s TR 5w o ° g 04/
"I' tl.g %&Q/%QQ/\/(L\R\ Q OO / \‘\\ ’l’ Oko&o | |:E “\‘ ,l” /o’s’/y “\
=9 PO &, % &% ' " e R \
23 & NORTHERLY NN 7 / G, | \ / & 7 \
5 S BOUNDARY OF : | P 77 g N { SOUTH BOUNDARY OF N | ! - s \
& N\ (PARCEL "E-2" \f e BLOCK 100 & o ! SECTION 27—31—19) g |' \ ! S.89°41°02"W > '
/ ’ NN ! s " \ i . , . \
EAST 375.02 | = DAY i L N.89'12'28" “ E I\ '/ 0.97 éé |
TRACT "B-60" | 2 7} .-' \ 234.62° "- | R 7 |
| WATERSET |SOUTH C.D.D PRI RE_G g L | . ' p | | 8he -’
.-' St 5 RO :' z | Sty Oty | | SRC :'
; < ; : “m S 7 : \ = ]
5 W EASTERLY BOUNDARY |- COVINGTON 77 5 ; 5 LESS NI | g% ~ Se W 3y N OF ; \ LOS /
: L Co OF PARCEL "E-2"—=|©5 GARDEN 5 : S | G oy, Ane 7o ORr, C : \ ol Z /
| 52 "E.2" 8q =L . SCHOOL SITE Do 559 W S5 T, SOy = \ c :
, °X] PARCEL “E-2  .Bg DRWVE P2 | : S~ = Cens? e Sk ST oI, ; 188,66’
\ &5 T.E.C.O. EASEMENT S~ (puBue) B x ‘. % R R I "l s S0Uy, 37 e . Y ; N.85'11°27"w,
\ St RESERVATION ¥ RIGHT—OF—WAY S ! o 1 sz 2% CORIR Y S0URY O (YA
\ = £~ m &0 ! ' I ==~ L Az ’?/\/é\ 3 r /4/ ] \ 4
\ 5ao (INST. # 2021416838) 0 = P_ \ ~ 22 e “is T o R o SOUSO"P;\//P Ve i \ P
S - = \ IR k¢ - o, R0 G Or /
mEZ - = m : O N R : \ /
\ 535 R 5/ \ 1 932 o <, Ro o 79 \
\“ — OF WEST 375 02, m O E g E_/ ," \ Q | 9 O \D/ o0 ol 5 e % /vo/?»q/\/c ~ SqS \\ J
n No . Ll = / \ | o) 22, & A . y
‘\‘ < L SOUT,L/ ?/?\ l O D) EI g Y, ' | — > ) (//778/7 0,55 5 79 . J
“ Lol % wn OF WEST O?\$ " l < %: S / |“ | . O — fO\ @0 el 82 5487‘ . ",'
\ = . P4 Co SOUTHERLY BOUNDARY O o | 220 \ s = O g o ,
N \’ ; PCEL 2 R/VE ” ” P\g" ’?, << —<T ’ \ I & e Lol / ’ S L’
-2 oo OF PARCEL "E—2 SR fo ] DETD — /_\ o o o
2 |13 e o o | =24 i ST 1 OOH e ]
AN © () ,/ ‘\ M l’ ------------
\\ \9 p >|__ E Ll l O a < 2 'l" ‘\‘ O O {T % LL] b 1 AN o l,' _____________________________
N | Ox g 52 1 FoEE ‘\ R & oRS |3 PR /
\\\ . —_— < "l \‘\ m 'll
~. |” ca =L 2718y Tz DETAIL "D”
. 8 g L 8 = | L \, = 3 % ey % = E ‘ /
\\\ "' \\ [ad "
\g Ha @ 7 : SN <=3 NOT TO SCALE
- e o RN 2538 S (SEE SHEET 1)
. > o < ) \ &) AF < uUx S /’
~— <= < = .- R LW wwnQ 4
~~~~~~~ Qg SR
--------- <§E al . —————___— \\\ E‘ |I "/
--------- |_ E o _——_____— \\ | /'
_______________ e O ~— ==~ \‘\\ < | ':"
O . E | e
\\\~ | "'l
\\\~ | "’l
See | /,—
I
DETAIL "B” T T
______________ |
NOT TO SCALE )

(SEE SHEET 1)

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
» e AFTER BOUNDARY MODIFICATION
DETAIL ”C
NOT TO SCALE

Prepared For: NINP-SOUTHBEND 11, LLC.
DESCRIPTION SKETCH
(SEE SHEET 1) (Not a Survey) AMERRITT,. INC.

LAND SURVEYING AND MAPPING

LICENSED BUSINESS NUMBER LB7778
09/30/25 | Add Expansion Parcel 2 WFS 3010 W'T:rz:s;e ﬁtrggts’osgu'te 150
2 |07/19/24 Add Expansion Parcel 1 VBR SEE SHEET 1 FOR ELECTRONIC PHONE (813) 221-5200
1 [11/30/21 Revised Boundary and VBR SIGNATURE AND SEAL.
Less Out School Site - Drawn: WFS |Checked: AWM Order No.: AMI—WSN—WS—-152
No. | Date Description pwn.| John Lee Stillwell 6593 Date: 9-3-21 | Dwg: WSET—SOUTH—2025 CDD AMEND—DS.dwg
REVISIONS FLORIDA PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR & MAPPER No. ..6993
File Path: P:\Waterset\CDD\South CDD\CDD 2025 AMENDMENT
SHEET NO. 2 > NOT VALID WITHOUT THE SIGNATURE AND THE ORIGINAL RAISED SEAL OR AN AUTHENTICATED :
0. 2 OF 2 SHEETS DIGITAL SIGNATURE AND SEAL OF THE FLORIDA LICENSED SURVEYOR AND MAPPER SEC.’S 26,27,28,33&34, TOWNSHIP 31 SOUTH, RANGE 19 EAST



AutoCAD SHX Text
TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY PROPERTY (O.R. 2493, PAGE 685)

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.E.C.O. PARCEL "D-1" (INST. #: 2021416839)

AutoCAD SHX Text
U N P L A T  T E D

AutoCAD SHX Text
100' TAMPA ELECTRIC  COMPANY EASEMENT  (D.B. 1765,  PAGE 267)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST BOUNDARY OF  THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 27-31-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHERLY BOUNDARY  OF PARCEL "D-2B"

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASTERLYMOST CORNER  OF PARCEL "D-2B" AND WESTERLYMOST CORNER  OF PARCEL "D-1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHERLY  BOUNDARY OF  PARCEL "D-1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHWEST CORNER  OF PARCEL "D-2B" (INST. #: 2021416838)

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.E.C.O. EASEMENT RESERVATION (O.R. 18845, PAGE 459)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST BOUNDARY OF THE WEST 375.00 FEET OF SECTION 26-31-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.00°36'55"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
448.17'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(NR)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RB=N.03°45'04"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL "D-2B" T.E.C.O. EASEMENT  RESERVATION (INST. #: 2021416838)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WESTERLY BOUNDARY HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY WATERSET PARK SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY PROPERTY (O.R. 2493, PAGE 685)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT "Z-1" (PUBLIC) PUMP STATION SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHWEST CORNER OF HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY WATERSET PARK SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HILLSBOROUGH  COUNTY WATERSET  PARK SITE (O.R. 24509,  PAGE 1614)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATERSET PHASES  5A-2B AND 5B-1 (PLAT BOOK 138,  PAGES 114-136)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WESTERLY BOUNDARY OF WATERSET PHASES  5A-2B AND 5B-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY PROPERTY (O.R. 2493, PAGE 685)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHERLY BOUNDARY  OF PARCEL "D-1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHEAST CORNER  OF PARCEL "D-1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHEAST CORNER  OF PARCEL "D-2A" (INST. #: 2021416838)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHWEST CORNER  OF PARCEL "D-2A"

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.E.C.O. EASEMENT RESERVATION (O.R. 18845, PAGE 459)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHERLY BOUNDARY  OF PARCEL "D-2A"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.00°36'55"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
448.17'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.00°36'55"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
22.17'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.00°36'55"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.00°36'55"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1309.10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(NR)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATERSET BOULEVARD (PUBLIC) RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
RB=N.18°14'58"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RB=N.16°26'38"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
100' TAMPA ELECTRIC  COMPANY EASEMENT  (D.B. 1765,  PAGE 267)

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.E.C.O. PARCEL "D-1" (INST. #: 2021416839)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL "D-2A" T.E.C.O. EASEMENT  RESERVATION (INST. #: 2021416838)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(NR)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATERSET SOUTH C.D.D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT "B-58" WETLAND CONSERVATION  AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT "Z-1" (PUBLIC) PUMP STATION SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT  "B-58" (CDD) OPEN  SPACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RB=N.03°20'45"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATERSET SOUTH C.D.D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(NR)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(NR)

AutoCAD SHX Text
140.75'

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASTERLY BOUNDARY OF PARCEL "E-2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY PROPERTY (O.R. 2493, PAGE 685)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST BOUNDARY OF  THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 27-31-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY PROPERTY (O.R. 2493, PAGE 685)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHWEST CORNER  OF PARCEL "E-2" (INST. #: 2021416838)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHERLY BOUNDARY OF PARCEL "E-2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHEAST CORNER  OF PARCEL "E-2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHERLY BOUNDARY  OF PARCEL "E-2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHWEST CORNER  OF PARCEL "E-2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST BOUNDARY OF THE WEST 375.00 FEET OF SECTION 26-31-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVINGTON  GARDEN  DRIVE (PUBLIC)  RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHEAST CORNER  OF PARCEL "E-2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT "B-60" (CDD) OPEN SPACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATERSET PHASE 5B-2 (PLAT BOOK 139, PAGES 189-202)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST BOUNDARY OF WATERSET PHASE 5B-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.00°36'55"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1309.10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST

AutoCAD SHX Text
375.02'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.00°36'55"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
106.01'

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST

AutoCAD SHX Text
375.02'

AutoCAD SHX Text
610.29'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(NR)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.00°36'55"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT "B-40B" (CDD) DRAINAGE AREA AND (PUBLIC) DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
76

AutoCAD SHX Text
77

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK 100

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL "E-2" T.E.C.O. EASEMENT  RESERVATION (INST. #: 2021416838)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATERSET SOUTH C.D.D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETAIL "A" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE (SEE SHEET 1)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETAIL "B" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE (SEE SHEET 1)

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
34

AutoCAD SHX Text
35

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT OF COMMENCEMENT NORTHEAST CORNER OF  SECTION 34, TOWNSHIP 31 SOUTH, RANGE 19 EAST AND THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SECTION 27, TOWNSHIP 31 SOUTH, RANGE 19 EAST CERTIFIED CORNER RECORD No. 055582 4"x4" Concrete Monument  with 'X' Cut in Top (Found)

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.E.C.O.  PROPERTY (O.R. 2493,  PAGE 685)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST BOUNDARY OF  THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 27-31-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY PROPERTY (O.R. 2646, PAGE 956)

AutoCAD SHX Text
     POINT OF BEGINNING  

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST BOUNDARY OF  THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 34-31-19 BASIS OF BEARINGS REFERENCE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.00°33'49"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1580.26'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.00°36'55"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
610.29'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.89°12'28"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
234.62'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.00°37'43"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
591.71'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.00°37'43"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.33'

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT OF BEGINNING

AutoCAD SHX Text
LESS SCHOOL SITE     

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETAIL "C" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE (SEE SHEET 1)

AutoCAD SHX Text
100' TAMPA ELECTRIC  COMPANY EASEMENT  (D.B. 1765, PAGE 267)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LESS SCHOOL SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATERSET SOUTH C.D.D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH BOUNDARY OF  SECTION 27-31-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
100' TAMPA ELECTRIC  COMPANY EASEMENT  (D.B. 1753, PAGE 2)

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.85°11'27"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
188.66'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.00°18'58"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
50.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
(R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.89°41'02"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.97'

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETAIL "D" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE (SEE SHEET 1)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPANSION PARCEL 1 (PHASE E)

AutoCAD SHX Text
34

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
19th AVENUE  NORTHEAST (PUBLIC) RIGHT-OF-WAY  - WIDTH VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHERLY BOUNDARY OF  THE RIGHT-OF-WAY FOR 19th AVENUE NORTHWEST

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST BOUNDARY OF  THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 34-31-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.88°36'23"E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
268.09'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.00°37'12"E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
47.38'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHERLY BOUNDARY OF  WATERSET SOUTH C.D.D. (INST. #2025070821)

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT OF COMMENCEMENT EXPANSION PARCEL 2 SOUTHWEST CORNER OF   SECTION 34, TOWNSHIP 31 SOUTH, RANGE 19 EAST CERTIFIED CORNER RECORD No. 109116 Nail and Disk "LB7866"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETAIL "E" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE (SEE SHEET 1)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.00°37'12"E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2523.57'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.88°36'23"W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEC.'S 26,27,28,33&34, TOWNSHIP 31 SOUTH, RANGE 19 EAST

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLORIDA PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR & MAPPER NO.  ..................

AutoCAD SHX Text
9-3-21

AutoCAD SHX Text
Dwg:

AutoCAD SHX Text
AMI-WSN-WS-152

AutoCAD SHX Text
WSET-SOUTH-2025 CDD AMEND-DS.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
AWM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WFS

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Checked:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Order No.:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NNP-SOUTHBEND II, LLC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
Dwn.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Description

AutoCAD SHX Text
(Not a Survey)

AutoCAD SHX Text
File Path:

AutoCAD SHX Text
P:\Waterset\CDD\South CDD\CDD 2025 AMENDMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
11/30/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
VBR

AutoCAD SHX Text
Revised Boundary and  Less Out School Site

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT VALID WITHOUT THE SIGNATURE AND THE ORIGINAL RAISED SEAL OR AN AUTHENTICATED DIGITAL SIGNATURE AND SEAL OF THE FLORIDA LICENSED SURVEYOR AND MAPPER

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
07/19/24

AutoCAD SHX Text
VBR

AutoCAD SHX Text
Add Expansion Parcel 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
09/30/25

AutoCAD SHX Text
WFS

AutoCAD SHX Text
Add Expansion Parcel 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
John Lee Stillwell

AutoCAD SHX Text
6593

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO. 2 OF 2 SHEETS


Tab 18



WATERSET SOUTH COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT (THE “DISTRICT”)
FACILITY RENTAL AGREEMENT

Facility: (the “Facility”)
Facility Address:
( Person Capacity)
Today’s Date: / / Reserved Date: / /
Type of Event (the “Event”): Number of Guests:

FACILITY RENTALS ARE FOR PATRONS OF THE DISTRICT ONLY

12:00 pm to 5:00 pm: $200.00 Rental Fee (additional time: $30 per hour) and $200 deposit
6:00 pm to 11:00 pm: $250.00 Rental Fee (additional time: $40 per hour) and $200 deposit

Patron’s Name:

Street Address:

City: State: Zip:

Home Phone: ( ) - Alternate Phone: ( ) -

Email Address:

Please read and initial each line.

1. Date of reservation must be within six (6) months from date on form. (INITIAL)

2. | acknowledge that alcohol is prohibited in all areas of the District property. (INITIAL)

3. | agree to present my facility access card to the staff person upon my arrival at the facility.
(INITIAL)

4. lunderstand that my reserved times include set up and cleanup time. (INITIAL)

5. lwill not arrive earlier than the specified reserved time. (INITIAL)

6. The facility shall be left in the same condition it was prior to my event. (INITIAL)

7. The facility cleaning will include sweeping and mopping floors, wiping down tables, clean windows
free of fingerprints, as well as general party clean-up including bagging trash and putting it in the
dumpster or other container as specified by facility staff. (INITIAL)

8.  lunderstand that no wet bathing suits are permitted in the facility. (INITIAL)

9. | must supply all party products and cleaning supplies. This includes tablecloths, plates, napkins,
cups, etc. (INITIAL)

10. All guests and minors must be supervised at all times. (INITIAL)

11. Glitter, confetti, silly string and smoke machines are not permitted in any District facility.
(INITIAL)

12. Helium balloons are NOT permitted. No Exceptions. (INITIAL)

13. Bounce Houses are not permitted. (INITIAL)

14. Tacks, adhesive putty, scotch tape or any other wall-damaging material will NOT be permitted.
(INITIAL)

15. Lit decorative candles or candle warmers (other than cake candles) are not permitted in any District
facility. (INITIAL)

16. 1 am aware that using the District facilities for monetary purposes is NOT permitted. This includes but
is not limited to: Fundraisers, home-based parties, exchange of goods and services, sales presentations



WATERSET SOUTH COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT (THE “DISTRICT”)
FACILITY RENTAL AGREEMENT

etc. This exclusion does not include business/networking meetings. (INITIAL)

17. 1 understand that | am responsible for any damage or change in the condition of the facility, including
restrooms, caused by me or my guests. | also agree to be responsible for the conduct of my guests and
understand that the rental of the above-mentioned room does not include use of the full facility.
(INITIAL)

18. 1 agree to give notice of cancellation at least 30 days in advance or my rental fee will be forfeited.

(INITIAL)

19. My rental will NOT be permitted to start, and no one will be permitted in the facility until I arrive and
sign the check-in paperwork. (INITIAL)

20. | understand failure to uphold any portion of this agreement may result in the forfeit of my $200
deposit, as well as any costs incurred in excess of the deposit amount. Furthermore, | understand |
may lose all privileges if the above regulations are not followed. (INITIAL)

21. | understand that my guests and | are permitted to use the pool/other amenities. However, these
amenities are not considered part of the rental. Inability to use these areas due to inclement weather,
maintenance, capacity restrictions, etc. will NOT result in the return of the rental fee. Other Patrons
and their guests are still permitted to use the pool and other amenities during my event.
(INITIAL)

22. Normal closing times will apply to all amenities. If the pool facilities or other amenities are used by
me or my guests, these areas must be vacated at closing time or the end of my rental period,
whichever is earlier. (INITIAL)

23. If my event runs longer than scheduled, a fee of $15.00 per 15 minutes will be charged. These charges
will be deducted from my deposit. (INITIAL)

24. | agree to abide by the District’s Policies for all Amenity Facilities (the “Policies™), and I will
ensure that all of my guests and invitees abide by the Policies. (INITIAL)

I HAVE FULLY READ AND UNDERSTAND THE ABOVE AGREEMENT AND THE
POLICIES CONCERNING THE FACILITY RENTAL AT THE DISTRICT. | CERTIFY
THAT | AM A DISTRICT PATRON, AND WILL BE AT THE TIME OF THE RENTAL
AND THAT | MUST BE PRESENT FOR THE ENTIRE EVENT, FROM SET UP UNTIL
COMPLETION OF CLEAN UP.

Office Use:

$200.00 Deposit: Date Received: /[ Check #:

Rental Fee: Amount $ Date Received: /| / Check #:

Calendared: Email Sent: Access Card Verified:
Waterset South Community

Patron Development District

Printed Name: By:

Its:




WATERSET SOUTH COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT (THE “DISTRICT”)
FACILITY RENTAL AGREEMENT

HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFICATION AGREEMENT

Patron and Patron’s guests accept the Facility in “as-is” condition, and shall use the Facility at
their own risk, and shall hold the District, its supervisors, officers, agents and employees harmless
for any and all loss, cost, claim, injury, damage or liability sustained or incurred by Patron or
Patron’s guests, resulting therefrom, and/or from any act or omission of the District, or its
Supervisors, officers, agents or employees.

The Patron identified above shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the District, its
supervisors, officers, agents and employees against any and all actions, claims, suits, judgments,
damages, fines, governmental penalties or liabilities, and attorney’s fees asserted by third parties
against the District as a result of the event and/or the use of the Facility, and/or any intentional act
or negligence of Patron, or Patron’s guest, employees, contractors or agents, or as a result of
Patron’s breach of any of its obligations under this Facility Rental Agreement. Provided,
however, this indemnity excludes any claims or cause of action arising from or related solely to
the District’s gross negligence or willful misconduct. Patron’s obligation to defend, indemnify
and hold harmless the District shall survive the conclusion of the event and the termination of this
Facility Rental Agreement.

Nothing in this Agreement shall constitute or be construed as a waiver of the District’s
sovereign immunity or limitation of liability pursuant to Section 768.28, Florida Statutes.

Patron agrees to comply with all Federal, State, County and District policies when planning the
event and assumes all liability for any fines, notices or violations the District receives as a result
of the event.

Patron acknowledges Patron’s responsibility for any and all damages including, but not limited to,
any additional maintenance that may be incurred from Patron’s use.

Patron Signature

Patron Printed Name

/ /
Date

Witness Signature

Witness Printed Name



Tab 19



Independent Contractor Agreement

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Waterset South Community Development District (the “District”) has
entered into this agreement (the “Agreement”) with (the
“Contractor”, and together with the District, the “Parties”), for the performance of certain services
(the “Services™). The Parties agree to the terms as follows:

1. SERVICES. The Services to be provided by Contractor to its participants,
customers, or patrons, are as follows: [describe the type of
services to be provided] at the District’s [District Facility]
(the “District Facilities) on the following dates and times:

e Every [Weekday], beginning , 20 through
, 20 at : __.m.to : __.m.

e Every [Weekday], beginning , 20 through
, 20 at : __.m.to : _.m.

e Every [Weekday], beginning , 20 through
, 20 at : __.m.to : .m.

2. USER FEE FOR CONTRACTOR TO USE DISTRICT FACILITIES. To
offset the District’s costs for operating and maintaining the District’s Facilities used by the
Contractor, the Contractor shall pay to the District a user fee equal to ten percent (10%) of the
gross fees collected from Contractor’s clients or customers who are using the District’s Facilities
(the “User Fee”). The Contractor shall remit the User Fee to the District no later than the 10th day
following the month in which the District Facilities are used by the Contractor.

3. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITIES. Contractor warrants
and agrees to ensure that all individuals who are utilized by the Contractor in the scope of
performance of the Services referenced herein are duly qualified, experienced, and appropriate for
such activities. Contractor warrants that they have conducted appropriate and reasonable inquiry
into the background of any individuals who Contractor will utilize in performance of the Services
referenced herein. Contractor will comply will all applicable laws and statutes with reference to
its employment of contracted or volunteer workers, and assumes the responsibility of ensuring any
such workers are fit for such activities.

Contractor is responsible for the conduct of any participants, customers, employees, or
patrons of their services, and is expected to ensure compliance with District rules regarding use of
District Facilities, including prohibitions against the use of profanity or disruptive behavior. The
Services to be performed under this contract will be performed entirely at Contractor’s risk and
Contractor assumes all responsibility for their activities in the performance of the Services
referenced herein, including returning all District Facilities to its original condition.



In addition, Contractor agrees to comply with all conditions set forth in Exhibit “A”,
attached hereto and incorporated herein.

4. TERM OF AGREEMENT. This Agreement is valid for the following dates and

times:
e Every [Weekday], beginning , 20 through
, 20 at : __.m.to : _.m.
e Every [Weekday], beginning , 20 through
, 20 at : __.m.to : _.m.
e Every [Weekday], beginning , 20 through
, 20 at : __.m.to : .m.

This Agreement will automatically renew for additional thirty (30) day periods unless
terminated by either Party pursuant to Section 5 below.

5. DAMAGE TO DISTRICT FACILITIES. If any damage to District Facilities
occurs as a result of this Agreement, the use of the District’s Facilities by the Contractor, or the
use of the District’s Facilities by Contractor’s participants, customers, or patrons, the Contractor
shall reimburse the District for the cost of repairing such damages within ten (10) days of such
damage occurring.

6. TERMINATION. Either Party to this Agreement may terminate this Agreement
without liability, fee or penalty, at any time and without cause, by giving seven (7) days prior
written notice. Additionally, if Contractor defaults in the performance of or breaches any of its
covenants, agreements or obligations under this Agreement, the District may terminate this
Agreement without any prior written notice, without penalty.

7. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. Nothing contained in this Agreement or in
the relationship of the Contractor and the District shall be deemed to constitute a partnership, joint
venture, or any other relationship except for the Contractor relationship described in this
Agreement. Contractor’s authority and right to be on District Facilities is limited solely to
performing the Services set forth herein in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

8. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Contractor shall maintain throughout the term
of this Agreement the following insurance:

(a) Worker’s Compensation Insurance if required in accordance with the laws
of the State of Florida.

(b) Commercial General Liability Insurance covering the Contractor’s legal
liability for bodily injuries, with limits not less than $1,000,000 combined single
limit bodily injury and property damage liability. No subcontractors may be utilized



by Contractor without the consent of the District, and subject to the modification
of this Agreement.

The District, its officers, Supervisors, staff and employees shall be named as additional
insureds. The Contractor shall furnish the District with the certificate of insurance evidencing
compliance with this requirement. No certificate shall be acceptable to the District unless it
provides that any change or termination within the policy periods of the insurance coverage, as
certified, shall not be effective within thirty (30) days of prior written notice to the District.
Insurance coverage shall be from a reputable insurance carrier, licensed to conduct business in the
State of Florida, and such carrier shall have a Best’s Insurance Reports rating of at least A-VII.

9. INDEMNIFICATION. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement,
Contractor shall indemnify, defend, save and hold the District and its officers, supervisors,
employees, agents, servants, successors, and authorized agents (hereinafter “Indemnified Parties™)
harmless from any and all suits, actions, legal or administrative proceedings, claims and demands
made/asserted/threatened by any third-party and all related losses, expenses, damages, costs,
actions, property loss, personal injury or death, fines, penalties and liabilities, including reasonable
attorneys’ fees and expenses incurred by or asserted against the Indemnified Parties in
investigation or defense, which arise out of or that are related to or connected with the services
being provided by the Contractor which are the subject of this Agreement, including but not limited
to: negligence, intentional acts, misrepresentations, nondisclosure, or because of any promise or
untrue statement made by Contractor. The obligations of the Contractor set forth in this
Indemnification Section shall continue in effect notwithstanding the expiration or termination of
this Agreement.

Nothing in this Agreement shall constitute or be construed as a waiver of the District’s
sovereign immunity or limitation of liability pursuant to Section 768.28, Florida Statutes.

Further, Contractor shall be solely liable and responsible to its participants, customers,
patrons or employees for the resolution of any complaint or claim made against Contractor for
failure to perform the Services in accordance with the terms of any service agreement between
Contractor and any third-party.

Further, Contractor shall ensure that each participant reviews and executes a waiver, the
form of which is attached to this Agreement as Exhibit “B” (the “Waiver”), and that the Waiver is
provided to the Community Director’s office prior to any use of the District’s Facilities.

10. WAIVER OF BREACH. The waiver by the District of any breach of a provision
of this Agreement shall not operate or be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach by the
Parties.

11. NOTICES. All notices required or anticipated by this Agreement shall be in
writing, addressed to the Parties as set forth below, and will be deemed to have been duly given
when (a) delivered by hand with a written confirmation of receipt, or (b) when received by the
addressee, if sent by a nationally recognized overnight delivery service (receipt requested):



To the District: Waterset South Community Development District
c/o Rizzetta & Company, Inc.
3434 Colwell Avenue, Suite 200
Tampa, Florida 33614
Attn.: District Manager

With a copy to: Kutak Rock LLP
107 West College Avenue
Tallahassee, Florida 32301
Attn.: District Counsel

To the Contractor:

Attn.:

12. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement contains the entire agreement between
the Parties and supersedes all prior agreements and understandings, oral or written, between the
Parties, with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement. This Agreement may not be amended
orally, but only by an agreement in writing signed by the Parties.

13. SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid or
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, the other provisions of this Agreement will
remain in full force and effect. Any provision of this Agreement held invalid or unenforceable only
in part or degree will remain in full force and effect to the extent not held invalid or unenforceable.

14. GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement will be governed by the laws of the State of
Florida without regard to conflict of laws principles.

15. NO ASSIGNMENT. The rights and obligations of the Contractor under this

Agreement are not assignable in whole or in part without the prior written agreement of the
District.

[remainder of page left intentionally blank]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of this
day of , 20 on behalf of:

DISTRICT: Waterset South Community Development District

By:

Printed Name:

Its: Chairperson / Vice Chairperson, Board of Supervisors

CONTRACTOR:

By:

Printed Name:

Title:




EXHIBIT “A”

WATERSET SOUTH COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
CONDITIONS FOR INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

1. The Independent Contractor Agreement is for a stipulated amount of time, and is not automatically
renewable. Initial

2. The Independent Contractor agrees that his/her personal appearance and conduct should be above
reproach at all times. Initial

3. Class or classes are to be held as scheduled. ANY SCHEDULE CHANGES MUST BE
COMMUNICATED AND/OR APPROVED BY THE COMMUNITY DIRECTOR’S OFFICE in advance.
If illness prevents you from teaching your class, please notify the Community Director’s Office so that a
sign may be posted accordingly, if deemed appropriate by the Community Director. The Independent
Contractor is responsible for notifying their students individually. Initial

4, Special equipment, tables, chairs, mats, etc. are to be set-up, taken down, and returned to their
original places by the Independent Contractor. The site of the class and any waiting area is to be left in a
clean, orderly condition. The Independent Contractor is responsible for any damage or change in the
condition of the facility caused by their clientele. Initial

5. No equipment that could potentially cause damage to the grounds, grass, or any landscaping may
be used when conducting outdoor classes. Initial

6. The Independent Contractor who has children in their classes should ensure that children are never
left unattended for any reason. The Independent Contractor is to ensure that every child has left the facility
prior to leaving. Initial

7. The Independent Contractor is responsible for the conduct of their class participants and are
expected to ensure compliance with District rules regarding use of District Facilities including prohibitions
against the use of profanity or disruptive behavior. Initial

8. The Independent Contractor has sole responsibility to pay all federal, state and local taxes,
including wage withholding, payroll, unemployment insurance, social security, sales and income taxes
associated with any compensation the Independent Contractor receives as a result of the Independent
Contractor Agreement. Initial

9. Advertising, special offers and all promotional materials for all classes must be coordinated and
approved through the Community Director’s Office. Initial

10. All paperwork, fee collections, registrations, and refunds are to be coordinated by the Independent
Contractor. Initial

11. The conditions above are part of the Independent Contractor Agreement. Initial



EXHIBIT “B”

WATERSET SOUTH COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
FORM OF PARTICIPANT WAIVER



Tab 20



OO NOOTLE, WN -

WATERSET SOUTH COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
September 11, 2025, Minutes of Meeting
Pagﬁl

MINUTES OF MEETING

Each person who decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any
matter considered at the meeting is advised that the person may need to ensure that a verbatim
record of the proceedings is made, including the testimony and evidence upon which such appeal
is to be based.

WATERSET SOUTH
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Waterset South Community
Development District was held on Thursday, September 11, 2025, at 9:03 AM at the offices
of Rizzetta & Company, 2700 S. Falkenburg Road Suite 2745, Riverview FL 33578.

Present and constituting a quorum:

Amanda King Board Supervisor, Chairman

Pete Williams Board Supervisor, Vice - Chairman
Deneen Klenke Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary
John Blakley Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary
Lynda McMorrow Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary

Also, present were:

Ruben Durand District Manager, Rizzetta & Co.
Alyssa Willson District Counsel, Kutak Rock LLP
Katiria Parodi Representative, Castle Group
Rachel Welborn District Manager, Rizzetta & Co.
John Toborg Land Services, Rizzetta & Co
Kayla Connell Representative, Rizzetta & Co (via conf. call)
Tony Smith Representative, Sitex
Eric Francis District Engineer, Heidt Design (via conf. call)
Tom Mootz Representative, ULS
Trey Ballenger Representative, Ballenger
Audience Not Present
FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Call to Order

Mr. Durand called the meeting to order and confirmed a quorum.
SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comments

No Audience Comments.



48
49
50
o1
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73

74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86

87
88

WATERSET SOUTH COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
September 11, 2025, Minutes of Meeting
Pag&Z

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports
A. Aquatics Report

Present. Mr. Smith presented the report.
B. Landscape & Irrigation

i. Presentation of Landscape Inspection Report

Present. Mr. Toborg mentioned the inspection took place September 3™ and
discussed specific items related to the landscape on CDD property.

i. Landscape Contractor Update

Present. Mr. Mootz mentioned as we come out of the fertilization “blackout period,
they will begin fertilizing.

iii. Irrigation Contractor Update
Present. Mr. Ballenger presented his report and provided updates.
C. District Counsel

Present.

On a motion by Mr. Williams, seconded by Mr. Blakley with all in favor, the Board
authorized staff to start boundary amendment process and authorize the chair to execute
outside the meeting for the Waterset South Community Development District.

D. District Engineer

Not Present, No report.
E. District Manager

The next CDD meeting will be a Special Meeting on October 14™, 2025, at 10:00am.
FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS BUSINESS ITEMS

A. Consideration of District Management Contract

On a motion by Ms. King, seconded by Mr. Blakley with all in favor, the Board approved
the opening of the District Management Contract for the Waterset South Community
Development District.




WATERSET SOUTH COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
September 11, 2025, Minutes of Meeting
Pagﬁ3

89 B. Opening of Public Hearing on Rules, Polices and Fee for Amenity Facilities
90

On a motion by Ms. King, seconded by Mr. Williams with all in favor, the Board approved
the opening of Public Hearing on Rules, Polices and Fee for Amenity Facilities for the
Waterset South Community Development District.

91
92 C. Closing of Public Hearing on Rules, Polices and Fee for Amenity Facilities
93

On a motion by Mr. Williams, seconded by Mr. Blakley with all in favor, the Board
approved the closing of Public Hearing on Rules, Polices and Fee for Amenity Facilities
for the Waterset South Community Development District.

94
95 D. Consideration of Resolution 2025 — 18; Polices and Fee for Amenity Facilities
96

On a motion by Mr. Williams, seconded by Ms. King with all in favor, the Board approved
Resolution 2025 — 18; Polices and Fee for Amenity Facilities for the Waterset South
Community Development District.

97
98 E. Review of Goals and Objectives for FY 24 / 25
99
On a motion by Mr. Blakley, seconded by Ms. King with all in favor, the Board accepted
the Goals and Obijectives for FY 24 / 25 for the Waterset South Community Development
District.
100
101  F. Review of Goals and Objectives for FY 25/ 26
102
On a motion by Mr. Williams, seconded by Ms. King with all in favor, the Board adopted
the Goals and Objectives for FY 25 / 26 for the Waterset South Community Development
District.
103

104 G. Consideration of Resolution 2025 — 19; Rescinding Resolution 2025 - 12
105

On a motion by Ms. King, seconded by Mr. Williams, with all in favor, the Board approved
Resolution 2025 — 19; Rescinding Resolution 2025 — 12 for the Waterset South
Community Development District.

106
107 H. Presentation of Waterset South Community Development District Engineer’s
108 Report Supplement to Master Capital Improvement Plan

109

110  Presented by Mr. Francis

111

112 | Presentation of Waterset South Community Development District Supplement to
113  Master Special Assessment Methodology Report

114

115 Presented by Ms. Connell
116



117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126

127
128
129
130
131

132
133
134

135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144

145
146
147
148
149

WATERSET SOUTH COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
September 11, 2025, Minutes of Meeting
Pagﬁ4

J. Consideration of Resolution 2025-20; DECLARING SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS;
DESIGNATING THE NATURE AND LOCATION OF THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS:
DECLARING THE TOTAL ESTIMATED COST OF THE IMPROVEMENTS, THE PORTION
TO BE PAID BY ASSESSMENTS, AND THE MANNER AND TIMING IN WHICH THE
ASSESSMENTS ARE TO BE PAID. DESIGNATING THE LANDS UPON WHICH THE
ASSESSMENTS SHALL BE LEVIED, PROVIDING FOR AN ASSESSMENT PLAT

AND A PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT ROLL; ADDRESSING THE SETTING OF PUBLIC
HEARINGS; PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION OF THIS RESOLUTION; AND
ADDRESSING CONFLICTS, SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE

On a motion by Ms. King, seconded by Ms. Klenke with all in favor, the Board approved
Resolution 2025 — 20 for the Waterset South Community Development District.

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION

A. Consideration of the Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes for August 14, 2025

On a motion by Mr. Williams, seconded by Mr. Blakley with all in favor, the Board
approved The Meeting Minutes of The Board Supervisors meeting held on August 14,
2025, for the Waterset South Community Development District.

B. Consideration of Operations and Maintenance Expenditures for July 2025

On a motion by Mr. Williams, seconded by Ms. King with all in favor, The Board of
Supervisors ratified Operations & Maintenance Expenditures for July 2025,
($85,287.37) as presented for the Waterset South Community Development District.

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisor Requests and Audience
Comments

Mr. Williams and Mr. Blakley voiced concerns with District Management Company, asked
upper management to attend the next meeting.

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment

On a motion by Mr. Williams seconded by Mr. Blakley, with all in favor, the Board
agreed to adjourn the meeting at 10:39 a.m., for the Waterset South Community
Development District.




150
151
152
153
154
155

WATERSET SOUTH COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT
September 11, 2025, Minutes of Meeting

Pagﬁ 5

Assistant Secretary

Chair / Vice Chair



	01- WS South Cover - 10 - 14-2025
	02 -Instruction Sheet
	2025-10-14 - Waterset South CDD -  Agenda
	Tab 1 - Waterway 01 - Waterset South (1)
	Tab 2 - ENGINEER REPORT 01 - Waterset South Engineer's Report Supplement to the Master Capital Improvement Plan (July 17, 2025) Pulled from Meeting Agenda
	Tab 3 - SPEC. METHODOLOGY 01 - 2025-09-17 Waterset South CDD S2025 Final SAM
	Tab 4 - 2026-01 - 170.08 Resolution Levying Special Assessments (2025 Boundary Amendment) - Waterset South
	Tab 5 - Supplemental Notice of Special Assessments (Series 2025) - Waterset South
	Tab 6 - 2026-02 - Resolution Authorizing Boundary Amendment (2nd BA - 2025) - Waterset South
	Tab 7 - Acquisition Agreement Series 2025 - Waterset South
	Tab 8 - Collateral Assignment Series 2025 - Waterset South
	Tab 9 - True-Up Agreement Series 2025 - Waterset South
	Tab 10 - Supplemental Notice of Special Assessments (Series 2025) - Waterset South
	Tab 11 - Completion Agreement Series 2025 - Waterset South
	Tab 12 - Tri-Party Agreement NASH (Series 2025) WS South 1
	Tab 13 - Tri-Party Agreement with LR (Series 2025) 2
	Tab 14 - Declaration of Consent to Jurisdiction Series 2025 - Waterset South
	Tab 15 - Third Supplemental Disclosure of Public Financing (Series 2025 Bonds) - Waterset South
	Tab 16 - 2026-03- Supplemental Assessment Resolution (Series 2025 Bonds) - Waterset South
	Tab 17
	Tab 18 - Facility Usage 01  -Form of Facility Rental Agreement - Waterset South
	Tab 19 - Instructor 01 -Form of Independent Contractor Agreement - Waterset South
	Tab 20 - 2025-09-11- Waterset South CDD -Meeting Minutes
	EXHIBIT A TO BOUDNARY AMENDMENT RESOLUTION Exhibit 4 - Metes & Bounds Legal of New Boundary.pdf
	WSET-SOUTH-2025 CDD AMEND-DS E-SHT-1 (1)
	Sheets and Views
	E-SHT-1
	PLOT-E



	WSET-SOUTH-2025 CDD AMEND-DS E-SHT-2 (1)
	Sheets and Views
	E-SHT-2






